STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING
TUESDAY, MAY 7TH, 2013 12:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINTA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise,

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 12:00 P.M. (Closed
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with the County’s
management regarding labor negotiations.)

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 7% 2013
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 04 /26/13 for $357,934.95, date
04/26/13 for $113,623.10 and Accounts Payable date 04/ 19/13 for $844,335.48

7. For possible approval DMV Contract Renewal at the request of Assessor Jana Seddon

1




8. For possible approval March 2013 Treasurer Report

9. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

Capital City Well Drilling - Contractor/20 Kit Kat Drive, Carson City
Sword, International - General/420 USA Parkway, Suite #105, RI
Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot - General /188 South C Street, Virginia City
Hot Pot, LLC - General /420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI

American Arms Delta - General /224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B, TRI
Air Guys, Inc. - General/9732 Pyramid Way, Sparks

Battle Born Munitions, Inc. - General /625 Waltham Way, TRI

Stem, LLC - General /420 South B Street, TRI

PM Services - Contractor/3980 VZ CR 1712, Grand Saline, TX

EB Homes- Contractor/687 Lucas Drive, Carson City

TG Mo a0 o

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

10. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:  Valerie LeBel-Flatley to request the Commission’s
consideration to direct staff to draft an ordinance amendment to Storey County Code (SCC)
9.16.30 to define and include the Virginia City Highlands and Highlands Ranches as “congested
areas”.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Regarding possible adjustments to the Sheriff Tentative
Budget and reorganization of Community Services Program.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Direction concerning any further action regarding First
Judicial District Court Order on Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment in Case No. 12 RP 00004
1E, CRA vs Storey County and Comstock Mining Inc.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Cause the statements required (NRS 244225 and NRS
354.210) to be published in the Comstock Chronicle dated Friday, May 10, 2013.

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE NRS 474 STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE  ACTION: Ambulance Subscription Program rates and federal
requirements.

17. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit No. 2013-003. By Con-Virginia Mining
Company/Hugh Roy Marshall (Virginia City). Applicant is REQUESTING A Special Use Permit

for the placement and operation of a portable temporary water-based ore processing mill to

2




19.

20.

21

process ore from an on-site Small Operations underground mine and a temporary shelter for the
mill at APN 004-301-06 (approx.. the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 of section 20, T17N, R21E (MDB&M).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit No. 2013-002. By TRI/Colony Energy

Partners Reno LNG, LLC (McCarran, Tahoe Reno Industrial Center). Applicant is requesting a
Special Use Permit on APN’s 005-031-13, 005-031-12, 005-031-02 and portion of 004-154-21 located at 600
Peru Drive to construct and operate a liquid natural gas (LNG) manufacturing and distributing facility
and its anciilary uses.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Storey
County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District (DVCD) doe noxious weed abatement in Six
and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, Virginia City and American Flat, Storey
County. '

. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

Nevada ICF, LLC - Contractor/1491 Serendipity Court, Sparks

Complete Electric - Contractor/ 1655 Marietta Way, Sparks

Rimrock Drilling, Inc. - Contractor/700 Flanders Road, Reno

V.C/s Treasurer Island - General/54 North C Street, Virginia City

Comstock Movie Studio, LLC dba Three Tickets to Paradise - General /150 North Summit
Street, Virginia City

Trico, LLC - General/ 655 Peru, TRI

Arrow Remodeling & Renovation - Contractor/1280 Plumb, Reno

Momentum Consulting dba Fast Signs of Reno - Contractor,/ 1280 Plumb, Reno
Burke Roofing, INC. - Contractor/109 Shadow Mountain Drive, Fernley
Associated Crane and Oil Field Log ~ General/235 London, TRI

oo op

e Yo RN

22. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, SHERIFF'S OFFICE LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. Cabaret license for The Roasting House located at 55 North C Street, Virginia City

BOARD COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

* Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

* Public Comment will be allowed at the beginning of each meeting (this comment should be
limited to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item
on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on
Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board. Please limit your
comments to three minutes.

* Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

3




Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

In accordance with Federal law and US. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender.

The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice only 800-
326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for Individuals
with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before April 29, 2013; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer




Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 04/26/13 for
$357,934.95, date 04/26/13 for $113,623.10 and Accounts Payable date 04/19/13 for
$844,335.48




257 8L¢€ SE999 ET/6T/% ANEAE X¥d YHLSXO

£€6°TE9'T ¥3L¥2  £T/6T/% TI¥L/S4IVHD
05" 6% T69¥%9 ET/6T/% I90L ‘UNYL - LS3ud
£8"GT T69%9 ET/6T/% IE0L ‘WNYD - Lsdxg
52721 S9L%9 €1/61/% SAAMIATUY BOJ STYEW
00°0€ TE979 ET/6T/¥ M¥YH ‘IE0L ‘YNVL - HONOT
¥y 8d E0LYD ET/6T/¥% ONILIEW 8¢ &S
-00°§2Z¢€ £0LEY ET/61/% INEZWAYJUEAD YOI LIATHD
LE' 0% EQLED ET/6T/% d0¥d NaNg ¥04 SI¥Vd
LZ've EESES ET/6T/%
00'S69°T £E9FI  E€T1/6T/% HSI¥NOL ¥O4 Saval z
00 0€s £E9P9 £1/6T/% STAYMY Z¥d YELSAO
0191 $E9TY €I/6T/¥ JDEHD WOWA FHVILIOHS
0L ¥LZ PEIVY ET/6T/¥ INFAT A¥E ELSZO
0£°G61 ¥E9F9 £T/6T/¥ SFIT4dNS FDTII0
“00°SLT 7EITe ET/6T/¥ INFAY X¥d ¥EILSAC QNAIEH
00°0¢€ PEQDY ET/6T/¥
00° €9 VESPS  ET/6T/¥ $gTNE IHOIT/SIITAANS
00 sg 8LLPY ET/6T/% SHOIANIS MNWHLSVA
I1'012 BLL®Y ET/6T/% AVALEYS NI SYNSWIEA
28' LYY T60%S ET/6T/% INOD SSHSSY WOOd THLOH
2S°T (4251 ET/61/% ALIDNCSYYD) DHID OL TIWW
9659 Z¥9%9 ET/6T/% ANI YALNIEG
-§5°t0E EOLYS E1/6T/% SWALI JENYNLITE d0d LIaIHD
%6 EE EQLES £E1/61/% 8YD 0IAVd SMD0T/SdSYH
FOLZH YOI¥EWY 40 XNNvd 90ZSL
25'8%¢€ zs'esg §SLYS ET/6T/% SYEIOAWOD
d¥0D TYLIAVD Yog1vd §50Z5L
0L'9z oL 9E 00LPS £I/6T/% SWIVID DINOYIDETH
aL7T LNINdQTHAHC SAY P02SL
SL'L98°¢E SLTLSBE 0959%9 £T/6T/¥ ASTUNYHOUAN Add HBLSXO
GELIWITNA SOILETHLY £0ESL
e € PE'E 269%9 £T/6T/¥ ) EDIA¥ES HONIAWAINODHTHEL
IANES HONHUZANOIEIXL IRLY 20ZSL
BETLE 69°8T 869%9 ET/6T/¥ gI230
6981 86999 ET/6T/% | httec(ed
1T IT ALITIEOR I%IY TOZ4L
SL 2L SLEBL 669¥%9 ET/6T/% HANTIIOYA ¥ d3H SNITIOD
SSENTTIEM GNY HLIYIH 29Y 00ZSL
S8 091 [1:38:13 20L7Y ET/61/F AMANNYT dSNOHLENOD
06" 9% ZOLFY ET/61/F AYANOYT dOHS
90 0% 20LES £1/61/% Xd9aNnYT d0RS
Lo'6 96919 E1/6T/% IMONNYT %L 1S
89'€ 269979 £ET/8T/% FMANNYT EL 1S
SZ LT 969%9 £T/6T/% AEaNNYT T4 1S
INI QDSTY 66TSL
69 €TT ¥T'8T LE9T9 £T/6T/¥ S4IT44NS SWE
SL'S6 LE9TY ST/6T/¥ S8ITdd(S SWE
DNI NON SYDNIV 86TSL
00°850'9 00° 00§ 58979 £ET/6T/% €102 SLNEWZONYHMNA
00°00L'E 589%9  E£T/6T/¥ €102 SINEWEONYHNI
00°58E°T S89%9  €TI/6T/V
00' 005 S89¥%9 ET/6T/% £102 SINIWIONYHNE
- ONI SWAELSAS YIVA dAINYATY LETSL
00°S0S 00°508 TOLY9 £T/6T/% YOLVIAVYE 88C8TXE
' ONI dIVAEY ROLYIAVY I-¥ 96TGL
TELOL INNCHY #SNTAL qLva # o/a MOILdIYOSEd FIIQANT dOUNEA HAAWAN
Hq2FHD ’ ADFHD
£€T/61/% WHELSIOTI MDEHD ET/LT/¥0 2387 uny

T abwg ALNNOD REMQLE §Tered oN axodasy




¥6 69T
00°0TT
00" 8T

00691

PO TET'E

9€°6871
LLTGLE'OT

€8 €62

00°'Les
L3021

9§ 'veEL

oz’ Es
68'LFE'T
o059
66°'6¢E
00'25L
$8° L€
[ A
»T° 54

25 SLO'TT

TVLOL
ADHHD

z abeg

¥6 63T
00°0TT
00° 8T

00-2g
00" LTT

PO2LE T
00°'9%2
9€°68T
LLTGLE'OT
coeg
£0°90T
08766

00 LES
L0021
ZQ'6€
Ze'LZ

28 25T
0I°ST
0Z°Es
68" LEE'T
00°s9

[ 3-0-1

[ ATA
S8°'LE
2T°0T

PT 9L
T0° 08

00 STS' %
00" T¥
08'62T
0092
00559
Q2'LS2
Q0°0%
05° 9%
0099

INOOWY

T8L%3
£5L%9
LOLPY

959%9
259%%

BISPS
85999

89L%9
L¥9¥O
Z9L¥%9
29L%9
TOLY9
LEDERS
20LYS
vOLFI
#0LYO
POLYO
[4UA L]
6¥LYS
B8E9P9
059%9
TILvs
899%9
60LYY
80LP9
99L¥%9
T69%9
E0LYO
169%9
EQLYS
EQLYO
EQLYS
E0LPS
S€9%39
SE999
S€9%9

#SNTAL

£T/67/%
ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%

ST/81T/F
ET/61/%

£€1/61/%
£T/61/v

ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/%
EL/6T/%
ET/6T/%
ET/6T/F
ET/6T/%
£I/61/%
€T/6T/%
£1/61/%
£T/6T/%
ET/6T/¥
ET/ET/¥
EL/ET/¥
ET/6T/F
€1/61/¥%
£T/6T/¥
£T/6L/¥
£I/61/%
ET/6T/%
£T/61/%
£1/6T/F
ET/61/%
ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%
£T/6T/%
£1/61/7
£1/6T/¥
ET/6T/¥

Jiva

ET/6T/%

TIC06% IOOW (INNIFTY

HETYES ADWAD

NOILYOITHRd TYNNNY 2431
dON L¥Z-£T GHO

TEYIATIHG /L5155 A0TdWE
HYYOAIIHD /LS ISSY ZOTANE

AEISANGSIA LNAWHS INIYD
JENYHS ALNOCD IWL
TIYL/STEMCY, ¥Edvd

TIVL/8HYE HSYEL
1I¥L/dL

£1/50/5 - €1/80/%
L¥0440S LOVHINOD
TIQ-ASY rI¥AS TL¥ HAII
TYAs TLM RYIg

TIONE aNY I7Fd D98
OATd TIE9S OS5

ARMES [AFLIYM

LNTFAT A¥d ¥EISAO
€T0Z/TT/¢ SHIIA¥IS S04
IHDIT %L1l

E10Z 0T TI¥4Y-8Z HOUWW
IHOIT YaAN¥YYR vLE

LHOIT AVE &4¥
ISANISIC INEWHSINUYD
IH0L ‘WNYL - ¥ENNIQ
SNININVW ONINIVEL SWE
D0CA ‘4421 THOL 'YNYL -NIG
ONINIVYEL OL TIAVEL
ONINEYL

ONINIVEL ONTTIIE GWv
LIS0dEd Wood

TAYHYS /00T  INFDOA
anoyd " LIOY LJOSOUDIN
YTHOVTIVE ¥ dnanyg Tvand

HOLLATHRSEA EOIOANI

JALSIDAY MDHHD
ALNOOD RE¥QLS

¥ OIAYIDO 'YiS2dD
1000 'SNISNOD
HSUIEWIW FTYSETIOHM 0DIS0D

AT@dns ¥ SLNYTYAS LSNOD

{34) FTDINOYED MOOLSWOD

ONI LSIHD ALINOWWOD
AEN J0 ADIA¥ES NOILDETION

FHANSVARL NOSdWD 40 ALID

ANddNS AAVLINYS TVILNED
ONI HOQaLOC SE5

ONI FTTESYD

ONI Q¥od TYIIdYD
NIWIACHUAWI TYNENED NOANYD
ONI SIVINEY ALEYd LOTAWYD
TEAZT 7 SEIIANES SSENISAT

ONI F¥Id S NOLY¥nd
SIMIT LIODE ‘Tiaysndg
DONI SOINOHIEINE
NYHETNG

T4 MY¥T LLANNZE

UOINTA

EL/LT/%0
STETEd

9ZZSL
gzess
YZTSL

EETTYL

Z2ESL

TZzsL
0zZsi

&TTEL

BTTSL
LTICSL

9T2HL

STESL
PIZSL
£T2SL
ZTESL
TTZ5L
a1zZss
60EZSL
80ZsL

LOZSL

YIENON
ADIHD

ajeqg uny
toN 1xoday




€

06" LEE
00°6¢

ZLIE0'T

0g'oe

LI LVE

L5811
007008
g8 LY

¥9 paE’9

S8 PET
00 T8 LE

SE'TLE

00°SPT
0S"LEZZ'CT
TEgS

L8'6¢

00"80T
opt o8
Q0" wEE

I495.0L
ASHIHS

abeg

6891
BE'B8OT
20 ve1

06" LET
0064
80°0%S
¥6°9
Lg L0z
Qg Loe

£¥°0¢
00" &€

00" og

189

2T TRE
LS'81T
00’005
38" LY
PETLES'T
8T 0%t
LT LEL

ETLZT'T
2ST2E0°2

" SB'U¥ET

gortroRLe
»5° 82T
9€° 06
80°18
$1° 907
£2°599
00°S¥T
DS'LEZE'CT
1e°es

L8’z
00°LE

007801
00-o08
00" %2¢

LNOOWY

0ZLve
QTLEFS
02LES
FLLPO
SLL¥Y
6TLPT
6TLYY
6TLVY
6TLY9
6TLY9
ETLYY
223%3

LTLES
LILYS

TZ2L%9
LLLYO9
STLPO
STLYS
BTLPS
STLYY9
BTILP9
BIL®S
PILYS
ETLF9
0LL%9
LYLY9
OLLYD
BE89%9
LYLYS
ZIL®9
£E¥9%2
EL8TS

0TL%S
0TL¥9

6E9P9
£99%9
EERAA]

HENTUL

ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%
£T/6T/%

£T/6T/%
£ET/6T/%
ST/6T/¥
£T/6T/%
€T/6T/%
£T/61/%
€T/6T/%
ET/61/%
ET/6T/%

ET/61/%
ET/6T/Y

£T/61/%
£T/6T/¥
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/%
£T/6T/%
ET/61/%
ET/61/%
eT/ét/%
ET/61/%
ETI/6T/%
£T/6T/%
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/%
SI/6T/%
ET/6T/P

ET/6T/%

ET/6T/% -

£T/6T/7
ET/6T/¥

ET/6T/%
ET/6T/¥
ET/61/%

TLYA

ILHOIT bL1d
TYES/IEM00d PL1d

£T02 TI¥AY LPT IN
LANYAINI HDA

FAV], 'YENTIEd-MUYd amitl
a¥vng gdnt

INIVd ‘ODNI¥EQTOS-Xdd amil
INIVd-M¥d amyt

HSINIZ ¥OOTd HD

HDLYd J00¥-ddd aMdT
d¥® ESETIOD AN VHMHTS

SHEITTddNS SWAE
SEITAANS SWE

INZY € A¥Ed MNOd

HSCH PLE

TASATA 2 AYATING 29 MdDA
SEIC ¥ QUATINA SEY FUIS IW
TASIIA ¥ AYIATIND 9DFY aAMNT
TASHAIA ¥ AVITING OITF AMAT
TISHIT ¥ AVETING DAY MDA
SOY¥Td AN/SQ

INARAINOE NOILYOIHLXE
ANYIONd DNIUTING

IO UNS ¥ HONVY Idad 009
ENYICHd SNIATIng

£€1/98/% £aT9 BSNINIVYL

a¥ TICL 00T

QTHIHSANIM 88C6C X=
HOYSN-NOISHEA YALYHALSYM
STIPISSH IDOV

d¥D dWOD aNd qva3¥HL IdlL
WILLIWA IdL

A00E DA 40 LSEE dOHS 14ID
dJ¥2 3DETTO00 AN VHHEIS
£T0ZT "0T TIYAY-82 HOUYW

NOILAIEOSHA IDIIOANI

£T/6T/¥ WALSIHAY AIITHD

ALN(ICD AZUOLS

o1 44dr
NI LOW QNI NIVINOOW NOMI

ONI ON¥EaY0dd JLOdS IOH

EDIAYES IIJddD LO4Ed FWOH

T NEFUNVW ‘HINGIH

NIFHOS A¥NEH
¥8IT ‘ADNYH
277 YAMOL TYHOTO

o717 TYI¥LENANI XHD

STT ADYENE SHHATA
HHL-DNI AN JA0 HYOLS o¥'1d

ATdans® D3AS ADIAYES FUII

d1 SYOTIIgIEd
ONI SSYID LSvd
ONTHTENIONE LSHM Huva

Q2 SOUHE dHWMYS

SI0NJ0¥d NOILVHINNI DNIMI
[ JUYNOET "HADNILLY

200 *NAIqana

BOANZEA

ET/LT/%0
STETEd

SPZSL
LA XATA

£¥ESL

Zress

14412

0¥ZTas,
6EZSL
BEEZSL

LEZSL

9€2sL
XA ATA

LAXA TR

EETSL
2E€TSL
1e28L

0tZsL

68ZSL
BeTYL
LTESL
UIENON
MDERD

¢ a3eg uny
ioN jxodey



€¥'LSE ELLP9 €T/6T/% TAEE DETJ-TLY TUIA

0z'6 EELPO ET/6T/¥ WITH "IV TENYI-TTE9S OF
£9' ¢ EELYS  ET/BT/V NO NIES IENd-%LE IHIA
T£°99 £ELEY €T/61/% LNYTO0D HEAT -7LE ZUIZ
82 ££E EELYY £T/61/% LNIOr TIVE-TLE E¥Id
BE SPT £ELYY ET/6T/¥ AD0LE JOHS
TZ'E9 EELYD ET/61/% MD0LS dOHE
z8'96 EELES ET/6T/% W8y A¥EIIYE -8919% OF
56°SE EELYS ET/6T/ DHOS TI€95 08
081 EELEY €T/6T/% -11£95 0§
66°6¢€ TELFI €T/6T/¥ SAAOTO dOHS
8% L0Z £E€LYY £ET/6T/% WSY AMALIVE-GLE EHId
99'8LT £ELTI ET/6T/F WSY A¥BLIVE-$Ld HAIJI
§%' 21 £ELF9 ET/6T/¥ FANT-pLE WIS
08°¢ EELFO ET/6T/V d¥D WOLYIAYYd -8825%Z
$8°12 £ELYS ET/6T/% YIIIM-TLE H¥¥Id
-5L'86¢2 CELPY £T/6T/% ALY FYIS
08¢ EELDY £I/E1/% LEOISNVEL M
-00°292 CELYY £T/6T/% NL¥ 5ay
SIL¥Yd QLAY ON 9525L
60°¢ 60‘Z 92L%H E1/61/F SLavq
SIIVYE MDO0YL ® OLOY VYN S52SL
LL 06T BE' 9% 5ZLYY ET/6T/% FATVA TIVE
78101 YELYD ET/6T/% DSIW/SMD0T AMINT
s55'e2y SELES ET/6T/% INYIYHS
HYYMTAVH FSNOHANAOW PSESL
6£°68¢ v8°Z8 £ES9%9 £1/6T/% ‘ANF LJAET MOANIM
§5°90¢ £59%9 £I/6T/¥ SADIAL0 ETALLTINW
D717 IOE¥IA HOYYNCHW £8254
L6°5ET L6'SZY 8¥9¥9 €ET/6T/% ANI MEVAXTT B 4H
‘Y OFETINEW CHITTIIN 25ZS5L
€€ 8TT 89T°588 £89%9 ET/6T/¥ SUEATIAY( NOIILWINIIHO dH
98 % £89%9 £T/BT/% HdYL ANIHOWRW
6282 15973  E€T/6T/% H¥AD ¥ SAYYOLSOE
NI SNOILOICS EIIAJA0 OdIAW TSZSL
00' 02T 00°0¢ . $99%9 ET/6T/%
00°0¢€ 79979 £T/6T/% SHOIJJ0 NINAVY
00" 0€ $99%9 £T/6t/% SHDIAI0 NIWAY
00°0€ ¥99%9 ET/61/¥%
4 LYNYDEYH ‘YIVILYYH 08258
00 0ES oo 0TE ¥5LF9 ET/61/% &4
00" 0TE PSLES ET/6T/% . 3¢
00°0TE PSLYY ET/6T/% 61
HATTOALAWOD 02 NOAT 6¥ZSL
99°16Z°¢L 95'16C°4 6¥9%9 ET/6T/% NOISSTWWOD A¥d dEISAC 'IKW
071 SLNIAH HOTE GradIn 8PZSL
06" €2L 06" EZL £2L%9 €T/61/% SAITIANS SHH
ONI ISISSY-ZAIT L¥ZSL
06°9LZ 06'68¢ ZELTY £T/61/% gad
00°9TT ZeLYY ET/6T/¥ 1dY¥D NOXIQ/HSTYM
~00'622T ZZLPO ET/ET/¥ SNMALEY WOI LIATID
SNCS ¥ SIIMND N 1 9PZSL
SL'8TS - S 14 0FL¥9 £T/61/% FEOD 'OATBIEVD YLTH AL
66°LY 0vL¥9 ET/6T/% FATYA-bL8 HUIS
L6 98 0ZL¥9 £T/6T/% HOETH ETIVW 10d PLId
66°'00T 0ZLYY €1/61/% HOSIA ¥LTH
TYLOL INOCHY HSNVIL FLWa # o/d NOILAI¥DSET EDIOANT HOQHHA EEWAN
MDEHD MDEED
£T/6T/% UILSIOIA MDIHD ET/LT/ %0 a3eq uny

|2 abeq ALNROD AFYOLS STETES ON x0day




HONYTINENY NIYINOOW AMOOM BLTGL

[4: 2 4 Z8° TS LBOFY ET/6T/¥% 609BLYTSY
ONI ¥8N L§OITYou LLESL

00°052°9 000629 LS9Y9 ET/6T/¥% d0-02 OW¥E
¥ NOIINIANOD SNUYdS ONIYW SLESL

8€'0¢€2 66 1CT SYLYS ET/6T/% HIAOD/TON 'INIVA MOOTd

18'8 SPLPY ET/61/% @I4IHS AVddS

8566 $HLES £L/6T/% ONINSYKH 'STTIIHS
1YY INIYd ONEY SLZSL

00°LEY 00 LEZF Z89%9 £T/6T/¥ LOW DWE-LG9BLPESLL LoDV
(¥D)  OMT OD NYSHOW AW PLESL

5788 5z°88 L99%9 ET/6T/¥ €102 ‘0T TI¥AY-8Z HOEYW
W YHONYS ‘quodav £LESL

00°082'T 00°082'T T89%9 EL/6T/¥ INIWIACHAWI FOUYNIVHQ
DNINZANIONE NOSHEONY O ¥ ZLESL

LE GES'T S5°58 9ELTY £T/6T/% INAWNDITY- T FYILL

00° 08 GELPY £1/6T/% HONYIVE-yLE BdIE

ZBTE0S'T 9ELYI ET/8T/% SE¥IL F-fid EHIZ
0D ¥Addny ¥ FAILL 1IN TL28L

[+ 1 RN Ti - 00 005°L $59%9 ET/6T/% SHXL §
ARLEWOLO I OLESL

GO 8%T 00 B%T 59959 ET/61/% £I0Z ‘0T TIMAVY -82 HOUWW
' a OTEONY ‘ININIAES 6525L

00 SET 0052 19Lk9 ET/6T/¥ SX HIUVYIS TYA™

007001 19L%8 €1/6T/% $X SHEIH MAN/TYAT
ONI NOIIVNIYAT THANNOSYIA 8925L

18" 881 18'881 SELES ET/6T/% QIONETIOS-YHATAMS ML
' SEMYS INIWAINDE SNEMO L9Z5L

LT'LEE LT'LEE 9893 €1/6T/¥ HIIJAO MUETD
07T 'LOdEA YIYd FALISIAC 99254

05’88 05788 069%9 £1/6T/¥% NOILYINOHHY ANIDOVA 8 33H
HINHD HIIVHH TYNOILYANII0 59ZGL

6L°9GT 6L'96T 9%9%9 £ET/6T/¥ agqrogII0) SAEd
DNI 4DIANES NYOdT YAVAZEN ¥92SL

00708 00°0S TLLEY ET/6T/% FEd TYINOd ATHLNOW
{ONY) all 3078 YOYAEN £9Z5L

2L 8wz’'t 2L78992'1 69LY9 £T/61/% SNOILVLIID
TASNAOD HALLIVISIDIT AN 2925L

18'198 87198 £69%9 £T/6T/% IYILNIAISEY # TYIDIENWOD
NOILYXYL L43d AN 19254

00°'0S0°T 00°080°T 0SL%Y ET/61/% ONILNIHAEEONIA
ALEAYS DITENd 1450 AEN 09ZSL

B2 ZTB8'8BLE 8Z'g1e’BLE T79%9 ET/61/% 5834 FDUOAIC
ATTTOLAWCD AEN 65ZSL

SL'T1ST'® SL'TSZ'® TELYS ET/6T/% £T02 HOYYKW
SANNCYH ® 5T NIWAY AAN 85E5L

L0'82L L0 BEL 8FLES £T/6T/% €7027 ‘HENTYHANA
ROILWYOd¥N0D HON LSESL

29 S¥5°'Z 0% 8BS EELDY £T/6T/¥ SHAOTO HEIVH

8L'% £ELTY €T/6T/¥ TYdS TYIAvE-HLTH FHId

P P6E EELYY £ET/6T/% SId 'MOLOY ANVEE-TLY HEI1d

L6 BE EEL®Y £1/6T/% FLYTld IT¥EAT-dOHS

99841 €ELYI €ET/6T/¥ WSY AMALIVE-TLTE TAIL

0L'T £ELYY ET/6T/¥ QIYANYLS AON-2LE HUId

§8'6E £ELEO £ET/6T/% JOHS

90°%20'T £ELYY ET/6T/% AIHHESSY GNH-TLY HYId

TYLOL INNOWY #SNVEL HLva # o/d NOILATHDSHEA FDIOANI HOANTA AFLWON
ADFHD ADHHD
£€1/61/% WELSIDIE NDIHD ET/LT/P0 ¢ @3B uny

& abed ALNOOD AHEOLS STETES 1oN 3xoday




9

LY 'BED'E
TE 066"V

9T IPE’T

00001
[A°R-1-2s

EL'TED'T

Q0°00%

FPIPIL %

GL ETIT

00" 0%PY
00’612
295'%9

TYLOL
MOEED

sbeg

LT 21E
Ly BED Y
TE DES T

LE'9EZ
LT IEY
L6 9EE
L6 9EZ
86802

00" 00T
28'seT

YE'BLT
T8'0€T
R 4
¥Z're
68°5T
6 PPT
18 ¥%€
YLOT

00008

28" %91
66° LS
ECT67'%

ZE'T
€L 62
5%
90’z
86§
6%'%S
T4 1T
L9z
90271
§8°
[A° R
Lz e
Te'
9B €T
€0°1
Sg'S
19°
20’8
50"

00'0%T
00612
95°%9

LNNCIHY

¥59%9
LELYS
FP9PS

TELTS
TELDS
TELPI
TEL?S
TPLv9

TSL¥D
€9LYY

6TLYY
ELLES
ELLES
6ELFS
089%9
085¥9
6ELYY
6TLYY

9¢9%9

659%9
6L9VS
6L9¥9

S5L¥9
9L9%9
SSL¥C
SELFS
SSLFI
S5L%9
95L%9
SSL¥9
S5L%9
SGLP9
S5LP9
S5L%9
SSL¥9
S5L79
S5L%9
SGLES
EETA S
S5LP9
§5L¥9

699%9
BELYY
65L%9

#SHVEL

£1/61/%
ET/8T/¥%
ET/6T/%

£T/6T/%
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%

£1/61/%
ET/61/%

ET/61/%
E1/6T/%
ET/6T/%
£1/6T/%
£L/6T/%
€T/6T/%
£T/6%L/%
€I/6T/¥

ET/6T/¥

ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%
£I/6T/%

ET/61/%
ET/6T/F
E1/6T/%
ET/6T/7
ET/6T/%
£T/61/%
£I/61/%
EI/6T/¥
ET/61/¥
ET/6T/Y
€1/61/%
£T/81/%
ET/61/%
E1/61/F
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/0
E1/6T/%
£ET/6T/%
£T/6T/%

ET/6T/¥
ST/6T/%
ET/61/%

JLva

ET/6T/V

SEXY], CHENDES
1¥Oddng 40
ET/ETGZ LNWED DEAD DODNY

JALTIL/ IO TLTIE
HALTIL/TIO 2LTIE
HELIIA/TIIO FLIH
FILTIL/IIC €41
HSOH ¥EEENY "NELEN ESOH

cs
TOOMADOT/ HENOL

ASN0HTUTL FLLS

9019 - $EMOd IOL I8°0ET$
2aT8 - HAMOA IOL 9F TIPS
G¥ HONVY I¥HEd 0001
OVEYD LINAN 8 5§ $01
YOINZAS N HONVYE I¥dEd 0038
ga N¥E3 S0LT

dOLSLSAY ¥i§ 2 N 18¢

£ 40 & INIAWTITVLSNI

HWSTUNOT JA
4oL E96T-L¥8B
SNOILYIINOWWOD-EI¥9-282

LI

NCOISSTHWOD WSI¥N0L DA
(DA} HuIdg
YANOISSIWWOD

va

HOLWGEIA TYEILNID
dOS55458Y

INEWJOIEATId ALINANNOD
[0A) HYIA

QOCMADCT fHYIE
NINGY/JETTOULAWOD
d4TYEHS

4r

AJTETHE

SdUOM DITENd

(oA} H¥IA

AATAOCDTY

AHATO

INE/TUII

€102 ‘0T TIVUAY-8E HOUVH
SHEITAANS SWH
QIawy zid

NOTIdIYDSHEd dDIOANI

UYALGIDEA MDHEHD
ALNNOD AZUOLS

M¥ETO 02 iS
ONTI SHEIIAMES ALITIIN €948

ONT SUNANAIGEUING TYID0S

ONI SLONA0¥d JEMCd HLIWS
ONI TOYLINOD LSHd YHHAIS

0D HEMOd DIJIOWd VHHAIS

00 dEMCA DTAIDYd VHUHIS

W NEZETHLYA "¥ITOHS

ONI SHDIA¥ES TYdO1D DES

OT NI SEDIAYES fIVHOTD DdS
ONI YAINIDINY SAIYHR LNIVS

ONI Oo2d4dny

dCaANIA

ET/LT/%0
STETHd

G&e2SL
[3:34-74

88zHL

LBTSL
28Z5L

S8Z4L

v8esL

E£B8ZSL

z829L

18254 .

08ESL

6LZSL

HEHANN
ADHHZ

@3eg uny
oN Jacdsg



[A

BF " SEC ¥V

8Z°08L

00-Qse
£¥ 8L T
00'9LS’'E
8¢2'21
00"999'1
00"0TL
Q0 esT'T
00rops’e

61'6%S

TO"tLe'€
L&' BEE

00°6%¢E

69 EFT
00°¥32
007QLS'T
207024

PE'OST 00V

[AREA
IYLOL
AJFHI

abeg

TYLOL SADAHD

EQ (9
STOEL

00'08%
£EP BLE'T
00'9Ls'E
gg"etr
00°'999°1
Q00T
00°99T°T
00°005°E
0088

69 992
09°'49%Z
T0TIL9'E
LE"BEE
S%" S8
£6°FE
S6°62
S6° €L
56°6%
06°6¥%
S6° %2
06°6%

65 EPT
00°¥22
00°0L5°T
00 0EL
YE'0LE’66E

00° 09T
00°0¢

LNIOWY

SYLPS
ShLvs

AAAL]
SL9P9
[A-YA 4]
LILTS
LL9%9
8LOY9
ZL9%9
PLOYS
ZSLYS
TPLYY
£E¥LPO
563999
9LLYD
[3:3:0 4]
TELPY
ZeLw9
ZELPO
09L%9
09L%9
TLL?Y
hLE9
FBO¥S
0ELTI
TL9%9
T95%9
S¥9%9

0L9%9
ERada]

#ENTIL

ET/61T/%
£1/81/7

ET/6T/¥
£T/6T/%
ET/61/F
ET/6T/%
£T/6T/¥
ET/6T/%
£T/61/Y
ET/6T/%
£ET/6T/%
£€T/6T/%
£I/6T/¥
€T/6T/%
ET/61/¥%
ET/6T/v
£€T/61/%
LI/6T/¥
£I/6T/¥
ET/6T/¥
ET/6T/%
£T/6T/%
ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%
£Y/6T/%
ET/6T/¥
€T/6T/%
ET/61/%

ET/6T/%
ET/6T/%

LLVa

514D 'ATH
TWTAENE JunL

CTYHIHL 'OTYH

EI0E/€ UNFE MOENIVE STYEW
HIAEVI/TELI0D

JESENESIA LNTFHHESINAYY
L¥0g4Ns

LNENGOTIAZA 9 gHM
ET'0TAY-8ZHYW 9% D?8%E W
ONISTIHIATY dODA

INIWAYd

66VC2PE-LOOV ESVHET WIIAQD
TASUNESId LNIFWHSINNEYD

NIVML XHYNW HDIAMES dAF700D
HALYM $L IS

HAIWM T4 1S

UALYM ZTL IS

A LYM/IIVD

AELYM/ 08

dATOOD VELYM £a1d

YALYM DNINNING

LNFHIONYYH WIYTID dWINn
PLE QIAVE dIW

€T0T'0T TYAY-8Z MWW OL HD
U0 TIOD AN WHuURIS
QIAIEDFY XVI RAI¥EJOHd

£10Z ‘€1 1I¥AY
QEATEDEY XYL ALdddoud

NOILdI¥DSHA HDIIOANI

£T/6T/¥ WALSIDEY ROBHD

ALNOCD AZUOLS

0D ATddNS ¥AVAIN NUZLSEM
BYT TYINIFWNCIIANT NYILSTM
A¥AS YOINAS ALNOCD FOHSYM
YEANOUOD Q2 HOHSWM

od MY¥T EIONYH

SELYIDCSSY ¥ UIATYM
dEYNOISIA

ONI S¥N0L ALID YINIDYUIA

ATOADUOLON ALID WINIDMIA

(24)  FDIT440150d SN
VNId INEWAINDE dYOONVE Sn

TYTYLSNANT HONVNIL TALINA

SAS WHIYM SMOGYEW ZEMINUL
SEEYIXHDN XIY¥L

ONI SNOILVIINAWWOD ANNONS
SEHSIRIUIILNG AVEd NOS

(3A) MEILNED ¥COINES 02 I8

LITYLEIT TOOHOS ©D LS
YOANZEA

ET/LT/P0
S1€18d

a0Es5L
LOESL
EHEATA
S0ESL
POESL
£0ESL
z0esL
ToESL

00ESL

66Z5L
BEZSL

L&62SL

2€25L
SEZTSL
3412
£6C5SL

TETHL

T62Zs8L

HEHWN

ASEHD
i 93eqg uny
1oN aaoday



HENOISSINWOD

HINOISSIWWOD
NYWAIYHD
YHANSTARL
YITTOHLIWOD
€T/61/% HEIVD A2THD 8P SEE ' FHY TYLOL SMDEHD

NOILYZIHOHLOY C(INY MEIATY J0 INIHIDCITMONMDY




YIINGSTHYL

¥ETIOALINOD

FIROIFESTHIHOD YANOISEIWWOD NYWEIVHD

PEIBUOTSSTUWC) FO pIvod Ajuno)y Aaz0ls oyl Aq paaociddy

S6'VES "LSE PIBRANGE I TRIOL
Z8°60L'SE PI0YDNPRA ©F ASISURIL I980 [EIOL
LL*$9Z'E 19714 dag ITd UC peixejsueil SuoTionpey wsiordug Te30lL
S0°'80€°S02 31sodag 3RaaATd asdoTduy Telol
87 9EZ'C 1gyoeyy eadordug Telol
TL 868 PL IENOBYD I0IDNPAT TEIOL
ZT°825's% 8dI4E JI03 ISFFUBIL ISSN [BIOL
Juncwy aadeg # pea # ag
/4 dwz /yoeud
8 L 9 § % £ g 1 :Bdnoan pioadeg £1/18/%0 i97®Q PUS-POTIBG £T/92/%0 !a3Bd A0aYD aeTnbay iadAl (rorieg
AUYNINITING Ia381h0y Speyp 25!00:0T £1/%Z/90 tunyg

|4 abegq WELSXS 'TIOMAYd AINNCD ATICLS Y0TS0¥d 3dsy




ATANSYIAUL

HATTOALIHOD

HINOISSIHWHOD FANOISSIWWOD NYWRIIVHD

ISIBUOTISSTUWCD IO pIeoyg Ajuno) Asxols 8yl Agq paacaddy

0T'€Z9'ETT TPSRANASTAd TPI0L
¥ OTE'ET FIQIONP3g 03 AFEURIL ASSN TBI0L
0o’ ta1Td ded ATd UC paixgisuei] suoTilonpag sakorTdwdm Telol
00 131s0dsg aoeatd esAcTdwd TeIOL
86°09L"'T9 iexoay) safordum Tel0l
I6°£9T1'2E EXNDOYD IOJONPST TRIOL
LL LBE'9T 1841 I™ AOF JAFEURI], ISSN TEIOL
unouy asdeg # Baa # aa
/% dwg /fa0eud
g isdnoap 1T01ARd €T/12/¥0 :83eQ pus-poliad €1/92/%0 e83ed Y2eud tetoads :adAn T1oaded
AUYNIWITIYd Is38Tbsy yoayud 15:00°TT €T/SEe/P0 ‘uny

[4 abeg WELSAS TIOWAYd AINNOD AZUOLS ¥0TS0dd :3dsy




For possible approval DMV Contract Renewal at the request of Assessor Jana
Seddon




Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be Pplaced
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: May 7, 2013 Date Request Submitted: 4/23/13

Agenda Item Requested: DMV Contract Renewal

This item is intended for: [ | Discussion Only I:K Discussion and Action (af the Board’s discretion)

E.‘Supporting documentation is attached [_] No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: Jana Seddon Storey County Assessor
(please print name clearly)

Address: Assessor’s Office

Phone: 847-0961 Email (optional): jseddon@storeycounty.org

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

«— .. Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - - E—
For Office Use Only
Date Request Received: 423319 Received: [In Person [ ] Via FAX By: @
B/Supporting documentation attached - # of pages & Meeting date of this item: & |}

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org




Assessor-Storey (Virginia City)

From: Heidi Azevedo

Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2013 10:45 AM

To: Assessor-Storey (Virginia City)

Ce: Cherie McDowell

Subject: FW: Contract

Attachments: Storey County Assessor Contract Exp 6-30-2015.pdf
Importance: High

Please review the attached interlocal contract and follow the signature instructions below;

* Print 3 copies of the attached contract.
» Sign and Date the appropriate spaces on all 3 copies. All signatures and dates must be criginal on each contract
e Return the signed documents to my attention at the address helow:

Attn: Heidi Azevedo
DMV/Admin. Services
555 Wright Way
Carson City, NV 89711

Please return as soon as possible. This contract requires Board of Examiner’s (BOE) approval, therefore to be placed on
the June BOE Agenda we need to expedite the signature process. The signed documents must be received no later than
5 pm on Monday, May 6™ —

**¥*Please send a return notification so | know you have received this e-mail.

Thank you,

Heidi Azevedo

DMV/ Contract Manager
Phone: 775-684-4504
Fax: 775-684-4724

hazevedo@dmv.nv.gov




INTRASTATE INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through lts
Department of Motor Vehicles
(“Department™)

555 Wright Way
Carson City, NV 89711-0911
(775) 684-4549 (775) 684-4692
and
Storey County Assessor
(“County”)

P.O. Box 494
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0961 / (775) 847-0%04

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes ary one or more public agencies to contract with any one or more other
public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies
entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services hereinafter set forth are both necessary and in the best interests of the
State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by appropriate
official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS.  “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its officers,
employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective upon approval to June 30, 2015, unless sooner terminated
by either party as set forth in this Coniract.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth in paragraph (3),
provided that a termination shall not be effective until 30, days afier a party has served written notice upon the
other party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilateraily by either party
without cause. The parties expressly agree that this Contract shall be terminated immediately if for any reason State
and/or federal funding ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited, or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand, by telephonic facsimile with
simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and
addressed to the other party at the address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agrce that the services to be performed shall be specifically
described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of constructive precedence:
ATTACHMENT AA: SCOPE OF WORK

ATTACHMENT BB: SECURITY STATEMENT

Page 1 of 4




7. CONSIDERATION. The County agrees to provide the services set forth in paragraph (6) at a cost of two dollars
($2.00) per registration transaction with the total Contract or installments payable not to exceed fifty thousand
dollars and no/100 ($50.000.00) per fiscal year, with the total not to exceed one hundred thousand ($100,000.00) for
the term of the Contract. In addition NRS 482.180(6) states: From the amount of governmental service tax collected
by a County Assessor the State Controller shall credit 1 percent to the Department as a commission and remit 5
percent to the County for credit to its general fund as commission for the services of the County Assessor. Any
intervening end to an annual or biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not changing
the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of legislative appropriation may require.

8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this Contract are
also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of precedence and any
limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.
a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted accounting principles full,
true and compiete records, agreements, books, and documents as are necessary to fully disclose to the other party,
the State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient
information to determine compliance with any applicable regulations and statutes.
b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer related or
otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and practices of the party, financial
statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product shall be subject, at any
reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office or location where such
records may be found, with or without notice by the other party, the State Auditor, Employment Security, the
Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General's Office or its Fraud Control
Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding, the relevant federal agency, the
Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector General, or any of their
authorized representatives. '
¢. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be retained by
each party for a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal funds are used in this Contract, The
retention period runs from the date of termination of this Contract, Retention time shall be extended when an audit
is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably mecessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any
administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall be deemed a
breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the parties shall not be
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including but not limited to
actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs.

11, LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability
limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shail not be subject to punitive damages. To the extent
applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shail be Iimited by NRS 353.260 and NRS 354.626.

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented from
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military authority,
act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods,
winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an
excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the
intervening cause ceases.

FPage 2of4




13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may exist in law or
equity.

14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to
the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services pursuant to this Contract, each party is
and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Contract,
shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its
duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership
or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any
liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency
or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the
Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such party of any of its
rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of faw or
equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the nonenforceability of such provision
shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under this
Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law or this Contract, any
reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, biue prints, plans, maps, data, system
designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents or
drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in performance of its obligations under this
Contract shall be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public inspection
and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made confidential by lawora
common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY.  Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or otherwise
required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are authorized by law
to perform the services set forth in paragraph (6).

22, GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall
be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties consent to the jurisdiction
of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.

FPage Jofd




23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s) constitute the
entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the
subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to
amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and this Contract
shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of
this Contract, no modification or amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in
writing and signed by the respective parties hereto, approved by the State of Nevada Office of the Attormey General.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hercto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be legally
bound thereby. 3

STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES

By:

Date

Title:

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

By:

Date

Title:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,
STOREY COUNTY

By:

Date

Title:

APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS

Signature — Nevada State Board of Examiners

On

Date

Approved as to form by:

Deputy Attomey General for Attomey General, State of Nevada Date

Page 4 of 4




For possible approval March 2013 Treasurer Report




-LBTELEFLEOT 007 00" 00" LBZT 6Z EIT’9LO’'T 95 6E£6°0T8 -90°'96%'S9E‘E  -99°STB'LEE’DE SaNNE TTY TYIOL
-66°6T0"¥ES 00" 00" 69°5¢ €5 STT %2 £0°F8Z'6Z -55°€65°'€9 ~58°T58€CY NOISSIWWOD WSTENOL DA DEE
-SL TV LTS T 00° 00" -0S LET LE oo” 00" 00" -SZ ST 06Y'T IDAL0AE 'TINA DA 02T
LE"£68 00" 0Q-" 06°G9€°'9T LT ¥ET'9S 86 0ET L -09°TI9 55 -86'522 €8 aNnd BatE IIVD §.JJTVAHS 01T
-SE EEE'BFT 00" 00" -EE €58°€C 00" 9L LT LY -£8°0TT %5 ~ST E¥S LET SINVED TYYHIIEE 902
-LETSFT’STE'T 00" 00" -00" €8T 262 ST 3 oo” -£5°09¢€ -¥L 209 2ES'T MIWHAYE IHL 002
-zz zZ0’'e 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" -ge ' Ee0 9 aNns ¥¥¥d 06T
[N 00" 00" 00" 00" 00 60" 00" LAN I¥L 68T
~06° EBS’9F 00 00" 0o" 00" 00569 -60'528 ~06"€5L°9€ ONRE IE0CD HDILSOr LBT
-¥F €82'sE c0* 00" 00" 00" Lz 9 -T1'9ZL°6 -69°£95°ST INAGTOOY INADIANT SBT
-99'#¥L'€2 60" 00" 00" 00" 00° -00°98F’T -95'852°'22 INN0D IDINISIC 08T
-PETZPT LT ' 00" 00" 00" 0c* 1N -¥EreRLILE QEVOd NOIIVEMDEY ¥ dMIVd SLT
-2Z°906'L92 oc* 00" 80" [ 6L BI¥'¥E -98 899 TET -S1°569°09T FIMIS OLT
~€1°5Z9'86T o6t 06" 00°LBZ'T 00" z0°LET'T -6L' €15 92 -9E£'559°SLT aNnd ZDOTONHDEL S8T
-ZETE8S'¥9 00" 00" 00" 00" 9z° SLE'E9 -60°6¥S’S6 ~6% 606 ' TE 193a TI00HDS 09T
-$0° 050 SEE 00" oo 00" oo" 00" TH0 ‘92 -LT 6TG’56F -8B T09 59T TOOEDS DST
~QUTEEE'Y 00" oc” 00" 00" 00" -00'6£5 -00"¥8L'L LAN0D DO¥d 0%T
-05° 698 86T 00" 00" £EEGRTE 6T TES'TT ZP SSB°L -€8°0%8'9T -19°852°50¢2 YIMES FAIAIQ VINIDWIA O€T
-20 SLE'OET 00" oo’ 60" 00" 6E79ET'T -I£° 666 -0T"ETI§ TET ALLD WINISEIA A0 NMOL 02T
-58'982 9T 00" 00" oc” 00" FLULLT 00" -65°F9% 'FT TIIH @109 J0 NMOL 0FT
~00°000‘D0R"T 09 00" 0" co" 00" 00 -00°000'000°'T NOIINZITIEYIS 00T
-¥0°¥9z 200 T 00° oo- -Zh9Ps 19°£6€°ZT 627695 0T -92 9LE'6E ~99° F0¢ ‘586 WILSAS WIIVM 060
-BETE9'STLT 00" 00" 0S°LET LE [N 00" -SLTGLE'OT -€0°E¥S95L'T ANNd FEOIDOLLGTLINI 080
-08 %08 0S¢ 09 00" -00" 006’ PE 1N co- 00" -08"Z06'SIE SLOECO¥A TYLIAYD 040
-S¥ 606Z°2ZT 00" 00" SZ°80€°'6T o’ T6°0Z -06°655°'ZE -TL8L6 80T HOILISINDOY INIWAINDT 090
-65°06£'56 00" 00" 00" oo’ [ 00" -65°06E'S6 EOLAGES 050
-0 065 TEL 00" 00" SL°9T¥'2TT oo” 86°TIZ'Z¥ -SLTLETRE -86°9%9'€%3 IOTYLSTA ENI4 0%0
-06° 9L P0E 00" 00" 00 00" co” 0o’ ~06 " 9EE ' V0T ADNTOWAWT Z¥Id SEO
-90'869°LET 00" a0 25712665 S5 6FL"50E 29618 '9¢ -96" 056 '69€ ~58°LER 69T TJId 0€0
-00°ST 00" 00" 0g° 00" 00" 00" “00" 8T NOILAIILSZEY ¥20
0% BLSFET'T 00" oo’ ~6¥°E£50°08 TE909 €T £V I6E’'S -€€°55L %S -¥E°L99°8Z0'T SaYcd 0Z0
00" co* 00" ag” 00" 00" ce’ 00" XYL- EONYISISSY LNAOIANI STO
-¥E°€TL LSS oo 00" 0o’ 00" 81 ¥0S -B8°6S¥’'S -¥6°LSLITSS IYDIAEW INISIANT 610
-LETLBLILGT'S oo” 00" 9%’ ¥%3'682 §9°26%'EEY EY €EL760T -94°06Z 959 -66°5ZL'6TL 8 TEHENED TCO
007002 oC” 60" 00" 00" 0" oo’ 00 00T ¥OSSESSY HSYD ALLAd 506
00°000°2 00" oe’ co" 00" o0° 00" 00" 000’2 AJINEHS HSYD XLLAd %06
00T 00T'T 0o oc” oo 00" oo 00 60 00T'T HSYD ALLEd €06
0E 6EY 00" [N 00" 00" 00" 00" DE'6EF SNIOD dT0 I06
S8 BLTTITR L 00" oo’ -00°ceC 00T 00" 00" SZTEFF'90E’T 09 SERROZ’Y INNODDY 2D OHUYd SITHM 66T
00" 00" 00" oo” oc* co" 00" 0ot SETYS AILYEI0Ed ¥ A0 € B6T
00" 00" 00" [N oc” 00" 00" 00 Sa¥wDD MNVE SSENISNY 46T
08'9¥Z VLI'D o0° 00" -00°00G’00S [N 00" b2 004 1:] 9€°Z0F'€L9 9 INMNODOY dAT91 HIMLS 96T
TL'9%6 E¥T 00" 00" 00" €TL 865 -6T ETT’9LO’T -9%°6€6'0TQ TL'69L'P50'T 98B 905 'LLE MNYE NI HSYD S6T
[N 00" 00° 00" oo’ oo oo" 0g° Sd3 TYNOLLYMN ALIY E£6T
0" oo’ 00" 00° 00" 00" 90" 00° ADNCENSNT HITYEH 26T
00" 00" 0o” 00" oo- 00" 00" 00" SNIQTOH SBXYI JEANJES 006
[:1: co" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00° 00" DNIQUCH SAXYL JIINDESHNNR 008
6E 9%FT’S (TN 0o" 0g* 00" 00" 58" EF SYL’S ONTQTICH 1¥NCD IDIWISIA ¥6T
I6° 6297981 'L 06" [ 00" 00" 00" 0B 6E¥% € TT 98T EET "L LENUYW KENOK OHd¥Yd S11AM 161

HONY'TIE ONIONE N0 SYEISNVEL NI SEIISNYEL SUIHEDINOA NINCGL STICHANd SLNANISUNESIA ESLIIEIEY CEVMEOS "'IVE NOILJIHOSEC IoY
E€T0E/€0 HOd

LATHS ONIDNYIVY ATHINOW

ONILNAODDOW S.¥FTENSTILL

FAENSTILL ALNNOD ATEOLS

EPiSYIPT £T/6Z/¥%0 >uny

T @bea COTZYEL o 3xodey




abeg

ZTZTLY'T
00°SL6
95 6LT 52
£€ 806
6E°20E°69
TZ°00%
00°80¢
¥1°962°T
06°299°%C
00" 00T
€T 8LT
05671
00" 8L
00°69T
00005
00" 0S0°'T
00" 0¥

¥6 69T
SL° TSP
05" LBL
00" SL

00 %61
00 0%
0G ¥Z%
SL' 8§

00 %€
00°' 09

00 0T¢
00°0€
0009
00°0ST
00" 29

9L E0T
ST 91
00" 009
SL'6GE’T

9% ' 8%
¥6°S&
£e°L

86°5S

00°s¢
Q0" L¥2
S8°LY

JUNOWY

ET/TE/€
666666 UEBNOIUL T

£1/ze/¢
€I/9T/¢
€T/ST/¢€
£I/%0/€
€ET/T0/E
€1/22/2
€1/22/¢
€1/2¢/€
€1/2Z/¢
€1/28/¢
€1/28/¢
€1/2%/¢
£€1/zZ/¢
€T/22/¢
£1/22/¢
gtr/ee/e
cT/ze/e
£1/22/¢
€1/22/¢
€r/zZZ/¢€
£1/22/¢
£T/2Z/€
£T/22/¢€
£€1/80/¢
€I/80/¢€
£T/80/€
£1/80/€
€T/80/¢
£€1/80/¢
£1/80/¢
£€T/80G/¢
£1/80/¢
€1/2z/2
£1/22/e
£1/2z/2
€T/52/1
€T1/52/1
€ET/SE/T
€T/TT/T
ET/E€0/T
2I/0E€/1T
ZT/0T/8
TT/¥0/TT
TT/1e/%
oT/LE/8
01/21/%
60/%0/21T
60/0Z/1T
60/9T/1
80/1T0/L
80/T0/L
80/6T/9
80/81T/¢€
LO/BT/2T

23eg YOSUD
- 00/00/0

6LLGS9G6GTH/HILHE 15 AHN
LZZPH DOSSY ¥UHIHDHIA HIIA
6LLS9S6STH/UILEE IS AHN
6LLSOGESTY/HTLAY IS AHN
GLLS9GESTY/HTLHAY 18 AHN
6LL59S6STH/UTILAY L5 AEN
DNI S¥00L ALID YWINIDIIA
ONI 599 HHEHL

AAYH ' qICAAVLS

DNI TTOMLNOD LSHd YHIAIS
NINGHIYY ACQNVY

KW YIaNYS ‘ay¥Qdavd

d OTAHNY 'INIJLHEI

IS ® SOIHAYYD HJIS EHL NO
¥ SAHIHD ¥ JAAIUHEHS VIYAHN
d HIASOr ‘'WANLSITIEDW

¥ OIAVIDO ‘WISEID

Igor ‘SNISnOD

(DAY HTIDINCGYHD MDOLSHOD
d SHTIVHD TII¥IADI0D
YOID

SIMET LLODS ‘TIIHddNdg

ONI ANVAWOD d3IdYE 904
ONI Sdn0L ALID YINIDUIA
W YUANYS ‘adocdavd

d CTAONY ‘INTdLAd

SAHTIHD HI¥IA AHN NYTHILYON
ANYIA ANNEL ‘HOYLOH

NHOD ‘ENSHEILNA

YANIT ‘OTI¥DTET

ALLANNY ‘STHINYA

¥ OILAYIDO ‘VISHIUD

ONI SI10NAo¥d d¥AMOd HLIKWS
W YHANYS ‘g90id¥d

ALID NOSY¥VD A0 ALID
{DA)MEINED YOINIS 0D LS
HANAN ‘ TEYWWHH

¥ OIAVLIDO ‘YISHUD

HOL ‘SNOFIID

(DD)  ANVd0odEd HIVLS 19
SI¥OQ ‘¥HENAVH

&1 ANYdOdd SYDIUAWY

ONT I2IAYIS TVDET VOYAAN
HONEE LENHLEYOEA

INWHS ‘NOXIQ

¥id ‘ovdd ‘ACGNAED ‘HHEdTIRA
d 80o® DSH AETMOYD NILIVW
Ad3ISHT 9IMANT

MUY ‘DNITHAN
YNILSIHY ' LLnd

HOTYE ‘dHITEMMONd

AHIYA I NIAAA

SNWOT HWOH HJIMAYLNOCD
T SYANLIYd SED

sueN s2io1dug/aopusasn
woId

#I0OUD woxd
s3oalD BuTtpueising
DNIILNOODOVY S ddIENSYHIL

8C:1Ie:60

AINNCD AHYOLS

050006
T0G006
050006
050006
0S0006
0S0006
E6BEOY
gtet0¥
8¥8Z0¥%
ZE9TIO0T
SLEEOY
Z06E0Y
S68t0¥
0ZCEOT
0SZT0T
2¢TP0F
8ZEEOT
EETPO¥
5966

LZ8E0Y
0L900T
TLOEO®
ZZ¥00T
£68E0¥
Z06E0V
S68E0¥
LLZEOT
TZT¥0¥
ZBELECT
00TPOF
ELTVOV
8T6e0¥
ZELOOT
Z06E0¥
S89E0F
9ZLTOT
ce0voy
8T6E0T
Z2€800T
86866

LI0FO0Y
6¥6E07
63CT0T
T89¢0¥%
62600F
S¥eZ0¥
vyveod
6CVEOY
BLPTOV
90c0¥
£S0E0%
S6620¥%
S6TTIOY
6E6EZO0TF

00 96T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
0C 96T
00 g6T
00 Sel
00 S6T
00 SeT
00 SeT
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 S6T
00 Sel
00 S6T
00 SG6T
00 Setl
00 S6T
00 GS61
00 56t
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 Se6T
00 96T
00 G6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00  S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6%
00 SB1
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 SeT
00 S61
00 SG6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6tT
00 S6T
00 S6T

# uogaag Dsg queq

SWTL uny

£ET/50/%0
0S6LTEd

LBSEE dUd
¥8STL ¥d
TLSEL dd
895¢€L ¥4
L¥SEC ¥Ud
¥PSEL  Hd
ELO0SL D
89084  AD
€908L Mo
S508L MD
€P0SL D
Z¥0SsL Mo
€e0sL o
TEO0SL MO
gcosL Mo
STO0SL D
T66¥%L MO
0B6¥vL MO
686%L MO
986%L  MD
¥86%L  AD
08e¥L MO
eLe¥L AD
656¥vL VD
veEe¥vL D
e€6¥L MUD
SZ6¥L MDD
ce8¥vL WD
eL8%L D
0L8%L ND
698%L MO
LO98%L MDD
TE8%L D
S08%L MO
L¥L¥L D
T8S¥L MO
LTS¥L D
STSHL  HD
CT#¥L 2D
28Z%¥L D
Po0¥L 0D
866CL D
£960L MD
LZFGES  HMD
£99L9 MdD
¥IC29 MO
65%599 AD
BEEGSY AD
St9g9 MO
S$6809 WO
TE809 MO
CEF09  AD
0Zges AD
6ETE6S M¥D
# yoeud di

23edq unyg
toN aaodsyg




L 596'9ZT PTB30L

ZL'G86’'9¢EL :Te30] jueg

0T 0¥ 60/%T/21

80°0T0°T €T/62/¢

00°SLE £1/6E/E

SS 6I¥ €1/62/¢

69 6%P £T/62/¢€

00 SL £€1/62/¢

6V %LT €T/62/€

IE €56 €T/62/¢€

05°9220°2 €1/62/¢

¥6° T8 €ET/6T/€

66" %8 ET/6C/€

LY 0LS 99 €1/62/¢€
Jjunouy 20 Ho=2UD

ET/TE/E - 00/00/0
666666 UBNOIUL T #3 09D

s3o8alp) butpuelsing

DNILNNODOY SadHIANSYHIL

z =2beg

ALNNGCD AHYOLS

ATLIL NYDIWAWY LS9Id
0 HHE¥D ‘gEdH

LEZEZYH DOSSY HHIHHIA HUIA
SHNA NOINN/AWNDSAY

Y9I ¥ALAY SNI HSYM/dEddWE
0D SNI ®ATH DIAIDYA

¥YIL ¥ALAY OVIAY/0HA AWH
NY¥Id §2T 2VI1AY/GHd dWd
dNCHD "SNI ICAILIYH HHL
SZT "SNI BAIT TYINOTOD
INHAIDOV TEINOTIOD
mhbmmmmmﬁﬁ\mHHmm L5 AHN

smeN @aAioTdud/IOopusA

woxg
woxg

8C:T¢:60

£8£001
ZIT

TOS006
Z0%¥006
LOT006
£0E006
Z0E006
08006
00E006
102006
00Z006
050006

# uosasg

2WTJ uny

00 S67T
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
0  G6T
C0  S6T
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 SeT
00 S6T
00 9S6T
bag jueg
£I/S0/%C

0S4Td9

TTS992 dA
009¢t  H¥d
665EE  ¥g
86SE€t ¥4
L65€E  dd
96G€E  Add
S6S5EE ¥d
P6SEE  ¥Ud
£65cE  dd
265Ste  4d
TeSce dd
06G£E  dd
# sosyp di
1 s3eg uUnyg
:oN jaodsy




| 8beg

0Z269'655'TS | SES2'6 S | TOOEE § | ZE09L°ZC5 | 9 IOBE 5 | E500E 5 | 96260061 | 21 9BV ZES | GLEV6TS | €90908Y $ | 0C9ISO 5 | ZEVEERS | COGIT69 § | 06°0Z8ECS | IR EbITY § £5'0ZE'GEES | O¢ 68S'SLPS | 90°Z9T'8IE § | Tv10L ONVYED
Te'8EL'ST S| - st - 51 - 5[ - 5 TOBIOC 5 | EE9SE S |eSTe 5| TT9CE S WTL S |Egiy S| - slviesr 580769 S| vEL8SE S| - $|Treir’s s 1513 XW
T96EZT S| - s - & - 5 - 3 T{E9T 5908 S |OLT S| wrTE S [s9s S48 8| - RS sls5e8e 5| - S|ovees S 151624
Ly'996'78 % - H - s - 3 - g TELS60T 5| ZEBL8T 3 SVEIT 5| STELL’? S |6U8/E §|ZTese § 7905¢T § | vT'8r9E S| TEGOG'SE § YSSELTY § L5100 Xd
JSIA
L9582y § | SP'ESZ6 § | VED S | ZEODLECS | VEWOL S [ 62T S | 857ZEES & |GI6GEL'G 5| J6T5G S| 86 SGPEL & | SEOPRT $ | TLLZLLS | U9BS80 S |G EELD S |86 TSLLE $ | 9L€E0T6 5 | O67L9T'ELTS | LOTHO'DE § | JISNAIVIOL
by'SBETOY $ | 6TLZE6 S [ PED S| bSIBYLEZS | 96T $ OBTOE'ES S | 6S9EE6 © | SL159 § | ZL06L'El & | TOGEBT $ | IVOCCES | 6EOSBOC & | GBO0LLD § | AEOVLLT $ | T9LBGT6 % | LLSCCELTS | L9°096'SE § | €10Z/T10T
EETSY'T S99 S| -  si8l8L S |BYBEL S [6ZT S [Zi0E $ |0t HETEEEES A §JoET st $ 882 1198 HEES S| ETIr0T § | ov08 $ | 4014 1001
EEGYE'T  $ 199 [ EHE] 5]es9rT S fUIV0T S ZT0T/T10T
00202 S {09°E $ - 0 $|00Z S 6T 5| eroe s [ 0fE ¢|Zeo  $i9TS HEA] s | 0ET siTeg $ 882 $ | TS HIET3 si - s | oros H le103gRs
9€'0€ BIET S 997 HIEE S [ 82T I3 5[ sz0 HETEREY s|1T0 s 00 $[seT HESD HES S | 0s's S 6LTE 5| 1roe/orat
v9'TLT s [ SO s 9T'e B 8L HES s|610  s|tsw S| €90 HETEEIEE 5 ¥0T S sst & s90¢ B 15789 ¢ | otoz/edoz
HOSS3SSY
Er0I6'966 S | - S [ I062E § - S| Z0LILE § | UL658 | EL8OSELLS | €9 580TZS | VI'GEe' LS | EL6ZCTE $ | LZOZCY 5 | 68¢08¢5 | ev09Zab $ | O0°GOL VLS [ D0'ZEY'ZY § | 6L ECS 0CCs | OF FLE Z0ES $5°Z5'081 $ |SIVLOL LHOd3Y
(€6'1L) $ {9z'9) $ {£9'59) H paindag punjay
69759966 $| - $ | [96ZE § - § | TOZIFE § | vZ65€ § | ELBOSELLS | €5°¢B0TLS | VI'S5C TS | EL6CCIE & | €50CZP § | 6BCOBLS | GOOLESY $ | 0GSTVLG | 00'Z6Y'eh § | 62 €¢a 0ZLy | OETLECOES | ¥9'2L5'08T $ [03UNIAS WEOL
LO'OTEVEE $ - $ - [AECERY A - T B68LTTLLS | B6'CE60C | OETHZLS | VZEOBOE § | 6OGILY § |02 TLLTS | LOS6LLY | £9°0Z0VLS | €5SV0Cy $ | Z6'PBL'BIES | OETZE'TOES | TOpOY'SLTS | ET/ITIVIOL
vLSPOTBE § L9'6TE S 86'SLT°C $ 96BLTTITS | 86756025 | 9F TFC LS | PCE060E § | 696GLE'Y S |OLTLLCS | £9G6L LY 5 | CIOTOPES | 5SPOCY S | €6 PBL'BICS | OE TE €8s | LOPOF'SLTS | €107/TT0T
TO9EETT §| - g - H - $v0TYST $ | bZ6ESE § | LL6BT'T $ |SS0ST & |8LET § | 6¥9CE s vBar S[69'TE S IvDES  § | EUCBIT st S [Z8'8EEY S - ¢ | e0B0T's % | HOWdIVIOL
688y S BrvIS S 1965k S |oras s|15v HIEERS T6'51T S| T90T 5| 966LT 5 | 0628 LTEST IS SE96LT  § | ZIOE/IIoZ
€0T98L & - S - g - $]95924 $ | VPCESE & |066T8 S |SveL 5| IT6 $]90°0TZ o |E60E S |BOTZ S [9VOSE 5 [ ESS6 0F'86Z 5 | LT'OPS'T 6 - $ |80 TTE'E § leroagng
0TEWL’L S 65759 | PE6SE o | 0008 5 |SL0L 5| L6 $}56407 5[850E  S[BEOZ S |e59vE S [OFbE 5| TOSAZ ; [ e06z5 T S 83742 § | TIDZ/OTOZ
£3°LY1 3 1069 & 08'6 S| oLt sloto  sjtse s [sE0 S1690 $|i8E SIETT S| 6TE IR H 02’88 5 | 0102/600¢
0005 £002/8007
YIYNSYIHL
W10L %zYlv | UNdEAD | %9u/¥ | SAILIVN3d [toeqAeg [y).| Walua/adid WYL 0D HLNOA A¥1STOA VANl | 3N anl VIS nov dvd 850 HJS JOHIS | AIDISNANI | TvdaN3d
59T 9059£-100 | FOTPE-T00 100 007 [13H) 012 T00 [T3] 58T 010 0LT 090 09T 05T 005-100 T0D
£T0Z HOUVIA 30 HINOIN JHL HO4 VA OV

gL0Zuoien




For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading



Stoarey County Community Bevelopment
Business §

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0835 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office 29 April 2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the May 7, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

CAPITAL CITY WELL DRILLING - Contractor / 20 Kit Kat Drive ~ Carson City

SWORD, INTERNATIONAL — General / 420 USA Parkway, Suite #1035 TRI
VIRGINIA CITY KETTLE CORN DEPOT — General / 188 South C Street vC
HOT POT, LI.C — General / 420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI
AMERICAN ARMS DELTA -- General / 224 Easy Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
AIR GUYS, INC. — General / 9732 Pyramid Way ~ Sparks

BATTLE BORN MUNITIONS, INC. — General / 625 Waltham Way TRI
STEM, LLC — General / 420 South B Street vVC
PM SERVICES - Contractor / 3980 VZ CR 1712 ~ Grand Saline, TX

EB HOMES - Contractor / 687 Lucas Drive ~ Carson City

“rmoEMEPAR P

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A. NEVADA ICF, LLC - Contractor / 1491 Serendipity Court ~ Sparks
B. COMPLETE ELECTRIC — Contractor / 1655 Marietta Way ~ Sparks
C. RIMROCK DRILLING, INC. — Contractor / 700 Flanders Road ~ Reno

D. V.C.’s TREASURE ISLAND — General / 54 North C Street YC

E. COMSTOCK MOVIE STUDIO, LL.C dba THREE TICKETS TO PARADISE — General
150 North Summit Street vC

F. TRICO, LLC — General / 655 Peru TRI

G. ARROW REMODELING & RENOVATION - Contractor / 2889 Fast Valley Road ~ Minden
H. MOMENTUM CONSULTING dba FAST SIGNS OF RENO - Contractor / 1280 Plumb ~ Reno
I. BURKE ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 109 Shadow Mountain Drive ~ Fernley

J. ASSOCIATED CRANE AND OIL FIELD LOG — General / 235 London TRI
Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriffs Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor's Office




Valerie LeBel-Flatley to request the Comunission’s consideration to direct staff to
draft an ordinance amendment to Storey County Code (SCC) 9.16.30 to define and
include the Virginia City Highlands and Highlands Ranches as “congested arcas”.




Apr 22 13 04:28p Val LeBel-Flatley 7758479199 p.1

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submiited.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the weelk preceding the Commissioners® Meeting. (ftems received afier the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting:)

Date Request Submitted: Monday, April 22,

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, May 7, 2013 2013

Agenda Item Requested: __Trapping in Virginia City Highlands

This item is intended for: [} Discussion Only X[ | Discussion and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

[ ] Supporting documentation is attached X[ 1 No supporting docurnentation is necessary
Requested by: - Valerie LeBel-Flatley '

{please print name clearky)
Address: 2371 Cartwright Rd., Virginia City Highlands, NV 89521

Phone: 775-847-9199 Email (gptional): horsesval@mn.com

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

4+ .- -~ Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in 2 Window Envelope - - - - - —_—

For Office Use Only
) , i A Ca
Date Request Received: -22-1D | Received: { 1In Person E/Vza FAX By@
[[] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages ;Z Meeting date of this item: 5 / I

For additional information, please contact the

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon(@storeycounty.org




Vanessa Dufresne
|

From; Pat Whitten

Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2013 218 PM
To: Vanessa Dufresne

Cc: Bill Maddox; Gerald Antinoro
Subject: RE: Agenda Req.

I just got off the phone with her. A VERY nice and reasonable lady who has also been talking to the Sheriff and DA on
this. I'll approve placement under our policy and let’s go with the following language for the time being:

DISCUSSION/PQOSSIBLE ACTION: Valerie LeBel-Flatley to request the Commission’s consideration to direct staff to draft
an ordinance amendment to Storey County Code {SCC) 9.16.30 to define and include the Virginia City Highlands and
Highlands Ranches as “congested areas”.

She will be sending additional suppoert information after she speaks again to Bill and Jerry.

Pat Whitten R -
County Manager From:
Storey County Vanessa
) Dufresne
(775) 847-0968 (Office) Sent:
(775_) 721-7001 (Cell) Tuesday,
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.or April 23,
powered by: visionASP 2013
11:18

AM
To: Pat Whitten
Subject: Agenda Req.

Hi P-
This came through yesterday. Please let me know what you think.
Thanks, V

From: printers@storeycounty.orq [mailto: printers@storeycounty.org]
Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2013 10:11 AM

To: Vanessa Dufresne

Subject: Attached Image




JVnliSrusnd

Vanessa Dufresne
.

M R N _
From: Pat Whitten
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2013 2:13 PM
To: Ausscyn@aol.com; gantinoro@hotmail.com; Bill Maddox; Bill Sjovangen; Lance Gilman;
Marshall McBride
Cc Vanessa Dufresne
Subject: RE: Agenda Item for County Commissioners - Trapping in the Highlands
Hi Cynthia,

I had a long chat with Valerie LeBel-Flatley yesterday and approved placement of the following item on the May 7%
agenda as she had requested:

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Valerie LeBel-Flatley to request the Commission’s consideration to direct staff to
draft an ordinance amendment to Storey County Code (SCC) 9.16.30 to define and include the Virginia City
Highlands and Highlands Ranches as “congested areas”.

You are spot on as to how we are approaching this. Our ordinance regarding trapping (SCC 6.08) is solid in that it
prohibits trapping in a congested area. What we need to do is beef up ordinance 9.16.030 where congested areas
are defined. While I completely agree with her (and you) about the perils of trapping in inappropriate areas, even
more frightening is we haven't defined the Highlands 1's and 10’s as congested regarding the discharge of firearms
either. Hopefully, we can remedy this ASAP. I hope to see you on the 7t...

Pat

Pat Whitten

- County Manager From:
Storey County Vanessa
Dufresne
(775) 847-0968 (Office) Sent:
(775} 721-7001 (Cell) Tuesday,
' PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org April 23,
2013
powered by: visionASP 11:18
AM

To: Pat Whitten
Subject: Agenda Req.

Hi P-
This came through yesterday. Please let me know what you think.
Thanks, ¥V

From: printers@storeycounty.org [mailto: printers@storeycounty.org]
Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2013 10:11 AM

To: Vanessa Dufresne
Subject: Attached Image




. Pat Whitten
County Manager

From:

Storey County Ausscyn
aol.co
(775) 847-0968 {Office) E
(775) 721-7001 {Cell) [mailto:A
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org usscyn@
powered by: visionASP aol.com]
Sent:

Wednesday, April 24, 2013 1:58 PM
To: Pat Whitten; gantinoro@hotmail.com; Bill Maddox; Bili Sjovangen; Lance Gilman; Marshall McBride
Subject: Agenda Ttem for County Commissioners - Trapping in the Highlands

Commission Chair Bill

Sjovangen

Commissioner Lance
Gilman

Commissioner Marshall
McBride

County Manager Pat
Whitten

District Attorney Bill
Maddox

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro

Storey County

26 South “B” Street

Virginia City, Nevada
April 24, 2013

Re: Please Agenda: “ The legality of trapping in the Virginia City Highlands”
Dear Sirs,

Trapping has recently been a hotly debated topic in the Virginia City Highlands. When the issue
came up at the recent Neighborhood Watch meeting, Deputy Kern related that a trapper was
brought into the area by certain residents, to eliminate predators which were bothering them. There
was an outcry because of the possible danger to pets, children and wildlife. Complaints were made
to the Sheriff’s office which could not be addressed as it was thought that trapping was legal in the
Highlands. Now, upon further research, it has been determined that trapping is not legal in the
Highlands as it is a “Congested Area.” We were advised to ask that this matter be put on the
County Commissioners Meeting Agenda so that it could be discussed, and that the Highlands be
added to areas such as the River District, Virginia City and Mark Twain, where trapping is not
presently allowed, due to these areas being “congested.”

We also want to add that the Virginia Range Wildlife Protection Assoc. has tried to protect the
animals we all enjoy here in the Highlands for over three decades. It seems rather inconsistent to

2




allow trapping in an area that is widely regarded for its diversity of wildlife, with the assumption
that these animals live in area that is “protected.” We recall the effort by Mr. Gilman and others, to
introduce Desert Sheep to the range, and now that this effort has been so successful, it would be
counterproductive to have one of them injured/killed by a trap. This could also be the same fate for
a wild horse, deer, mountain lion, bobcat, or even a cherished pet. The absolute worst would be the
possible injury of a child. Animals and young children can’t read, and no amount of signage or
flags could protect the curious or unaware from harm.

"The greatness of a nation and its moral progress can be judged by the way its animals are treated."
— Ghandi

Thank you very much for considering our request. We hope the trapping issue will be put on the
Commissioners’ Agenda, and that trapping is eliminated from the Virginia City Highlands.

Sincerely yours,

Patrick & Cynthia Kennedy

5030 Fandango Pass

Virginia City Highlands
Ranches




April 25, 2013

TO: Pat Whitten
County Manager

COMMISSIONERS:  Bill Sjovangen
Marshall McBride
Lance Gilman

DISTRICT ATTORNEY: Bill Maddox
SHERIFF: Gerald Antinoro

RE: Legal Trapping in Virginia City Highlands (VCH)

It came to the attention of the residents in VCH that someone on Lousetown Road was
trapping. | personally am also aware of another individual on Combination trapping, as his dog
was killed by coyotes, and he wanted revenge. He also said he would shoot a coyote if it came
in his yard. There are different accounts of why the trapper on Lousetown is trapping. In any
case, the reasons for the trapping are irrelevant. Trapping itself is the issue.

When | learned of the Combination trapping, | called Storey County Dispatch. | was not only
concerned about the trapping but also the discharging of a firearm in a congested area. | was
told by the Dispatch Deputy that trapping was legal but the firearm, if discharged, was not legal
in VCH (I was told it is not legal within 1000 feet of another home).

| spoke with Sheriff Antinoro last Friday, April 19, at the Neighborhood Watch meeting in VCH
regarding my concerns with the trapping. He also reiterated that trapping here was legal but
stated it should not be. He directed me to Bill Maddox and Pat Whitten to ascertain how to
address these concerns and effect a change in the Codes. On Monday, April 22, | called Mr.
Maddox. He had not dealt with the particular codes regarding trapping. | had retrieved Storey
County Code Chapter 9.16 Weapons Section No. {9.16.010) Definitions. This Code defines the
term “congested area” and lists those areas affected. Neither Virginia City Highlands nor the
the Highlands Ranches is listed as a congested area. Mr. Maddox directed me to Storey County
Code Chapter 6.08 Animal Trapping Section No. {6.08.030) Prohibitions. It is a one-sentence
Code, very simply stated and very clear: “It is unlawful for any person within the congested
areas of the County to set or maintain a trap.”

Herein lies the discrepancy. Why isn’t VCH designated as a “congested area” in Chapter
9.16.010? It appears people do understand this to be a congested area regarding firearms.
There have been congested area signs in VCH in the past stating it was a congested




area and that the discharging of a firearm was unlawful. We live in a rural, residential
community. We have many homes here. We have children, pets and an abundance of wildlife
that the majority of us appreciates and enjoys. We didn’t move here to kill the wildlife and put
anyone in harm’s way. Trapping in this community is extremely dangerous and totally
inappropriate. The same Code that protects us from an errant bullet must also protect us from
the dangers of trapping.

Mr. Maddox suggested that | request that this issue be put on the agenda for the next
Commissioner’s meeting on May 7, which | did. Mr. Whitten called me on Tuesday, April 23, to
discuss my concerns and suggested that other people’s responses would be helpful in
addressing this issue which would be brought to the Commissioners to discuss prior to the May
7 meeting.

I am respectfully requesting that Storey County Code Chapter 9.16 Weapons Section (9.16.010)
be amended to include Virginia City Highlands (the one- and ten-acre lots), as well as the
Highland Ranches (40-acre lots) as a congested area.

Thank you for your assistance.

Valerie LeBel-Flatley
2371 Cartwright Rd.
Virginia City Highlands
847-9199




Regarding possible adjustments to the Sheriff Tentative Budget and reorganization of
Community Services Program.




Vanessa Dufresne

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Hugh Gallagher

Monday, April 29, 2013 1.32 PM
Pat Whitten; Vanessa Dufresne
Discussion/Action

Discussion possible action regarding possible adjustments to the Sheriff Tenative Budget and reorganization of

Community Services Program.

Hugh Gallagher
Storey County Comptroller
PO BOX 432

Virginia City, NV 89440

Office: 775-847-1006
Cell: 775-291-4508
Fax: 775-847-1151

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




{00U2S PAEA YRINOH U93URD MY s, Ale 1S ‘Aseaqr] ‘sydAjBoniag ‘pund poddng Ajlunwiwo) ‘3yyq ‘dASH

uiem ] ey Joj asuelsisse uopeledald Juei

AeQ ssauasemy 101UDS
ujem] Jen

POOAI0T

A

:3n0 JYSIN |euonieN

spuejysiH
ulem] yiew
POOMYI0]

A
:yorem pooysoqydiaN

pleog Je1ua) ALUNWILWOo)

121U Aunwiwo)
J3IU3D) J01UDS Utem] YIeln

poOOM207 10§ SDURISISSY UoIleledald JuelD

sheg dn ues(D Alunwiwo)
utem] JJew

poomyo0oT

A

1unyH 8383 1o35e3

:SJUQA] _m_uwnm

spuejy3iH

pPooMYI0T

ulem e

A

:3Y3is1anQ dled

pJeogq 123ua) Ajunwiwo)

Jaua) Ajunwwo)
421U JOIUa§ POOMYIOT

Ajjiqisuodsay Jo sesle |ejuswepund

(sweisBoud $,010uUnUY PUBYS S,U0S10Q Auag suiquio))

UDIHYAN 1ed JoSeuey Arunod
uoIssiwo) Ajunod Aalols
Juswuedaq yoeasng AHunwwo)
Apunon Asa0ls

aoueysissy Aepljoy
weagold aied 9pn

YI1EAA {EDPIIA 101UDG
uoljeriodsuel] J101U3g
jueg pood sy
swelgolducinguisiq pood
S|9aYAn UO S[ESIY
swesgodd youn
:swesdouad 101uds

S2IIAIBS UBWINH pue YljesH

pooMy 0]

ulem] ey
rpuedxzy
159y Alunuwiw o)

JBIUY JOIURS YA




Direction concerning any further action regarding First Judicial District Court
Order on Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment in Case No. 12 RP 00004 1E, CRA
vs Storey County and Comstock Mining Inc.




f—

LB o N R o . . A g

e 0 3 Y L B W N

FILED

13 APR 24 P2:4S
VAR DT R
siﬁéi": B if
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF STOREY
COMSTOCK RESIDENTS CASE NO. 12 RP 00004 1E
ASSOCIATION,
DEPT. 2
Plaintiffs,
VS. ORDER ON CROSS-MOTIONS FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT
STOREY COUNTY; COMSTOCK
MINING INC,
Defendants. I
Background
Comstock Residents Association (CRA) sued to enforce Storey County’s
(Storey) Special Use Permit 2000-222-A (SUP). SUP condition 5 prohibited

CMI from using large haul trucks on Highway 342. Specifically condition 5
stated: “Ore will be delivered from the Billy the Kid and Lucerne Pit in 10-wheel
dump trucks and delivered to the site in American Flat approximately two (2)
miles via off-road access roads. There will be no trucking from the pit to the
process facility on the State Highway.”

After CRA filed suit, Storey amended the SUP, deleting the no-use-of-the
highway condition. CRA amended its complaint to challenge Storey’s
amendment of condition 5. The crux of CRA’s amended complaint is that Storey
deleted the no-use-of-the highway condition based upon advice from the Storey

District Attorney that Storey lacks authority to impose the no-use-of-the




E R

w00 - SN ta

10
i
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

highway condition. CRA moved for summary judgment. Comstock Mining, Inc.
(CMI) opposed CRA’s summary judgment motion and filed a cross-motion for
summary judgment. Storey joined in CMI's opposition and cross-motion. All
parties filed reply briefs.

CRA alleges three causes of action. The first cause of action seeks a
declaratory judgment that Storey had authority to impose the no-use-of-the
highway condition when it adopted condition 5 in 2004. Storey agrees CRA is
entitled to a decision on this issue. The second cause of action seeks a
declaratory judgment that the Storey manager amended condition 5 by letter
dated August 8, 2012, The third cause of action seeks a declaratory judgment
that Storey violated the law in amending condition 5, and an injunction
precluding CMI from using the highway to haul ore.

The parties agree there is no genuine issue of material fact and therefore the

case is appropriate for summary judgment under NRCP 56(c).

Discussion
Authorily to impose the no-use-of-the-highway condifion

The court concludes Storey had authority to impose the no-use-of-the-
highway condition.

Storey argues NRS 484A.400 and 484A.320 prohibit Storey from imposing
the no-use-of-the-highway condition in the SUP. NRS 484A.400(3) prohibits a
local authority from enacting an ordinance governing or providing certain
things. NRS 484A.420 authorizes local authorities to adopt regulations in the
reasonable exercise of their police powers, by ordinance.

“['TThe word ‘ordinance’ is limited in its application to the acts or regulations
in the nature of local laws, passed by the proper assembly or governing body of
the corporation. An ‘ordinance’ means a local law prescribing a general and

permanent rule. An ordinance is in the nature of a local statute. The word




[\

R = I s R~ T ¥ S - N VS

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

‘ordinance,’ as applicable to the action of a municipal corporation, should be
deemed to mean local laws passed by the governing body. (Citations omitted).™

Neither the SUP nor the no-use-of-the highway condition is a law. Neither
was intended by the Storey commissioners to be a law or passed in conformance
with ordinance procedures. Neither prescribes a general and permanent rule.
Rather, the SUP and the special condition apply to a single entity, CMI; and to
CMI only to the extent of its operation under the SUP. In other words neither
the SUP nor the no-use-of-the highway condition interferes with CMI’s, or any
other person or entity’s, right to run haul trucks on the state highway, with this
single limited exception: CMI cannot, as a condition of Storey’s grant fo it of the
SUP, transport ore from the Billy the Kid and Lucerne Pit in 10-wheel durnp
trucks to American Flat on the state highway. The no-use-of-the highway
condition does not regulate the state highway; it imposes a condition in
exchange for the granting of the SUP.

Neither the SUP nor the no-use-of-the highway condition governs or
provides for the things prohibited in NRS 484A.400, or adopts regulations for
the highway as provided in NRS 484A.420. Neither of these statutes prohibits
Storey from imposing the no-use-of-the-highway condition in the SUP.

As CMI points out in its opposition and cross-motion, state law authorizes
counties to regulate and restrict land improvement for the purpose of
promoting health, safety, or the general welfare of the community.* As CMI also
points out, “There is no question that a governmental body can consider traffic
impacts and potential hazards to the public on a state highway from a property

development.” It is also without question that a governmental body can, within

\State ex rel. Davies v. White, 36 Nev. 334, 339 (1913) (Talbot, C.J. concurring,
citing Words and Phrases Judicially Defined, Vol. 6, p. 5024).

2Opp. of CMI to Plnt’s Mot. for Sum. Judg. and Cross-Mot. for Sum. Judg., p.
16; NRS 278.020; 278.250.

*Opp. of CMI to Pint’s Mot. for Sum. Judg. and Cross-Mot, for Sum. Judg., p.




b= o = T S T o

NN R N R N N N
® 3 A G B W ORB = S % o A &R omolo= 3

limits, condition a special use permit to address traffic impacts and potential
hazards.

The court does not have evidence that the no-use-of-the highway condition
was unreasonable, or that any person or entity objected to Storey’s imposing the
no-use-of-the highway condition when the SUP was granted in 2004 or during
the intervening years.

CRA is granted a declaratory judgment on its first cause of action. Storey
had the authority to impose the no-use-of-the highway condition. CMI and

Storey’s cross-motion for summary judgment are denied.

Alfegation that the Storey manager amended condifion 8 by letler
The court concludes CRA’s second cause of action lacks a factual or legal

basis. Storey and CMI are granted summary judgment on CRA’s second cause of

action.

Storey violated the law in amending condition &

In support of this cause of action CRA asserts:

1) Storey amended the no-use-of-the highway condition “solely” on the
basis that it lacked legal authority.

2) Storey amended the condition without consideration of the public health
or safety.’

3) Storey failed to provide personal notice to those citizens who would be
directly affected by the amendment.°

4) Storey based its decision to amend the the no-use-of-the highway

17.
“Amend. Compl., p. 9, § 48.
*Amend. Compl., p. 9, § 49.

SAmend. Compl., p. 9, § 50.




e 1y i e W

10
1
12
13
14
15

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

condition on a legal opinion that it lacked authority to so regulate CMI's
activities.’

The first, second, and fourth assertions are belied by the record. Storey
attached a copy of the transcript of the November 13, 2012 commissioner
meeting to its reply. There was no objection to that attachment. The transcript
indicates a number of persons spoke about the potential effects of the
amendment, pro and con. The motion that lead to the amendment included the
finding that the amendment will not substantially increase negative impacts on
surrounding land uses; and, the amendment conforms fo the terms, conditions,
and design of the existing SUP.® It is undisputed that one factor Storey relied
upon in amending the condition was the district attorney’s opinion that Storey
did not have authority to impose the no-use-of-the highway condition. But the
record demonstrates Storey considered factors other than the legal authority
issue, including negative impacts on surrounding land uses, and that the
amendment conforms to the terms, conditions, and design of the SUP.

On the third assertion, CRA failed to state what statute, ordinance, or rule
requires personal notice regarding an amendment to a condition in a special
use permit. Failure to cite authorities to support a motion constitutes consent to
the denial of the motion.’

CRA’s amended complaint requests a declaratory judgment that Storey
amended the condition “contrary to law.” CRA has not produced evidence or
provided a legal basis to show that Storey’s amending the condition “was
contrary to law,” Therefore, CRA’s motion for summary judgment on the third
cause of action is denied, and CMI and Storey’s cross-motions for summary

judgment on the third cause of action are granted.

"Mot. for Sum. Judg., p. 6; Concise Stmt. of Undisputed Facts, p. 4, § 20.
Tr. p. 29-30.

’FIDCR 15(5).




b =B - S = Y, T - U T N T S

T T S N S N N S SN X S —
® 9 & G R LR =S YV ® As e E SRS B

Under the third cause of action CRA also asked for an injunction precluding
CMI from using the highway to haul ore, In addition to the above-mentioned
deficiencies, CRA has failed to demonstrate a likelihood of suceess on the
merits, or irreparable harm. Therefore, CRA’s motion for an injunction is
denied in connection with the summary judgment in favor of CMI and Storey

on the third cause of action.

April 2 :zf, 2013

o, P

District Judge




o o

W88 =1 S tn

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b)}, I certify that I am an employee of The Honorable
James E. Wilson, and I certify that on this;_?i day of April 2013 I emailed,
faxed and/or deposited for mailing at Carson City, Nevada, or caused to be
delivered by messenger service, a true and correct copy of the foregoing order

and addressed to the following:

William A. Maddox Brian Hutchins, Esq.
Storey County District Attorney P.0O. Box 2366
P.0. Box 496 Carson City, NV 89702
Virginia City, NV 89440 bhconsultingllc@sbeglobal.net
Fax: 847-1007

John Marshall, Esq.

570 Marsh Ave.

Reno, NV 89500
johnmarshall@charter.net

A

Susan Greehbur
Judicial Adsista




Cause the statements required (NRS 244.225 and NRS 354.210) to be published in
the Comstock Chronicle dated Friday, May 10, 2013.




Storey County, N evad?gg -
| 'omOmmission Meeting Agenda Item Requiest; 29 AH ,”,; L9

STORE
The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy fot placerg%h' STIteTs, oLt
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in writingB¥nd

supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted. TY
The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be placed

on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: @ 7 MaLU\ 28\3 Date Request Submitted: Zofﬂp Ol Z@(&\

Agenda Ifem Requested: C/WI-;’Q “H/\e Stecremne U\+5 f@(iut‘l { QQI.(NRS -2 %ZZ@LJ Nﬁﬁfﬁ‘/{ Z@ 3
“—H5 vepublehed Ty Hhie Comstick, Chrricle dded Fridas ©#lag 2013 » —

This item is intended for: [ ] Discussion Only K Discussion/Possible Action (ayhe Board’s discretion)

[_) Supporting documentation is attached m No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by: Mo ¥ josef A plﬂi\( (%]

(please print name clearly)

Miess ©, O ok \FAZ. Virainia Ccty NV B1YY/P
Phone: Email (optional): O \P[pf\\l(ip\é) Wl KS 2@ LO\)WT ] =27

Please submit this completed form to:
' or FAX to:

%tgrg;x;ng Clerk’s Office Storey County Clerk’s Office
Ci 75) 847-
Virginia City NV 89440 (775) 847-0921

«— .. Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - -

Date Request Received: 4 . Q9. |2 | Received: [X4fi Person [ ] Via FAX By: bz
("] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages & Meeting date of this item: <, [~1/( 2

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org




Ambulance Subscription Program rates and federal requirements.




Vanessa Dufresne

From: Gary Hames

Sent; Wednesday, April 17, 2013 5:12 PM

To: Vanessa Dufresne

Cc: Pat Whitten

Subject: Agenda Item

Attachments: Ambulance Subscription Letter to Commissioners 4-17-13.doc
Vanessa,

Can you please place the following on the Commission Agenda for May 7, 2013:

Discussion/Possible Action; Ambulance Subscription Program rates and federal requirements.

Alftached is an overview document describing what the agenda item is.

This will need to be done as the NRS 474 Storey County Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners.
Thanks and if | need to get you anything further please let me know.

Gary Hames, Fire Chief

Storey County Fire Protection Disfrict

145 N. "C" Street

Post Office Box 603

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Office: (775) 847-0954

Fax: (775) 847-0987

Mission Statement: Be Nice, Solve Problems and Serve Community

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider.

This email and any flles transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named
addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have
received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that
disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTIO
145 North C Street
P.O. Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0954 Phone e (775) 847-0087 Fax

April 17, 2013
TO: Storey County Fire Commissioners
FROM: Gary Hames, Fire Chief

SUBJECT:  Ambulance Subscription Program

In order to meet all federal requirements to continue our Ambulance Subscription Program, we
must unfortunately increase the membership cost associated with the program. These types of
programs must collect the same level of funding as what is “written-off” as part of the
subscription.

in the last fiscal year we received approximately $5,500 in revenue from the ambulance
subscription program. However, we wrote off almost $20,000 in patient co-payments related to
the ambulance subscription program. Because of this situation we propose the following:

1. Increase rates and subscriber membership to assure that we are collecting the same
amount as what we are writing off.

a. Currently senior rates for subscription are $10.00 per year for the entire
household, regardless of number of residents. We propose increasing this to
$25.00 and $10.00 for each additional household member per year. There are no
other areas in our region that offer a senior discount. We would also increase the
age to qualify as a senior citizen from fifty-five (55) to sixty-five (65) which is
consistent with Medicare’s definition of a senior citizen.

b. Currently general membership for subscription is $25.00 per year for the entire
household, regardless of number of residents. We propose increasing this to
$40.00 and $10.00 for each additional person per year. North Lyon (Fernley)
currently charges $65.00 per year; Central, REMSA and Carson all charge $75.00
per year. We would limit this as a not to exceed amount of $75.00 per household
per year.

¢. Non program members with outstanding invoices for EMS transport will not be
allowed to join the program until said invoices are brought current.

“In accordance with Federal law and U.S, Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from
discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all
programs.) To file 2 complaint of discrimination write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.”




) _STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
O Bor 60
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0954 Phone o (775) 847-0987 Fax

d. For individuals that do not have insurance we would propose a $200 copayment
in addition to the subscription when services are required. Otherwise, their total
invoice may be as high as $1,400 for each transport.

e. We would no longer automatically provide this service for County employees.
They could subscribe, but would have to pay the annual membership fee.

There are currently about 400 subscribers. With that in mind, and these increases in place, it
would generate approximately $21,000 annuaily.

“In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from
discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to alt
programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue,
8.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.”




Special Use Permit No. 2013-002. By TRI/Colony Energy Partners Reno LNG, LLC
(McCarran, Tahoe Reno Industrial Center). Applicant is requesting a Special Use
Permit on APN’s 005-031-13, 005-031-12, 005-031-02 and portion of 004-154-21 located at
600 Peru Drive to construct and operate a liquid natural gas (LNG) manufacturing and
distributing facility and its ancillary uses.




Vanessa Dufresne
L

I L
From: Donna Giboney
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2013 7:33 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne
Cc: Austin Osborne
Subject: Commissioners 5/7 Agenda

Good Morning Vanessa,

There are two items for the 5/7 Commissioners agenda that have been
approved by the PC which are as follows:

1. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit No. 2013-003. By Con-Virginia Mining Company/Hugh Roy
Marshail (Virginia City).
Applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for the placement and operatlon of a portable temporary water-based ore processing
mill to process ore from an on-site Small Operations underground mine and a temporary shelter for the mill at APN 004-301-06
(approx. the SE¥ of the NEY of Section 20, T17N, R21E (MDB&M).

2. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit No. 2013-002. By TRI/ Colony Energy Partners Reno LNG,
LLC (McCarran, Tahoe Reno Industrial Center).
Applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit on APN*s 005-031-13; 005-031-12; 005-031-02; and portion of 004-154-21 located
at 600 Peru Drive to construct and operate a liquid natural gas (LNG) manufacturing and distributing facility and its anciltary
uses.

Austin will be getting you the staff reports for the packets. You have a
wonderful day and weekend.

Donna Giboney

Administrative Specialist

Storey County

Communily Developlment Depariment - Planning Division
170 70/l Road - P.O. Box 526

Virginia City, NV 89440

775 -847-0966

dgiboney@storeycounty.org




STOREY COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER.

This email and any files transimited with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. If you are not the named addressee you shouid not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-
mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail
from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notifed that disclosing, copying, distribuiting or taking
any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




APPLICANT:

PROPERTY OWNER:

PROJECT LOCATION:

REQUEST:

MEETING LOCATION:

MEETING DATE:

MEETING TIME:

STOREY COUNTY

Board of County Commissioners

Staft Report
Colony Energy Partners Reno LNG, LLC.
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC.
600 Peru Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center),
Nevada. Assessor Parcel Numbers: 005-031-13; 005-031-12; 005-
031-02; and portion of 004-154-21.
Request to obtain special use permit to construct and operate a
liquid natural gas manufacturing and distributing facility and its

ancillary uses

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

May 7, 2013

2:00 PM

I. KEY TERMS & DEFIN IT.IONS

1.1  Cryogenic Liquids. Liquefied gasses that are kept in their liquid state at very low
temperatures. The word “cryogenic” means “producing, or related to, low temperatures”
and all eryogenic liquids are extremely cold. Cryogenic liquids have a boiling point
below -283°F. The proposed facility will involve inert (not highly susceptible to reacting
chemically or being flammable) cryogenic liquids including nitrogen, and flammable
liquids including methane and natural gas.

1.2  Liquid Natural Gas (LNG). As proposed in this special use permit application, LNG is
natural gas (predominantly methane, CH,) that has been converted to liquid through a
cryogenic cooling process.

1 of 52




Staff Report ~ 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

II. BACKGROUND

2.1  Planning commission action. At its April 18, 2013, hearing, the planning commission
heard testimony from the applicant, county staff, and the public. The applicant provided
diagrams, photos, and maps of the subject property and proposed project. Discussion between the
commission, staff, and the applicant included project costs and funding, environmental and
safety concemns, access, zoning and land use entitlements, and overall benefits and impacts to the
site and surrounding area. There was no public comment or opposition presented regarding the
proposal. Per the applicant’s request, an addendum was presented to the commission; it amended
two initial recommended conditions of approval, including modifying agreements to improve an
adjacent roadway (Peru Drive) and adding performance bonding and protections for a neighbor’s
utilities during the construction phases of the project. The commission accepted the addendum
and those modifications were incorporated in to this County Commission recommendation.
County staff read into the record its recommended findings to be included with a motion for
approval. The planning commission voted unanimously (5 votes with John Herrington and Laura
Kekule absent) to approve the project in accordance with stated findings as recommended by
staff.

2.2  General introduction. The applicant requests a SUP to construct and operate a Liquefied
Natural Gas (“LNG”) processing facility at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The SUP
Application includes a detailed project description (Exhibit B) with explanation of the process
for creating, storing, distributing, and managing LNG, and operations procedures for fire, life
safety, logistics, and overall site management. To avoid redundancy, this report focuses on site-
specific matters and concerns of county staff, and expands on areas where further clarification is
needed.

2.3  Requirement by code and development agreement. This special use permit was
submitted as required by SCC Sections 17.37.040 [(I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone) (1999 version)]
pursuant to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Development Agreement (“Development
Agreement”) and Resolution of Similar Uses (“TRI Resolution™) and SCC Section 17.32.020 [(F
Forestry Zone) (2012)].

The I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone (1999) lists “chemical manufacturing”, “electric or gas power
generating plants” and “other uses similar to the above to be uses which require a special use
permit. Pursuant to the Development Agreement, uses listed in the TRI Resolution are also
considered as allowable in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center as classified therein. The TRI
Resolution lists energy production from geothermal, petroleum, solar, and wind sources as
requiring a special use permit (p.11). The F Forestry Zone (2012) lists renewable, low-impact
commercial energy production and gas transmission substations and ancillary uses as uses
requiring a special use permit. The proposed use involving compressed and liquefied natural gas
storage and distribution, and the configuration in which it will take place on the site (see Section
3.1) is found to be of “similar use” to those listed in the zoning ordinance and TRI Resolution, as
applicable in both zones.

2 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

III. ANALYSIS

3.1  Project description. As summarized in Section 1.1, compressed natural gas (CNG) will
be brought to the facility from the adjacent high-pressure (700 PSI) Tuscarora Gas Pipeline and
converted to LNG through cryogenic cooling processes. This is accomplished by cooling the
natural gas to approximately -260 degrees Fahrenheit. At this temperature, the natural gas is
condensed into liquid at close to atmospheric pressure (not compressed). LNG achieves a higher
reduction in volume than CNG so that the energy density of LNG is 2.4 times heavier than that
of CNG, or 60 percent that of diesel fuel. This makes LNG cost efficient to transport over long
distances where pipelines do not exist. Specially designed cryogenic sea vessels (LNG carriers)
and cryogenic road tankers are used for its transport.

3.2  Purpose. Natural gas is typically stored in a gaseous state in compressed form. Typical
compression is between 2,000 and 3,000 pounds-per-square-inch. To increase its density and
capacity for storage and transport, it is liquefied. LNG takes up about 1/600™ the volume of
natural gas in its gaseous state. In LNG form, it is easily stored and is practical for use in fueling
stationary boilers/generators and high horsepower vehicle engines used in locomotives, mine
haul trucks, marine vessels, and over the road heavy-duty trucks.

3.3  Site description. The facility will be located on approximately 224 acres near the Tracy
Clark Power Plant at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The site will include phased cryogenic
LNG storage/cooling towers, processing apparatus, vehicle loading and staging areas, and
accessory buildings. Access to the site will be from Peru Drive which will connect it to Waltham
Way. The site is adjacent to the Tuscarora Gas Pipeline from which the facility will be served
high-pressure natural gas. It will be connected to the pipeline via a 10-inch line that runs from it
to a gas metering station at the decommissioned Morgan Stanley NANIWA power generating
facility (Figure 3.2). The inter-connecting pipeline will reuse the existing NANIWA meter run. A
new flow meter and calorimeter owned by the applicant will be installed at the new LNG facility.

Most of the facility and its principal functional components will be located in the 1-2 Heavy
Industrial zoned portion of the property. A cryogenic storage tank — in which LNG is piped from
the processing facility for short-term storage and then returned to the primary facility for
distribution — will be located in an abutting F Forestry zoned parcel. The storage tank to be
located on the abutting parcel will be surrounding by a 40 acre buffer area with no other uses.

3.4  Capacity and phasing. The site will be constructed in five phases. Each phase will
consist of one liquefaction train and required supporting infrastructure. Phase I will produce
approximately 180,000 gallons/day of LNG, with up to five phases of similar capacity for a total
of 900,000 gallons/day at build-out. Table 1 (Facility Capacity) in the SUP Application (Exhibit
A) shows this incremental growth. The site will accommodate anticipated phasing.

3.5  Setback requirements. Parcels zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial must be three acres minimum
with setback distances no less than 50° from the property line. Parcels zoned F Forestry must be
40 acres and setbacks are 30’ front, 40’ rear, and 15° sides. The primary processing facility and

3ofB2




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

the cryogenic storage tank, and the parcels in which they are located, conform to their respective
acreage and setbacks requirements.

3.6 Structure height. The proposed use does not appear to have buildings or structures
exceeding the maximum 75 height limitation in the I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone. The cryogenic
tank located in the F Forestry zone appears to exceed the maximum 35° height requirement. A
special use permit pursuant to SCC 17.32.050 and 17.12.044 may be issued to exceed this
limitation. There are no identifiable adverse impacts that may be caused by the proposed
structure height; therefore, necessary tank height should be incorporated into this SUP.

3.7  Access and roadway development. The facility will be accessed from Peru Drive which
is partially developed but not yet dedicated to Storey County by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center (Figure 3.2). Currently, the neighbor abutting the proposed site, Advanced Refining
Concepts (ARC), paved and maintains this portion of Peru Drive between Waltham Way and its
facility. This is a requirement of its special use permit issued in 2011. The Permit Holder of SUP
No. 2013-002 will be responsible to improve Peru Drive from Waltham Way to a point to and
through the proposed facility under this SUP. The portion of roadway must be improved to a
standard to which Storey County will accept it as a dedicated public right-of-way/roadway.
Improvements will include, but not be limited to, widening, repaving, and overlaying the existing
roadway.and developing necessary shoulders and drainage ways. Road improvement must be
completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the proposed facility under this
SUP. In order to protect neighboring ARC, at no time (including during construction) may the
roadway be closed or made inaccessible to vehicles and trucks for longer than thirty (30) minutes
in any one (1) hour period. Once completed to the satisfaction of the County, said portion of
roadway will dedicated to Storey County to become a County public right-of-way. Maintenance,
repairs, and snow removal will thereafter be the responsibility of Storey County.

3.8  Vehicle transport. LNG will be transported from the site by semi-tractor-trailer truck.
All truck traffic will access the site from Peru Drive. Approximately 18 trucks will service the
facility for phase 1 capacity. Heavy equipment and materials will also be present on the roadway
during project construction phases. As stated in Section 3.7, the applicant should develop an
agreement with ARC to share costs associated with mitigating impacts to portions of the adjacent
roadway until it is dedicated to the county.

3.9 Domestic septic system. The subject property is located outside of the TRI Center
General Improvement District’s (“TRIGID”) area of improvement. Installing a sewer line from
the existing network to this remote and distant location is cost-prohibitive at this time. The
applicant has requested a variance from the Community Development Director (as allowed by
the Development Agreement) to install a septic system and leach-field for its office facilities.
This system will remain in place until a public system is developed near the premises by the
TRIGID, at which point the facility must connect to it at the applicant’s cost. It is recommended
that the variance and conditions thereto are incorporated as part of this SUP.

4 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0066

Interstate 80

Tracy Power Plant

Figure 3.1: Vicinity aerial showing approximate location of proposed facility and existing area uses.

50f 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

Access easement
(unimproved road}

NANIWA
CNG Source from
Tuscarora Pipeline

Figure 3.2: The new facility will connect to the
existing 700 PSI] Tuscarora Gas Pipeline at the
NANIWA site (top/middle) which also serves a
reduced size and pressure gas line to abutiing
Advanced Refining Concepts (middle). A second
similar line (10") will be installed to serve the
applicant's facility. Figure 3.4 illustrates the project
site.

6 of 52

|
a‘
4
i
1
f
a
i
i
i
,
i
i
;
:
1
a




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
—-—AE-._..R o ﬁm‘ /
‘ }E TF - —
W= [==]
A RIS A ﬂl‘@ o DN
2 . S p
= ;Jx‘;q )‘i'
E‘—‘-—.‘.—__— = . (=]
; — H ¥
¥
e -
Hronos|
Safety buffer
area é.
=

Figure 3.3: Overall project illustration. Area around cryogenic storage tank will be undeveloped and used
only for a safety buffer. Details are shown in Figure 3.4.

7 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

Community Development
775.847.0966

EEr
Ay 1X‘ :I.V Y -" SMCHSMIAMIQ .
/ /
//7 £
7 ”fl'% W»‘W“RN
F i
, B
J”
[3
B = fox
#¥8p
NS
; 4 - -
128 1 8
E: B g
P H o
S s -
: £ :@ :
g . u
& bl bchusud ﬁ
= _ E ﬁééﬁuw% is::lul'ld A1
g a s S I POV ) u i L
EQ % 3%5 E mﬁﬁm
e 2R e
\ - =]
N/, N 5
. 8= u J
S e X : =
. &=
o \ g
3 (5
! [
'1 i}
: ‘:
i
|
!

Figure 3.4: Project illustration submitted by applicant.

8 of 52

PEIZETOL I PCEALG BLOWARAT AT Z TR THIL IV S{RARE ARPOMSL DRI OuLISY L




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

IV. KEY ISSUES

4.1  Emergency management. The proposal involves the use of large quantities of petroleum
and volatile compounds including CNG, LNG, and nitrogen. Details of plant operation and
emergency management are included in section 5 of the SUP Application (Exhibit A). The
tentative emergency plan was developed between the applicant and the Fire District. It includes
mechanisms and plans of operation for LNG spills with and without ignition; and fire and spill
protection during production, storage, loading and unloading, and on-site transportation. As
stated in Section 111, the density of LNG is 1/600™ of CNG. In such case that the facility becomes
unable to maintain appropriate cryogenic temperatures, the LNG will expand and may overcome
the facility’s holding capacity. The emergency plan approved by the Fire District includes
operating procedures, including graduated facility off-gassing and flare (Exhibit A, Application
Section 6.4) consumption, which address unusual circumstances.

4.2  Fire suppression water. The area does not have sufficient water flows and pressure for
fire suppression. The applicant will be required by the Fire District to install and maintain water
lines and pumps that will deliver necessary water flows and pressure for this purpose.

4.3  Specialized emergency training. The emergency plan approved by the Fire District may
require the applicant to pay for specialized training necessary for county fire and emergency
personnel to respond to emergency situations applicable to the facility. Specialized equipment
may also be included in the costs borne of the applicant.

4.4  Air emissions. The proposal is a “closed loop” or “zero-discharge” facility in that the
liquefaction process system is designed to capture and reuse all off-gases generated. The main
emission point of the facility will be the exhaust from a gas turbine that will power the main
nitrogen compressor. As stated in Section III, LNG takes up 1/600th the volume of CNG. The
facility will handle boil-off gas from the LNG by compressing it and sending it to the nitrogen
compressor’s gas turbine driver as fuel. In the case where the gas turbine is not operating and
other abnormal operations such as plant start-up, shutdown, etc., the gas will be sent o an
emergency flare (Exhibit A, Application Section 6.4) where it will be burned off. Emissions
from the facility must meet the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (“NDEP”) permit
requirements. In the event that there is an air discharge in excess of the standards approved by
the NDEP under the construction or operating permit, the applicant will provide Emergency
Management and Community Development a copy of any notice of the event or plan to
remediate the event submitted to the NDEP. If the applicant is required by the NDEP Bureau of
Air Pollution Control to prepare a report on the event, the applicant will submit a copy of the
report to Emergency Management and Community Development.

4.5  Spills and drainage. Site plans show adequate on-site stormwater detention and drainage
systems. The application describes measures that will be employed to contain potential
hazardous material spills and for reporting such occurrences to Storey County, the NDEP, and
other appropriate agencies. The plan will be submitted to the Fire District for approval and
Community Development and Emergency Management for documentation.

8 of b2




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

V. LAND USE COMPATIBILITY & ALTERNATIVES

The purpose and findings in SCC Section 17.37.010 [(1999) (purpose and intent)] states that the
I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone “is intended to provide areas for the development and operation of
industrial, distribution, and manufacturing uses that, by nature of their intensity, may be
incompatible with other types of land use activities”. The land in which the principal portion of
this use will take place is zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial. It is also located in a relatively remote area
of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and is surrounded on three sides by steep and irregular
topography. Because of geographic constraints, the abutting land will likely remain undeveloped
for the foreseeable future. The site is surrounded on three sides by similar zoning and on one side
by a similar land use, also located within said industrial center. Portions of the facility to be
located in the F Forestry zone do not include its principal industrial uses. They include storage of
LNG on approximately 5 percent of the land, with the remaining portion of the land used only
for emergency buffering. The storage tank and its ancillary systems do not appear to conflict
with the purpose and intent of the F Forestry Zone where the use is located. In addition to the
$5,000,000 of indemnification insurance requirement during operation, during construction
phases of the project the Permit Holder must maintain additional liability insurance for a
minimum amount of $5,000,000 to mitigate damage to its neighbor’s utilities and a performance
bond sufficient in amount to assure satisfactory completion of necessary gas line extensions,
water service extension, and road improvements to meet dedication requirements, Proof of all
insurance and the performance bond must be provided to Storey County prior to this SUP.

VL. PUBLIC SAFETY

The facility poses substantial safety risks if not managed properly. It is important that the site
conforms to the conditions of the approved SUP including the Fire District approved emergency
plan, and applicable county, state, and federal requirements. The site must remain secure at all
times with appropriate lighting, parameter fencing and controlled access, and other feasible
security measures. Specialized emergency management and first-response training must be
provided to county emergency personnel at the cost of the applicant. The remote site in which
the use is proposed is ideal for safety buffering. It is also easily accessible for emergency
response and in relative close proximity to major transportation arterials.

VI1I. GENERAL ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE

As summarized in Section 1I, this SUP was submitted as required by SCC Sections 17.37.040
{1999) and 17.32.020 (2012). The subject property zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial are located within
the annexed portions of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center; therefore, regulations and entitlements
under the Development Agreement, including the TRI Resolution and the 1999 Storey County
Zoning Ordinance, apply. The 2012 Storey County Zoning Ordinance has yet to be adopted by
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and, thus, it is not applicable to lands therein. Land zoned F
Forestry, where the cryogenic tank and its buffer area will be located, is outside of the industrial
center’s annexed lands; therefore, the 2012 zoning regulations apply to that land.

10 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

Community Development
775.847.0966

VIII. MASTER PLAN

The proposed special use permit appears to conform to the goals and objectives of the Storey
County Master Plan including “enhancing diversification of economic opportunities within the
county” (Chapter 3, Goal 1); requiring “preparation and submittal of an acceptable emergency
response plan for all proposed development projects outside the response parameter of existing
emergency response units” (Goal 5, Objective 5.1); maintaining “a healthy living environment
for all residents of the county” and “ensuring that land use permits are compatible with the
zoning map; master plan, and previous planning decisions” (Chapter 9, Goal 1, Objective 1.1).

The following table shows the existing uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations

for the subject property and its abutting properties.

LAND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION ZONING

SUBJECT LAND | Vacant Heavy Industrial including manufacturing, { 1-2Heavy
warehousing, logistics, and commercial | Industrial (TRI)
uses F Forestry

LAND TO Natural-gas to diesel fuel processing| Heavy Industrial including manufacturing, | I-2Heavy

NORTH and distribution facility warchousing, logistics, and commercial { Industrial (TRI)
uses

LAND TO SOUTH | Vacant Heavy Industrial including manufacturing, | F Forestry
warehousing, logistics, and commercial
uses

LAND TO EAST |Vacant Heavy Industrial including manufacturing, | 1-2Heavy
warehousing, logistics, and commercial |Industrial (TRI)
uses

LAND TO WEST | Vacant Heavy Industrial including manufacturing, | I-2Heavy
warehousing, logistics, and commercial | Industrial {TRI)
uses

11 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0066

IX. FINDINGS

9.1  Motion for Approval. The following are found to be factual regarding the proposed
special use permit under the recommended conditions of approval shown in Section X of this
report. A motion for approval should include these findings.

A. A special use permit for the proposed use under SUP No. 2013-002 is required pursuant to
SCC Section 17.37.040 (1999) I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone conforms to the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center Development Agreement, including the Resolution of Similar Uses (p.11)
approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners and accepted by the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, as provided for in said Development Agreement.

B. The regulations and entitlements contained in the 2012 Storey County Zoning Ordinance do
not apply to portions of the subject land zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial and located within the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center because the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center has not accepted the
2012 zoning ordinance as provide for in its Development Agreement with Storey County.
Therefore, the regulations and entitlements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance,
including said Resolution of Similar Uses, do apply to said subject property.

C. Portions of the subject property zoned F Forestry are not located within the boundaries of the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center; therefore, the regulations and entitlements in the 2012 Storey
County Zoning Ordinance do apply to said subject property; and, the regulations and
entitlements in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Development Agreement, including said
Resolution of Similar Uses, do not apply.

D. A special use permit for the portions of the proposed operation under SUP No. 2013-002
which will take place in the F Forestry Zone is required pursuant to SCC Section 17,32.020
(2012) F Forestry Zone.

E. The proposed facility, when conforming to the conditions of SUP No. 2013-002, will not
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements of the I-2 Heavy Industrial
Zone, in which the principal processing facility and its ancillary uses will be located.

F. The proposed facility, when conforming to the conditions of SUP No. 2013-002, will not
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements of the F Forestry Zone, in
which the cryogenic storage tank, utility lines and related apparatus, and the buffer area will
be located. The principal processing facility will not be located in the F Forestry Zone.

G. The conditions under SUP No. 2013-002 are at least as stringent as and not in conflict the
applicable federal, state, and county regulations. It is recognized that pursuant to the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center Development Agreement, the regulations under SCC Chapter 17.03
Administrative Provisions as adopted by the Board of Commissioners in 2012 do not apply
directly; however, it is recognized that the conditions under this SUP conform to the purpose
and intent thereof to protect public safety and area properties.

H. The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2013-002 impose sufficient regulations on the
LNG processing and distribution facility to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the
surrounding environment and the closest communities.

12 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

9.2  Motion for Denial. Should a motion be made to deny the proposed special use permit,
the following findings of fact with explanation why should be included in that motion:

A. The proposed facility does not comply with one or more of the stated goals and objectives of
the county master plan.

B. The proposed facility does not comply with the requirements of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center Development Agreement or its corresponding Resolution of Similar Uses.

C. The proposed facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will conilict with the
purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the [-2 Heavy Industrial Zone
(1999) in which the principal portions of the facility will be located.

D. The proposed facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will conflict with the
purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the F Forestry Zone (2012) in
which the cryogenic storage tank, its ancillary uses, and buffer area will be located.

E. No reasonable level of conditions imposed under SUP No. 2013-002 would be sufficient to
reasonably mitigate environmental, safety, or other potential impacts on adjacent and
surrounding environment, properties, and uses.

X. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The following conditions are recommended by staff to be part of the approved special use
permit. If approved, the conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county
department, unless otherwise noted.

1. Special uses. Special Use Permit (“SUP”) No. 2013-002 is for the purpose of
constructing and operating a liquid natural gas processing, storage, and distribution
facility and for ancillary uses including the use of necessary utilities, compounds, and
elements supporting the principal use. The SUP will be used pursuant to the advisory
motion made by the planning commission and approved by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners (“Board”) on property located approximately at 600 Peru Drive,
McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Nevada (APNs 005-031-13; 005-031-12; 005-
031-02; and portion of 004-154-21). The use will comply with all of the requirements
under this SUP and federal, state, and county regulations, including the applicable
regulations of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Development Agreement. Issuance of
this SUP does not convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does
it authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of other private rights, or any
infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

2. Principal and ancillary use. The principal uses shown in SUP Application No. 2013-
002 (as amended prior to this report) including constructing and operating a liquid natural
gas processing, storage, and distribution facility and ancillary uses including the
necessary utilities, compounds, and elements supporting the principal use will be allowed
on all portions of the subject property zoned [-2 Heavy Industrial. Land of the subject
property zoned F Forestry will be used only for cryogenic storage facilities, related

13 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

ancillary uses and apparatus, roads leading thereto, buffering, and security. Land zoned F
Forestry will not be used for the primary principal industrial uses under this SUP.

3.  Permits and expiration. The Permit Holder must apply for all applicable building, fire,
and grading permits within 24 months from the date of Board approval. This SUP will
remain valid as long as the Permit Holder and facility complies with the terms of this
SUP and federal, state, and county regulations. No construction or permitting for
construction may commence prior to issuance of this SUP and granting of required
grading permits. If circumstances beyond the control of the Permit Holder result in a
failure to complete applicable SUP conditions and construct or commence the use prior
to the expiration date, the Permit Holder may request in writing an extension of the
expiration date. The written request for an extension must be received by the Community
Development Department within 30 days prior to the expiration date. The application
must state the reason for the extension request. The Board with action by the planning
commission may approve a 24 month extension of this SUP and may approve up to 2
additional extensions for time subject to the consideration of the continued
appropriatencss of this SUP. If construction work is involved, the work must actually
commence within the stated perioed and be diligently pursued to completion. A stoppage
or lapse of work for a period of 12 months will invalidate this SUP.

4, Transfer of rights. This SUP will inure to the record owner of the Subject Property and
to the Permit Holder (Colony Energy Partners Reno LNG, LLC) and will run with the
land. Any and all transfers of this SUP to other persons, agencies, or entities must be
advised in writing by Certified Mail to the Community Development Department at least
90 days prior to assignee taking over the project. The new owners/managers must sign
and accept all conditions and requirements of this SUP.

5., Indemnification and insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land
will conform to federal, state, and county requirements; further, the Permit Holder
warrants that continued and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder
and property owner(s) agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives
harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or Lability, and
any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this SUP. The Permit
Holder must maintain satisfactory liability insurance for all aspects of this operation
under this SUP for a minimum amount of $5,000,000.00 (five million dollars). In
addition to this insurance requirement, during construction phases of the project the
Permit Holder must maintain additional liability insurance for a minimum amount of
$5,000,000 (five million dollars) and a performance bond sufficient in amount to assure
satisfactory completion of the gas line extension, water service extension, and road
improvements to meet dedication requirements. Proof of all insurance and the
performance bond must be provided to Storey County prior securing rights to this SUP.

6. Water and sewer. The Permit Holder may request a variance form the Community
Development Director to install a septic system and leach-field capable of serving the
anticipated number of employees for the facility. This system will remain in use until the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District (“TRIGID™) installs a

14 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

10.

permanent sewer system adjacent to the facility subject property. At point of completion
of the sewer system, the Permit Holder at its expense will be reguired to hook into the
new system, and abandon and remove the septic and leach-field system. The Permit
Holder must provide a municipal water “will-serve” letter from the TRIGID to the
Community Development Department.

Roadway development. The Permit Holder hereby recognizes that Peru Drive is
currently a non-dedicated road from the point beginning at Waltham Way to and through
the approach to the proposed facility under this SUP. The non-dedicated roadway is
currently maintained by neighboring Advanced Refining Concepts, LLC located at 611
Peru Drive (across the street). The Permit Holder of SUP No. 2013-002 shall be
responsible to improve Peru Drive from Waltham Way to a point to and through the
proposed facility under this SUP. The portion of roadway must be improved to a standard
to which Storey County will accept it as a dedicated public right-of-way/roadway.
Improvements will include, but not be limited to, widening, repaving, and overlaying the
existing roadway and developing necessary shoulders and drainage ways. Road
improvement must be completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the
proposed facility under this SUP. At no time (including during construction) may the
roadway be closed or made inaccessible to vehicles and trucks for longer than thirty (30)
minutes in any one (1) hour period. Once completed to the satisfaction of the County,
said portion of roadway will dedicated to Storey County to become a County public
right-of-way. Maintenance, repairs, and snow removal will thereafter be the
responsibility of Storey County.

Signage. A legible sign must be placed at entry of the premises stating the name of
company/organization, street address and number of the facility, and contact phone
number(s). This sign must be at least 2 feet by 3 feet in size. Appropriate signage must be
installed on and around the premises stating rules for entry and circulation (e.g., “No
Trespassing”, “Danger”, etc.). Appropriate signage for construction contractor(s) must
also be installed during construction phases.

Sales tax reporting. All material and equipment purchased for the project must as
possible be received in Storey County and the value reported as “County-of-Delivery” on
the Nevada Department of Taxation Form TPI-02.01 “Combined Sales and Use Tax
Return”. The Permit Holder must also report the value for all materials and equipment
(personal and rented) “used” on this project as “Use Tax™ on TPI-02.01 or TP1-02.02.

Spillage. Any hydrocarbon or environmental spill incidents involving 25 gallons or more
of any petroleum product {(e.g., gasoline, diesel, and hydraulic fluid) or 3 or more cyds of
contaminated material, or any presence of such material on or in ground/surface water
must be reported immediately to Storey County Emergency Services (775) 847-0950 (in
lieu of 9-1-1). Additionally, under Nevada State Law, the incident must be immediately
reported to the Local Emergency Planning Committee (Emergency Management
Director), Storey County Community Development Department, and the NDEP. The
Permit Holder must comply with the NDEP’s clean-up requirements and provide said
County departments a copy of NDEP’s completion of remediation. All hazardous

15 of 52




Staff Report - 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

11.

12.

13.

14.

materials incident clean-up and response costs are borne by the Permit Holder as part of
this SUP.

Site security. The entire facility must be secured by a parameter fence sufficient in
design to maintain appropriate security for the premises. Exterior accessory building
walls may also be utilized for this purpose as appropriate. The Permit Holder may top the
fence with three strands of barbed wire. Video security surveillance may be installed
within the facility but must not infringe or intrude upon on the personal privacy of a
residence.

Emergency telephone. Person located on the premises in connection with maintenance
and operations must be made aware to dial Storey County Emergency Services Direct-
Connect 775.847.0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1) when dialing emergency service from cellular
telephone. Emergency 9-1-1 still applies to landline telephones.

Emergency specialized training. The Permit Holder must provide and/or pay for any
special training for the Storey County Fire Protection District (“Fire District”) and
Emergency Management Department, when applicable, that is necessary for safe
operation and management of emergencies. This includes at a minimum training to
combat natural gas, cryogenic gas, nitrogen, petroleum, and other elements on the
premises and how they may behave or react during states of emergency.

Emergency plan. The Permit Holder must submit an emergency plan to the Fire District
for review and approval. At a minimum, the elements of the plan must include disaster
management, Emergency Medical Services (EMS) and First-Aid response,
transportation, and environmental protection. Specific items to be included in the plan are
as follows. The following list is not exhaustive; the county may impose additional
requirements as necessary. Requirements of State and federal agencies which fulfill the
following may suffice when documentation thereof is submitted to the Fire District.

Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information

Plot Plan (detailed drawings) of the site and access points

Site evacuation and emergency procedure

Emergency contact procedures, including for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and Storey

County Emergency Services

Facility shut-down and startup procedure

e Special training and payment for the Fire District and Emergency Management to
address site specific hazards

e Wildland and structure fire prevention and suppression

e Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging

e Fluid containment capable of holding at least 150 percent of the facility’s largest
liquid container

¢ Documenting and reporting of emergency situations, including spills and gas-off

¢ Post disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal

* Documenting and reporting of NDEP and other environmental permits and notices

16 of 52



Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

15.

16.

XI.

o Stormwater drainage and detention
s Facility closure

Environmental monitoring. Prior to operation commencement, the Permit Holder must
submit to the Fire District and Emergency Management Department a copy of the
environmental monitoring requirements applicable to the facility under the environmental
permits issued for the facility. The Permit Holder will include storm water management
measures on its site plan which will be submitted to Storey County Community
Development Department for approval.

Air emission reporting. Air emissions from the facility must meet the Nevada Division
of Environmental Protection (“NDEP”) permit requirements. Copies of the annual
reports of environmental quality, necessary to comply with the requirements of the
permit issued by the Bureau of Air Pollution Control, Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection must be submitted to the Community Development for documentation. In the
event that there is an air discharge in excess of the standards approved by NDEP under
the construction or operating permit, the Permit Holder must provide the Fire District,
Emergency Management, and Community Development a copy of any notice of the
event or plan to remediate the event submitted to NDEP. If the Permit Holder is required
by the Bureau of Air Pollution Control, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection to
prepare a report on the event, the Permit Holder must submit a copy of the report to said
entities.

POWER OF THE BOARD AND PLANNING COMMISSION

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The planning commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The planning commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the planning commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the planning commission for further consideration.

17 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

XII. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains 2 motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by staff in accordance with the Findings under Subsection 9.1. Those Findings should be made
part of that motion. Motion 2 for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of
the Findings shown in Subsection 9.2. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the
Board should be made part of either motion.

A, Recommended motion, Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 9.1 and
conditions of approval shown in Section X of this report and the recommendation by staff
and the planning commission, I motion to approve SUP Application No. 2013-002 to
construct and operate a Liquid Natural Gas (LNG) processing, storage, and distribution
facility and its ancillary uses.

Summary: Approve the LNG processing and distribution facility
B. Alternative motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 9.2 and
against the recommendation by staff and the planning commission, I motion to deny SUP
Application No. 2013-002 to construct and operate a Liquid Natural Gas (LNG)
processing, storage, and distribution facility and its ancillary uses.

Summary: Deny the LNG processing and distribution facility

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

Exhibits: Exhibit A. SUP Application No. 2013-002 (project description)

18 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Communify Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

Exhibit A: SUP Application No. 2013-002 (project description)

Storey County Development Application
Project Description

‘Tahoe Reno Industrial Center is pleased to present a joint request for a Special Use Permit
to place a Liquefied natural gas or LNG Plant on London Drive. LNG is a popular
alternative fuel to petroleum and is growing in popularity. The proposed project will
manufacture and distribute LNG.

Liquefied natural gas or LNG is natural gas (predominantly methane, CHy) that has been
converted to liquid form for ease of storage or transport.

Liquefied natural gas takes up about 1/600th the volume of natural gas in the gascous state. It is
odotless, colorless, non-toxic and non-corrosive. Hazards include flammability, freezing and

agphyxia,

A typical LNG process. The gas is first extracted and transported to a processing plant where it is
purified by removing any condensates such as water, oil, mud, as well as other gases such as COy
and H,S. An LNG process train will also typically be designed to remove trace amounts of
mercury from the gas stream to prevent mercury amalgamizing with aluminium in the cryogenic
heat exchangers. The gas is then cooled down in stages until it ig liquefied. LNG is finally stored
in storage tanks and can be loaded and shipped.

The liquefaction process involves removal of certain components, such as dust, acid gases,

- helium, water, and heavy hydrocarbons, which could cause difficulty downstream, The natural
gas is then condensed into a liquid at close to atmospheric pressure (maximum transport pressure
set at around 25 kPa/3.6 psi) by cooling it to approximately —162 °C (260 °F).

LNG achieves a higher reduction in volume than compressed natural gas (CNG) so that the
enerpy density of LNG is 2.4 times heavier than that of CNG or 60% of that of diesel fuel. ! This
makes LNG cost efficient to transport over long distances where pipelines do not exist. Specially
designed ctyogenic sea vessels (LNG carriers} or cryogenic road tankers are used for its
transpott.

Tri Center is perfectly suited for this type of operation. The project will be state of the art and a
asset to the County.

19 of 52




Staff Report ~ 2013-002 Community Development
Caolony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

Storey County Development Application
Project Description

~

20 of 52



Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project Rev i
Pracess Design Basis 121112012

b

%

Reno LNG Project

Process Design Basis

Rev. | Date Revision By | Chikd
H 12111712 | Issue for Conceptual Design MP M3
Page 1 of 19

21 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Coiony Energy Partners

1.1
2.2

2.1
2.2

3. PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS

3.1
3.2

4.1
4.2
4.2
4.3
4.3
4.4

5.2
5.2

5.3
5.4
5.5
56
8.7
5.8
5.9

6.1
6.2

6.3

; 6.4
: 6.5
! 6.6
8

7.
8.

Colony Energy Partners
Reno LNG Project
Procaess Design Basis

. OVERVIEW

FEED GAS...

4. PROCESS UMITS:

5. UTILITIES

5.2.1
522

5,10
5.11

6. BALANCE OF PLANT FACILITIES

6.2.1
6.2.2

6.3.1
6.3.2

Colany Energy Pariners
Reno LNG Project
Process Design Basis

8.1 METECROLOGICAL ...
8.2 SBEBMIC..isanimnins Sreasceerass e bta e

Community Development
775.847.0966

Processes Unlimited
Rev H
12112012

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION
CAPACITY ,uvie

LOCATION OF GAS TIE-IN,,,,
DESIGN FEED GAS ceevverrinns

LNG PRODUCT SPECIFICATION
LPG PRODUCT SPECIFICATION.,..

GAS PURIFICATION: .
GAS LIGUEEACTION
MNITROGEN REFRIGERATION SYSTEM
DEMETHANIZER . irrrrrererains
DEETHANIZER/WVIIED LP G PRODUCTION
VAPOR RECOVERY

STEAM serrenasirisrs
ELECTRIC POWER ........ .
ABOHN POWET 1eeiinrivsivcrviiiinvnte e ennaran
Emergency Electrical Generator.
FUEL GAS BYSTEM v vmesssmsnanmirsinsnnnnn
FiRE WATER. ...
PLANT WATER.
POTABLE WATER ..
COOLING WATER

INSTRIMENT ANS PLANT AIR ..
CRYOGENIC NITROGEN
FREEZE PROTECTION

LN STORAGE s vuveven
LING PRODUCT SHIPPING .
LNG Truck Loading ..
LNG Roail Loading
LPG PRODUCT wovvicanns
LPG Storage
LPG Truck Ltoading ..
FLARE SYSTEM ..oonneenn.e
HAZARD LEAK DETECTION
RAINWATER RUNOFF/LNG SPILL CONTAINMENT BASIM ..coaiiciimnsssviriniiissismnsss

e

Processes Unlimited
RevH
1211142042

UTILITY DESIGN INFORMATION = ' . 18

SITE INFORMATION/CLEMATE DATA . 19

S .13
............... SOy |-

22 of 62




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project RevH
Process Design Basis 12M1/2012
1.  Overview

Colony Energy Partners has commissioned a project for the conceptual design of a
natural gas liquefaction and distribution facility to be located east of Reno Nevada. The
project includes indicative pricing (x 30%) supported by cost input from selected major
equipment providers.

Major Design Parameters include:

1. The facility shall be designed to facilitate a phased construction approach

with four cryogenic trains producing 640,000 gallons of liquefied natural

gas (LNG) per day at build-out.

The first phase of the facility shall produce a nominal 160,000 gallons per

day of liquefied natural gas {LLNG) from a single train.

Heavier hydrocarbon fractionated from the LNG shall be sold as

commercial Y-grade LPG.

Gas supply shall be from the Tuscarora Gas Pipeline,

Gas pretreatment shall include all necessary processes to feed a cold box.

Pretreatment modules shall be sized to process the feed required to make

320,000 gallons of LNG per day; i.e. sufficient for Phases 1 & 2,

6. Facility design shall feature nitrogen refrigerant with the refrigeration
compressor being gas turbine driven,

7. Plot space shall be allocated to allow four 160,000 gallon of LNG per day
frains.

8. The facility shall include load out for both rail and truck distribution.

ok » P

141 Introduction

This project will construct a LNG production facility at the Tahoe/Reno Industrial
Center; Parcel # 2007-138 and one additional parcel o the south. The site is
near Clark, Storey County, Nevada.

The property is approximately 22.5 acres with road access off 1-80 and rail
access,

The controlling standard for the design of the plant shall be NFPA 59A.
1.2 Capacity

The project will be constructed in four phases. Each phase will consist of one
liquefaction train and the required supporting infrastructure. Phase 1 will be
designed to produce 160,000 gal/day of LNG. Phase 2, 3,and 4 will each be
designed to increase LNG production by 160,000 gal/day. Table 1 summarizes
the number of liguefaction trains and LNG capacity for each Phase.

Page 4 of 18

23 of 52




Staff Report —2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project Rev H
Process Design Basls 12114972012

Table 1
Facility Capacity
Ligquefaction Trains Capacity, gallday
Phase | Incremental Total Facility incremental Total Facility
1 1 1 160,000 160,000
2 1 2 160,000 320,000
3 1 3 160,000 480,000
4 1 4 160,000 840,000
2. Feed Gas

241 Lacation of Gas Tig-In

The feed gas will be supplied from the Tuscarora Gas Pipeline via a tie-in
connection. Gas will be supplied to the Colony Energy LNG facility via a new 10-
inch pipeline from the Tuscarora gas metering station at the decommissioned
Morgan Stanley Naniwa power generation facility site. The inter-connecting
pipeline will reuse the existing Naniwa meter run. A flow meter and calorimeter,
owned by Colony Energy Partners, will be instalied at the new LNG facility. The
inter-connecting pipsline will run from the Naniwa metering station to the LNG
Facility along an established right of way.

Page 50f18

24 of 52




Community Development

Staff Report — 2013-002
775.847.0966

Colony Energy Partners

Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Preject RevH
Process Design Basis 121172012
. 2.2 Design Feed Gas
Table 2
Fesd Gas Composition (Dry Basis)
{by ASTM D3588-91/D 1945 methodology)
Spot
Component MW Sample Design | Maximum | Minimum
1116112
lbAbmol Vol% Vaol% Vol% Vol%
i InartsiContaminants:
Nitrogen 28.01348 1.77 0.6572 4.0 0.4
Oxygen 31.0988 0.39 0.2500 1.0 0.0
Carbon monoxide 28.011 0.66 ppmv 0.0000
Carbon dioxide 44.0095 0.71 0.7745 3.0 0.5
Hydrogen sulfide 34.08188 { <0.5 ppmv | 0.000014 | 0.0004 0.000005
Mercury 200.59 Not Tested
Benzene 78.11184 { 320 pphv
Hydrocarbong:
Methane 16.04246 04.6187 95.9980 97.6 89.7
Ethane 30.06904 2.3454 2.1608 7.0 1.0
Propane 4409562 0.1400 0.1272 1.6 0.08
Isobutane 58,1222 0.008%9 0.0118 017 0.002
Normal Butane 58,1222 0.0097 0.0140 0.21 0.002
Isopentane 72.14878 0.0019 0.0021 0.05 0.000
Neopentane 72.14878 0.0000 1] g 0
Normal Pentane 72.14878 0.0016 0.0018 0.03 0.00
N-Hexane 86.17536 0.0012 0.0012 0.02 0.00
N-Heptane 100.20194 0.00086 0.0006
N-Qctane 114,22852 0.0008 0.0008
N-Nonane & Heavier | 128.2551 0.0002 0.0002
Total 1G0.0000 | 100.0000 NIA N/A,
Notes:
1. The composition is based on an howly sample of compositions between

November 2011 and November 2012. The profile of the gas samples fits
that of natural gas processed by an expander plant o recover ethane.

The peak values for ethane and heavier hydrocarbons ccctirred during a
single 7 day period of the sample year, when one pipeline gas feeder plant
goes off-line for maintenance.

A gingle outlier sample, taken in February 2012 gave nitrogen at 4.0 vol%

and oxygen at 1.0 vol%. It is unknown whether this was a sampling error
or a result of maintenance requiring opening of the line somewhere in the

system.

Page § of 19

250f 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project Rev H
Process Design Basis 1211142012
3. Carbon dioxide never exceeded 1.1 vel% in the year long sampling but the

tariff for the pipeline gas allows up to 3.0 vol%. It is unlikely that carbon
dioxide concentrations above 1.2 vol% will be seen as jong as the source
gas remains the same as during the one year reporting period.

4, The gas is not odorized and therefere the hydrogen suffide concentrations
were exceedingly low averaging 0.0205 grains per hundred cubic feet of
gas (about 0.2 ppmv dry basis) over the 12 month reporting period with a
single one hour outlier paint at 0.25 grains per hundred cubic feet (about 4
ppmv dry basis). Exclusive of the outlier point, the next highest
measurement for hydrogen sulfide was 0.13 grains per hundred cubic feet
of gas (about 2 ppmy dry basis).

5. The water content of the gas was also very low both as a result of the high
delivery pressure and low ambient delivery temperature. Delivery
temperatures ranged from a low of 25°F in winter months to a high of 72°F
In warmer months. The Jow temperatures may have been taken on a
static line. The average delivered temperature was roughly 61°F.
Saturated at 600 psig and 72°F, the gas can contain at most 1.25 |b water
vapor per million standard cubic feet (MMscf). The reported amount of
water averaged over the 12 months was 0.0205 Ib of water per mmscf.
The maximum reported water during the 12 month gas sampling period
was 0.13 ib water per MMscf. The minimum reported water value was
0.0023 b of water per MMscf,

Table 3
Sulfur Speciation

] Concentration (ppmv)
Species GClilass Spectrometer
Hydrogen sulfide <0.5
Carbonyl sulfide 0.49
Methyl mercaptan <(0.2
Ethyl mercapian < (.2
Dimethyl mercaptan <0.2
Carbon disulfide < 0.2
Isoprapyl mercaptan <0.2
n-propyl mercaptan <0.2
Dimethyl disulfide <0.2
Total reducad sulfur 0.48

Page 7 of 18

26 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

Colony Energy Partners

Community Development
775.847.0966

Processes Unlimited

Reno LNG Project Rev H
Process Design Basis 12r12012
Table 4
Feed Gas Physical Properties

Quantity
Property "Units Min/Design/iax Remarks
.| Cricondentherm o
(HC dew point) F -1187-94/-15
Water dew poink °F 25 /-20172 Bureau of Mines
Moisture 1b water/mmscf 0.018/0.021/1.26 | Bureau of Mines
Table 5
Feed Gas Conditions at Pipeline Tie-in

Parameter Desigh Minimum Maximum
Pressure, psig 750 500 1200
Temperaiure, °F &0 25 80
Flow Rate, mmscid

Each Phase 16

Total for 4 Phases 64

Lateral Design {+15%) 74

The gas fie-in and interconnecting pipeline will be sized to support the build-out

of all four trains.

3. Product Specifications
3.1 LNG Product Specification

The LNG product will conform to proposed California specifications (these are
not mandatory as the legislature did not pass the authorizing legistation). The
LNG product specification is shown in Table 6.

Table 6

LNG Product Specification
Imperity Specification Remarks
Hydrogen sulfide < 6 mg/m”
Suifur from mercapfans < 7.3 mgim®
Total sulfur <18 mg/m®
Carbon dioxide < 3 mole percent
Ethane < 6 mole percent | CARB
Propane < 3 mole percent | CARB
Water Nohe
Hydrocarbon None

Page 8 of 19

27 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project Rev H
Process Design Basis 121112012

3.2 LPG Product Specification

Table 7

Y-Grade LPG Product Specification
Product Characteristic gﬁ%gm“d“ﬂ Remarks
Vapor pressure @ 100°F < 208 psig ASTM D-1267-85
Volatite Residue;
Temperature at 95 vol% evap < 36°F ASTM D-1837-94
Butane & Heavier No standard ASTM D-2163-91
Pentana & Heavier <2.0LV% ASTM B-2163-91
Corrosion, copper strip No 1 max ASTM D-1838-91
Total sulfur < 1480 ppmw ASTM D2784-92
Moisture content for dryness GPA Propane
{Vaive Freeze Tast Dryness Test

) Nostandard | (conalt Bromidsy or

) ASTM D-2713-91

Free water content None Mo test method

4. Process Units:
4.1 Gas Purification:

The Purification Section wilt consist of up to six (8) units. { is anticipated that
each unit will be sized according to Table 8.

Table 8
Purification Units and Sizing

Unit Total Number Train Size
of Trains mmscfd
Inlet Gas Metering i 78
Inlet Filtration 2 34
Amine Treatment 3 30
Off-gas Disposal 1 60
Mersury Absorptlon {if required) 2 30
Benzene Absorption {if required) 2 30

The Purification Section units will be designed to condition the feed gas to ensure
it meets the LNG Liquefaction Section feed gas specification. The LNG
Linuefaction Unit feed gas specification is shown in Table 9.

Page 9 of 19

28 of 62




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reho LNG Project RevH
Process Design Basis 12/11/2012

Table 9
L.NG Liquefaction Section Feed Gas Specification
Component Specification
CcQ. < 50 ppmiv)
H.S and other Sulfur < 2 ppmiv)
Mercury < 0.01ug/Sm3
Benzene < 2 ppm{v)

Disposal of the HzS/C0; off-gas from the Amine Treatment Unit will be to a
thermal oxidizer or flare, to meet air quality requirements.

4.2 Gas Liguefaction

The LNG Liguefaction Area will consist of multiple units. It is anficipated that
each unit will be sized according to Table 10.

Table 10
LNG Ligquefaction Units and Sizing
Total Number Train Size,
Unit of Traing mmscfd
Gas Chilling 4 15
{3as Liguefaction 4 15
Demethanizer 4 15
Nitrogen Refrigeration 4 18

4.2.1 Nitrogen Refrigeration System

The nitrogen refrigeration system is an integral part of the LNG
Liguefaction Section. Nitragen is the preferred refrigerant gas due to
the system simplicity and the Jow cost of nitrogen. The system is
comprised of the following items:

4,21.1 Nitrogen Compressor with Gas Turbine Driver
The nitrogen centrifugal compressor is a three-stage

compressor with inter-cooling and is driven by gas turbine,
The gas turbine will bumn fuel gas.

Page 10 of 19

29 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

Colony Energy Pariners

~ Reno LNG Project
Progess Design Basis

4.21.2

4.2,1.3

4.2.1.4

Community Development
775.847.0966

Processes Unlimited
Rev H
12M4112012

Nitregen Compressor Aftercodler

The nitrogen compressor aftercooler is a water cooled
exchanger which cools the compressed nifrogen fo <100°F.

Cold Turbocomprassor

The cold turbocompréssor compresses the nitrogen from the
nitrogen compressor aftercooler. The compressed gas from
the cold turbocompressor flows through an aftercooler.

The cold turbocomprassor is driven by the cold expander,
which lets down compressed nitrogen. The hitrogen is cooled
through isentropic expansion to -265°F, which is sufficient to
liquefy the methane to LNG.

Warm Turbocompressor

The warm turbocompressor compresses the hitrogen from
the cold furbocompressor aftercooler. The compressed gas
from the warm turbocompressor flows through an aftercooler.

The warm turbocompressor is driven by the wanm
turboexpander, which lets down compressed nitrogen. The
gas cools as it expands isentropically across the expander,
and work is extracted from the gas; which is used to drive the
warm turbocompressor.

4.2.2 Demethanizer

The demethanizer Is an integral part of the LNG Liquefaction Area and
is used to separate the methane from the ethane and heavier
components of the liquefied natural gas feed. Some ethane is allowed
to slip into the demethanizer overhead, as allowed by the LNG sales
specification.

The demethanizer overhead vapor is condensed and routed to LNG

storage.

Page 11 of 19

30 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project Rev H
Process Design Basis 121112012

4.3 Deethanizer - Y-Grade LPG Production
The demethanizer column bottoms are further processed to separate the ethane
portion from the propane and heavier LPG. This is done in a separate
deethanizer column, outside of the LNG liquefaction unit.

The ethane rich stream off the top of the deethanizer will be routed to the fuel
gas system.

The deethanizer bottoms stream (propane & heavier) is a commercial LPG
product with a true vapor pressure of 5125 psia at 80°F. The mixed LPG is
routed to a LPG bullet and then LPG truck loading.

The LPG is a Y-grade LPG product that others will process into retail products.
There are currently no plans to odorize the LPG product.

44 Vapor Racovery
The vapor recovery system collects the boil off from the LNG storage tank, truck
loading, and rail loading and compresses the near atmospheric pressure vapors
to 450 psig for supplying the fuel gas system.

5. Utilities

The following utilities are required to support the process units:

51 Steam
There will be no steam production on this project.

5.2 Electric Power
5.21 Main Power

Electric power will be provided from a Nevada Power feeder line to a
sub-station on the property. The switchyard utility transformer will
reduce the utility line voltage to 4160V, 3 Phase, 60 Hz for distribution
1o the plant MCCs. The MCCs will distribute 4160V power to 250 hp
and larger motors. The MCCs will also have fransformers to reduce
4160 volt power to 480V, 3 phase, 60 Hz to drive motors less than
250 hp and external lighting (277V). The MCCs will also have
transformers fo further lower the voltage to 120V, 1Phase, 60 Hz for
the control system, building, and lighting users.

5.2,2 Emergency Elecirical Generator

An emergency electrical generator will supply emergency power for
building and plant lighting, control system, one instrument air
compressor, and other emergency users.

Page 12 of 19

31 of 52



Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Parthers 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project RevH
Process Design Basls 1211172012

5.3

5.4

55

5.6

57

The generator is an internal combustion engine using natural gas from
the fuel gas system as fuel.

The generalor is auto-started upon lass of power fo the sub-station,
and will generate sufficient power {o facilitate a safe plant shutdown.

Fuel Gas System
The fuel gas system will utilize the boil-off gas from the vapor recovery

compressors, deethanizer overhead gas, and make-up natural gas from the feed
gas line.

The fuel gas header will operate at 425 psig and ambient temperature and will
supply fuel gas to the nitrogen refrigeration compressor gas turbine drivers, hot
oil heater, and the standby generator.

Fire Water

A firewater storage tank is not required on this project, A firewater loop will be
installed and supplied from the potable water supply.

Plant Water

Make-up water is supplied from the potable water supply. The primary use of

plant water is makeup to the cooling towers plus 2 small amount required for
utility stations.

Potable Water

Potable water is furnished by the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center General
Improvement District to the site battery limit.

Water analyses have been performed on water samples and the report by Sierra
Environmental Monitoring, Inc.

Cooling Water

Cooling water will be provided by a multiple cell, fiberglass packed, counter-
current, cooling tower, with electric motor driven induced draft fans.

The cooling water will be design to provide an 75°F supply temperature with a
maximum return temperature of 105°F.

Phase 1 will include a cooling tower and two electric motor driven, cooling water
pumps, with one operating and one spare. Each future phase will add an
appropriate number of cooling fower cells and one additional electric motor

Page 13 of 19

32 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project RevH
Process Design Basis 1211172012

driven pump. Only one spare pump will be provided for all four phases of the
facility. There will be a single common supply header and single common return
header, with supply and return branches to each area.

The cooling water chemical treatment will be provided by a vendor supplied
chemical treatment system. |t is anticipated that the chemical treatment system
would include an organic polymer, 98% sulfuric acid {(pH controf) and 15 to 29%
concentrated sodium hypachiorite (bleach), The system would also include three
dosing units, using variable stroke metering pumps. The organic polymer and
the sulfuric acid will be injected separately ahead of an in-line mixer in a small,
continuous flow return line from the cooling tower supply header to the cooling
tower basin, The hypochlorite will be added from a chemical feed line ending
above the water level in the tower basin.

58 HotGil
Hot oil (Therminol 55 or equivalent) will be used to provide process heating to the
amine regenerator reboilers, deethanizer reboilers, and regeneration gas heater,
The system circulates hot oil by means of two electric motor driven pumps (one
operating and one spare} from a surgefexpansion drum to the hot oil fired heater,
to the users and then return to the surge/expansion drum. Two electric moter
driven booster pumps (one operating and one spare) are required for some of the
users. Additional hot oil circulation pumps will be added for future phases.

A stand alone fired heater will utilize fuel gas from the fuel gas system. The hot
oil system will supply hot oif at 550°F, with a return temperature of 450°F.

The feasibility of using exhaust heat from the nitrogen compressor gas turbine
driver to provide heat for the hot oll, instead of the stand alone fired heater will be
evaluated. If turbine exhaust heat recovery is utilized there wili still remain the
requirement for a slartup fired heater, :

5.9 Instrument and Plant Air
Two (2) x 100 percent, electric motor driven, air compressors (one aperating and
one spare) will take air, at atmospheric pressure, and compress it to 125 psig.
The air is cooled using cooling water and excess condensate is separated. The
plant air is then split from the main air stream which is sent to the instrument air
dryers. Compressed air flow to the plant air system is automatically shut off if the
pressure in the instrument air system drops below 80 psig.

Both air compressors will be electric motor driven. Either compressor may be
selected for operation during loss of electricity by the emergency power system
in the MCC.

The instrument air dryer produces air at -40°F water dew point, using two

regenerable drying adsorption beds. When a bed is exhausted it is depressured
and dry air is blown through the bed to remove the absorbed moisture. The wet

Page 14 of 19

330f 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project Rev H
Process Design Basis 12M1/2012

air exits the bed to atmosphere. The instrument air dryer is a vendor packaged
unit containing the dryer regeneration system and all controls.

An instrument air receiver will be installed and will provide at least 15 minutes of
instrument air capacity to allow for a controlled shutdown, if both instrument air
compressors fail,

An additional air compressor and dryer capacity will be added for future phases.

5.10 Cryogenic Nitrogen

A cryogenic nitrogen tank(s) and ambient vaporizer(s) will be leased. The
cryogenic nitrogen system provides an inventory of liquid nitrogen to be used as
make-up nitrogen gas for the nitrogen refrigeration system and for purging
process equipment before maintenance or stari-up.

511 Freeze Protection
Electric tracing will be required to winterize any equipment and piping that could
freeze in the winfer.

6. Balance of Plant Facilities
6.1 LNG Storage

The LNG preduction from the LNG Liguefaction Area is routed fo the LNG
storage tank.

LNG storage shall consist of a single double-containment cryegenic tank, with a
capacity of 2.5 million US gallons. The tank shall operate at near afmospheric
pressure with the LNG contents at -283°F.

6.2 LNG Product Shipping

LNG loading will initially be done using two (2) loading pumps (1 operating and

1 spare) drawing cryogenic LNG from the LNG storage tank. Each pump is
capable of pumping 700 gpm of LNG to either the truck loading rack or raif
loading rack at a pump delivery pressure of 50 psig (250 ft @ 0.47 SG at the fluid
suction temperature and pressure),

Product shipping is also equipped with vapor recovery for system boil off, tanker
cool down, and fruck tank vapor displacement.

Additional pumps and truck loading racks will be added for future phases.

Page16cf19

34 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

Community Development
775.847.0966

Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited

Reno LNG Project Rev H

Process Deslign Basis 121172012
8.2.1 LNG Truck Loading

8.3

6.2.2

The truck loading system is designed fo fill 2 nominal 10,000 galion
LNG truck trailer in one hour or fess. The LNG truck loading will
consist of six (6) independent truck loading stations (lanes) at facility
build out. Phase 1 will include two (2) truck lanes, with each future
phase adding up to two (2) additional truck lanes. Each Ibading station
lane will include a weigh bridge, loading hoses, vapor return hoses,
electrical grounding, meters, and controls.

The LNG truck loading system is a vendor supplied unit for each truck

lane with independent controls, which require a supervisory permissive

from the control roomtruck dispaicher prior to Inttiation of LNG flow to

the trucks. The truck loads are monitored by a supervisory controller, i
which autherizes individual shipments.

LNG Rail Loading

The rail car loading will operate on a spur into the facility from the
BNSF siding along the main rail line. Cars will be spotted by the
rallroad, who will deliver empty cars and pick-up full cars, There will be
two (2} tank car fill positions on the spur in the facility.

The LNG tanker rall car system is designed to fill one nominal 60,000
gaflon cryogenic tanker car, per car loading station in one eight hour
shift. The fruck foading system shares the same LNG loading pumps
with the truck loading system. The LNG tanker rail car loading system
is & vendor supplied unit consisting of loading hoses, vapor return
hoses, electric grounding, meters, and controls. Rail car loading will
be carried out by plant personnel.

An oplion for providing rail car unloading will he investigated.

LPG Product (Y-Grade LPG}

The liguefied petroleum gas {LPG) product is the LNG deethanizer bottoms.
Based on the design feed gas composition to the natural gas liquefaction
process, approximately 800 gallons of LPG will be produced per day per
160,000 galions per day of LNG. This product will not be odorized.

This light petroleum fraction will be shipped to a refinery or LPG processing

facility.

Fage 18 of 19

35 of 62




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project RevH
Process Design Basis 12112012

8.3.1 LPG Storage

The LPG product will be stored on site in a 30,000 gallon pressurized
herizontal bullef tank.

6.3.2 LPG Truck Loading

A truck loading station separate from LNG loading is included. The
LPG fruck loading station will include pumps, hose connections, and
vapor recovery.Flare System

6.4  Flare System |

Since the facility is located near the interstate, the flare will be an enclosed fype.
The flare, flare header, and flare KO drum will be designed to accommodate all
four phases.

A flare sub-header will run into each process area, and will be sized to
accommadate the worst case scenario as defermined by AP Standard 521 -
Guide for Pressure-Relieving and Depressuring Systems & NFPA 58A Standard
for the Preduction, Storage and Handling of Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG), latest
editions,

A small purge gas flow of natural gas will be injected into each train flare sub-
header to ensure the flare system is oxygen free.

6.5 Hazard Leak Detection

Each area will have a hazard/leak detection system, which will receive data
inputs from combustible gas detectors, fence vibration (intruder), smoke
detection, heat tracing power failure, and UL ultra-violetfinfrared flame detectors.
These systems may either sound the plant alarm and/or initiate a facility
shutdown.

The detectors will be installed at strateglc locations throughout the plant, with
emphasis on truck and ralil loading, which have a higher potential for leaks and/or
fire.

65 Rainwater RunoffiILNG Spill Containment Basin

Rainwater runoff will be directed to an evaporation/percolation pond. It is not
anticipated that rainwater runoff will enter the sewer system.

The evaporation/percolation pond will have the capacity to hold a 100 year storm
or 30 minutes of firewater at full flow.

Page 17 of 18

36 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Pariners

Colony Energy Partners

Reno LNG Project
Process Design Basis

- 8.7

Water Effluent Disposal

Community Pevelopment
775.847.0966

Processes Unlimited
RevH
12/41/2012

Blowdown from the cooling tower will be routed to the municipal sewer for
disposal, with emergency disposal to the evaporation/percolation pond.

7. Utility Design Information

Table 11
Utitity Design Information
OPERATING CONDITIONS MECHANICAL
System MINEMUN NORMAL MAXIMUM DESIGN
PSIG °F PSIG °F PSIG °F PSIG °F

Cooling Water Supply 60 65 70 75 a0 85 150 180
Cooling Water Retum (3) 90 (3) 100 (3) 105 150 150
Plant 80 50 100 70 120 80 150 125
Water

Potable Water 80 50 100 70 120 80 150 125
Fire Waler 100 50 1410 70 120 80 175 126
linstrument Air (2) 80 70 100 80 120 90 150 150
Plant Air 50 70 100 80 120 90 150 150
Fuel Gas 400 80 425 100 450 120 550 175
Nitrogen 80 80 100 80 120 100 150 150
NOTES:

{1) The minimum, normal and maximum operating pressures shown above are defined

as follows:

Minimum: The minimum pressure that should be specified at the inlet connection

to a utility user.
The normal pressure that exists in the plant main distribution

Normal:
header.

Maximum The maximum pressure that should be specified at the outlet connection
from a utility producer.

(2) Control valve actuators to be design for a minimum pressure of

60 psig.

{3) The return pressure should allow for 10 psi in both the supply and return branch
line to each users and 15 psi for the user.

Page 18 of 19

37 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

Community Development

775.847.0866

Colony Energy Partners Processes Unlimited
Reno LNG Project RevH
Process Design Basis 12112012
8. Site Information/Climate Data
8.1 Meteorclogical
Table 12
Meteorolagical Conditions
{Data for Reno Airport}

Site Coordinates, southern parcel 39°3332 72N and 119°29'26.26"W
Elevation, ft 4300
Atmospheric Pressure, psia 12.8
Temperature, °F e

Minimum Day Dry Bulb 5

Maximuyrn Day Bry Bulb 100

Winter Design Dry Bulb 20

Surmmer Design Dry Bulb ]

Sumimier Pesign Dry Bulb for Critleat Servige 100

Design Maximum Wet Bulb 66
Rainfall R

Design, inches/hr 1.1

Maximum, inches/day 2.9
Wind vt L e

Minimum Basic Wind Speed, mph (per UBC) 80

Mean Velocity, mph ]

Prevailing Direction South to North

_ West to East

Relative Humidity {Average) 50

Meteorological conditions are based on Reno, NV airport historical data.

8.2 Seismic

The seismic conditions will be determined from the universal building code
appropriate for the location of the plant.

For Phase 1 engineering it is assumed the selsmic conditions will be the same as

for California.

e s - PaggMgofds T v

38 of b2




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

CO’S COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC

FIRE PROTECTION PHILOSOPHY

38 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development

Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966
CQ,S COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC
Contents
1. INTRODUCTION covorcrmeisnesesmmmsssrsssssamssssrsssssssssrsissassssessosssrssssssoeees 3
2. OPERATING PHILOSOBHY covveusovsssuorasrsrssvsesssssrasrrssessssies essssresensos st stssssissnssssnssssssustsnessas rciast mosssvssuss 4
3. FIRE PROTECTION — TANKER LOADING FACILITY ooormsosicersctusstssssvesss 6
5. FIRE PROTECTION = LNG PLANT c..onvcmrmserssmemsrassssnssaseons T — 10
APPENIX Lucrviriacinerasesrrenssrnissisinrensses s s sesseseornsrsnssvsbtass 11 1
.

40 of 52




Staff Report —2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

CO’S COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC

1. INTRODUCTION

This document outline the fire protection philosophy intended for early permitting work. The fire
protection design will be developed during the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)
phase.

41 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

CQ’.S COLONY ENERGY, RENOQ LNG, LLC

2. OPERATING PHH.OSOPHY

The LNG plant will, In general, be unmanned during normal operation, except as follows:

»  Liguefaction train start-up

» Scheduled plants visits for inspection, maintenance, occasional operator rounds for
checks, sampiing and analysis, and field data records

» Response or follow-up of alarms and Emergency Shutdowns (ESD).

The key process data and atarms will be displayed at the Colony Energy office monitoring
station, The process data will inchude:

*  LNG tank level

s NG tank pressure

« Status of rotating equipment

*«  Trips

* Liguefaction trains process data, including gas treatment.

All tanker loading operations will be manned. The tanker loading operation, including cooldown
of the tanker, is subject to a written procedure permanently displayed in the contral booth.
Upon completion of proper connections between the tanker and filling station, for safety
considerations the driver will start the loading pump from the control beoth where he will
remain until the weight bridge display reaches the set point when the loading operation is
i stopped.

| The control boath, located at least 15 m away from the nearest filling bay, houses afl the
necessary controls including the ESD and telephone. Key contacts, including the local fire
pepartment will be provided at this location and the plant control room.

Whilst portable fire extinguishers mesting the requirement of NFPA 59A will be provided in the
tanker loading area and throughout the plant, the drivers are not expected to respond to 2
significant spill and/or fire event. incident specific emergency procedures will be provided.

Given that the tanker loading facility has a boundary with a public roadway on both the south
and west sides, and its small footprint, engineered protection is adopted to minimize the size of
an LNG release with/without ignition.

in developing the hazard detection and control functions, a strong emphasis is placed in
controlling false atarms that may unnecessarily burden the local Fire Department.

Passive fire protection, in the form of a vapor fence, is provided to confine the LNG vapor
produced by a spill inside the tanker loading facility.

42 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

C(J,S R COLONY IéNERGY, RENQ LNG, LLC

Compared to the rest of the plant, it is recognized that the tanker foading fadility presents the
highest probability of an LNG refease due to the inherent weakness of hoses and human factors.

It is envisioned that the focal Fire Departrent will provide the first response to a fire, LNG spill
or gas release.

43 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

3. FIRE PROTECTION - TANKER LOADING FACILITY

Active emergency response will be In the form of redundant HTD's (high temperature detectors)
and LTD's {low temperature detectors). Both can initiate the ESD within 10 seconds, Twinned
detectors are installed at each sensing point, with voting to activate the ESD based on any two
detectors reaching the trigger level.

The tanker loading ESD shuts down the loading pump and closes the ESD valve. The closing time
of the ESD valve will take into account the restdiing surge pressure.

Area coverage In the form of optical fire and flammable gas detectors will be provided for alarms
only.

The LNG vapor resulting from a spill in the tanker loading area may reach the fence line in Jess
than 100 seconds, Thus, vapor containment is required. This is achieved with the arrangement
illustrated in figure 3.1, A backfill s provide alang the fence line to raise the base of the & ft fence
by 31t, thereby providing a 9 ft vapor fence covering the length shown in figure 3.2. The wire fence
will be fitted with plastic inserts to confine the LNG vapor.

Under a spill event, the emergency response will give consideration to the following:

1. Driver actives the ESD and evacuate by the nearest exit

2. ESD shuts down the loading operation

3. Both the Fire Department and Colony remote monitoring station will receive the alarm
that ESD has been activated manually or via HTD-LTD

4, HTD and LTD remote alarms will indicate the nature of the event: splt with or without

ignition.
6 ft fance with Outside grade
plasfic inserts
Elevation of
tanker loading
grade

B

Figure 3.1 ~ Nine Feet Vapor Fence

44 of 52




Staff Report —2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC

LNG Spilt without Ignition

Under this event, the firemen are not expected to enter the tanker loading area. They will,
instead, stop the traffic and be on standby to use the two external fire hydrants located near the
southeast and southwest corners with fogging spray to disperse the vapor in the unlikely event it
overflows the fence.

With the north side of the loading area open and confinement provided on the three other sides,
the vapor cloud will gravity spread towards the lower section of the plant. A vapor dispersion
modeling will give an indication of the extent of the vapor cloud travel northward. An appropriate
emergency may be mounted from the lower section of the plant, if needed.

In the course of the hazard analysis to be performed during the EPC phase, additional mitigative
measures may be considered, if needed.

45 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

COLONY ENERGY, RENC LNG, LLC

LNG Spill with Ignition

Each loading bay Is provided with a spill coliection and trough directing the LNG 0 the spill
impoundment.  The aspect ratio of the spill Impoundment has been designed for mannad
intervention. This dictates that the heat flux emanating from the pool fire Is low enough to allow
the firemen to approach the pool with protective gear,

A radiant heat fiux calculation based on a2 m x 2m aspect ratio is provided In Appendix 1.

Wwith an allowable radiant heat flux in the order 5 XW/m? firemen with protective gear can
dispense the foam onto the pool. After the initial application, the radiant heat fiux decreases
rapidly, and the firemen can move closer to completa the coverage.

For LNG, high expansion foam (HI-£X) Is required. The application of the foam starves the fire of
oxygen and promotes buoyancy for the vapour generated. Extinguishment is not the objective,

The HI-EX foam specification is expected to have the following characteristics:

s Foam concentrate: protein type, bio-degradable
+  Mixing ratio: 2%
+ Expansion ratio: 500:1.

A portable dispensing system is lllustrated in figure 3.3. Given the small size of the spill impoundment,
the inftial foarn concentrate purchase may not exceed four 55 gal drums, two of which may be used for
training.

Foam concentrate has a shelf life that must be checked.

o STNGEAR PPE 1LEGEND

fly BALLVALVE
—
N GHECKVAVE
FOAM o PICK AL TUBE . FOAM CONCEHTRATE PIPNG
CONCEHTRATE o HOSE
P DRIM
OR PAL
- ) s HOSE
HOSE VALVE '
CLUSTOMER R SOMITION
WATER SuppLy R e SCHARGE
\ HOZZILE
- OR
LINE PROPORTIONE R ~ DISCHARGE
LEVICE
. ) ] N

46 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

CQ,S ' COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLG

The calculation in Appendix 1 assumes zero wind speed. Under windy conditions, it is anticipated
that the firemen will position themselves upwind of the impoundment, where the heat fiux is
lowest.

47 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

Co’-s GCOLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC

5. FIRE PROTECTION -~ LNG PLANT

The LNG plant is provided with the necessary hazard detection for alarming locally and remotely,
including the local Fire Department, and upon confirmation, the appropriate ESD1s activated.

Confirmed hazard detection in the process area will shut down the entire liquefaction plant, Other
areas, including the boil-off compressor building, will also be protected.

High tevel in the LNG tank will shut down the figuefaction units.

If the seismic detectors Instailed in proximity of the LNG tank detect a seismic level that exceeds
the Operating Basis Earthquake {OBE), the entire plant is shut down.

Both the tanker loading facility and the plant area are provided with CCTV monitoring accessible
from Colony remote monitoring station.

The firewater ring main will service the installed fire hydrants and fire monitors. Each fire biydrant
will be equipped with 1-1/2" and 2-1/2* nozzles. Subject to the approval of the Fire chief, fire
hydrants will be spaced at 60 m.

2-1/2" monitors will be pre-positianed near the base of the tank to provide fire exposure
protettion for the metal roof refief valve area, in case of an ignited release, and the pump
platform.

The total fire water demand s not expected to exceed 1300 gpm over a maximum duration of 2
hours. This is to be confirmed during EPC, when a detailed fire protection system will be
developed.

All interfaces with the local Fire Department will be developed during the EPC.

ESD functions actionable remotely from Colony monitoring station will also be included.

48 of 52




Staff Report - 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

s

Community Development
775.847.0966

COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC

Appendix 1
RECTANGULAR DIKE FIRE
TRENCR FIRE
FUEL
Nama : LNG LIGHT {METHANE}
Pool tenperature ~161 .58 og
CONSTANT PROPERIIES
Molecular weight : 16.04
Boiling peoinkt 1 -161.55 oC
Critical temperature : 190,55 K
Critical pressure : 46.0 bar
Heat of combustion : 5.00E+07 J/kg
Flame temperature : 1360 K
CALCULATED PROPERTIES
Liquid compressibility factor 0.004

Liguid denaity

DIMENSIONE

Pool width H
Pool length :
Pool Liguid Height '
Height of flame base :
Height for Radiation Calculations

LOCAL AMBIENT CONDITIONS

475.6 kg/fcu m

el ]
enen e
gg883¢

Rir temperature 1 13.0 °C
Ambient pressure 11,01 bar
Wind speed : 0.0 m/s
Relative humidity 1 50.0%

RESULTS
Mass hurning rate

0.093 kg/a? 8

Flame length : 6.94m
Flame tilt from vertical {(frent wiew) t D.0¢

Flame tilt from vertical ({side wview} : D.0°

Flame dvag ratic {(front wiew) : 1.00

Flame drag ratio {=side view) : 1.00
Maximun emissive power 1 190.0 kw/m?
Bffective emissive power (fromt view} : 85.73 kW/m2

2ffective eminsive power (side view)

Frent view (view along dike/trench width}

85.73 kW w2

Thermal f£lux Distance from center of pool
(kW/m2) {m}
30.0 2,22
8.0 5.38
5.0 7.78

49 of 52




Staff Report — 2013-002 Community Development
Colony Energy Partners 775.847.0966

C(’,S COLONY ENERGY, RENO LNG, LLC

Side view {view along dike/trench length)

Thermal £1lux Distance from centeyr 0f pool
(KW /m?} {m}
30.0 2.22
2.0 5.38
5.0 7.78
Maximum emissive powexr i §0,230 Btu/fr! hr
Front visw (viow alony dike/trench sidthy
Digtance from Thermal fiux to Thermal £lux te Mariman £l
center of pocl horizontal targeb vertical targat to target
(m) {kW/m2) (kW m*} {K# /)
.00 4.56 8.94 14.03
7.00 2.23 5.48 5.96
9.00 1.30 3.87 3.89
11.00 0.78 2,54 Z.71
13.00 0.50 1.91 .97
15.00 0.34 1,46 1.4%
1%.00 0.23 1.14 1.17
26¢.060 06.14 0.83 Q.84
Side view (view along dike/trench length}
Distance from Thermal flux ta Thermal £lux to Haximum £lux
center of pool horizontal target vertical target to target
{m) {kw/m2) (ktt/m?} (kW /m=)
5.00 4.56 B.94 10.03
7.00 2.33 5.48 5,96
.00 1.30 3.67 3.89
11.00 0.78 2.589 2.71
13.00 0.5 1.91 1.97
15.00 d.34 1.46 1.49
17.00 0.23 1.14 1.17
20.00 Q.14 0.83 0.84

50 of 52




775.847.0966

Community Development

—— FUEL GAS
s
CisPosaL MITROGER _|
E
AR COO GPCY

i Gag H INEET ARINE [ SAS GAS DERLE THANIZER
m METERING ml FILTER _l ||~ TREATMENT |.r* ABSORETION I”umiumthZ—’LrﬁcmﬂgH SYSTEM LG STOR
- Dl WSRO W5 AT

EEXEVEIN Y 28 NECFD 00 stncrey M UACED ]
e
AND

P

!
l

PHASE 2

[ HASE 1
: a
|

l

PHASE 3 PHASE 2
_.....[.‘_..,.
g8
gz

&

zn

§

|

51 of 52

l

l
PHASE 4 PHASE 3
_._.*l.‘.m

GAS D EMETHANIZER
LIGUEFACTION| HrSTEM

INOTES:
1. FLOAV RATES SHOWN ARE NCMIPAL, Py B |
TANE | RS
) oareE | et
3 VR | FepAsD
FILE NAME: COLOMNY BFD {REVD).L.DCD A Tirar | e

Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners




Staff Report — 2013-002
Colony Energy Partners

52 of 52

Community Development
775.847.0966




Special Use Permit No. 2013-003. By Con-Virginia Mining Company/Hugh Roy
Marshall (Virginia City). Applicant is REQUESTING A Special Use Permit for the
placement and operation of a portable temporary water-based ore processing mill
to process ore from an on-site Small Operations underground mine and a
temporary shelter for the mill at APN 004-301-06 (approx.. the SE1/4 of the NE1/4
of section 20, T17N, R21E (MDB&M).




Storey County
Board of County Commissioners

Staff Report
CASE NO.: 2013-003
APPLICANT: Con-Virginia Mining, Co. (Hugh Roy Marshall)
PROPERTY OWNER: Con-Virginia Mining, Co. (Hugh Roy Marshall)

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: APN 004-301-06 located in the SE% of the NE¥ of Section 20
T17N, R21E (MDB&M)

REQUEST: Special Use Permit for the placement and operation of a
portable temporary water-based ore processing mill to process
ore from an on-site Small Operations underground mine.

MEETING LOCATION: Storey County Courthouse

26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
MEETING DATE: May 7, 2013
MEETING TIME: 2:00 PM

10f24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

I. KEY TERMS & DEFINITIONS

1.1  Processing. Crushing, grinding, washing, dissolution and other methods by which ore is
prepared for further beneficiation or processing. Processing under this requested special use
permit will not include the use of chemicals or leaching agents.

1.2  Reclamation. Actions performed during or after exploration project or mining operation
to shape, stabilize, re-vegetate or otherwise treat the land in order to return it to a safe, stable
condition consistent with the establishment of a productive post-mining use of the land and the
abandonment of a facility in a manner which ensures the public safety, as well as the
encouragement of techniques which minimize the adverse visual effects.

1.3  Small Operation Mining. This classification includes surface and underground mining
and exploration involving the use of mechanized or motorized equipment, or involving the use of
explosives, but remaining less than the duration, excavation, and surface area disturbance
thresholds at which a special use permit is required for large operations. A combination or series
of small operations permits ot uses (i.e., serial or chain exploration or mining) that violate or
serve to circumvent the letter and spirit of this chapter or title will not be permitted.

II. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

2.1  Planning commission action. At its April 18, 2013, hearing, the planning commission
heard . testimony from the applicant, county staff, and the public. The applicant provided
diagrams, photos, and maps of the subject property and proposed project. Discussion between the
commission, staff, and the applicant included environmental and safety concerns; access;
appropriation of underground water; state and federal permitting; location of buildings;
separation between mining and processing per SCC Chapter 17.92 (Mining and Exploration);
zoning and land use entitlements; potential impacts to an adjacent residence including noise,
lighting, dust, and stormwater; and overall benefits and impacts to the site and surrounding area.
There was no public comment or opposition presented regarding the proposal. County staff read
into the record its recommended findings to be included with a motion for approval. The
planning commission voted unanimously (5 votes with John Herrington and Laura Kekule
absent) to approve the project in accordance with stated findings as recommended by staff.

2.2  Requirement by code. This special use permit request was submitted as required by
SCC Sections 17.32.020(N) (Uses Subject to Special Use Permit in the “F Forestry Zone™) which
lists “milling and processing related to mining™ as being allowable with a special use permit.
Underground mining will also take place concurrently with the ore processing operation and on
the same subject land. This SUP, however, will only apply to placement and operation of the ore
processing facility. The underground mine (existing) include less than 5 acres surface arca
disturbances; thus, a Small Operations Mining Permit will regulate that use.

4/25/2013

20f24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

2.3 Land ownership and right. The project will take place within a patented mining claim
owned by the applicant. The claim includes the surface and mineral estate. Primary access will
occur on land owned by the applicant and public right-of-ways.

2.4  Mining. The operation will involve continued development of an existing underground
mine adit. With exception of the mine portal and the immediately surrounding area, all
development will take place underground. Expansion may include tunneling and stopes. This
SUP is not applicable to the underground mining operation or surrounding land disturbances.

2.5  Processing. Primary processing will occur on-site of the Sutro Mine. Two skid-mounted
portable ore processing mills will be used for this purpose (Exhibit B photos). The mills will be
brought to the site and place inside a +/- 4,000 square-foot shelter similar to a Quonset hut. The
mills and the shelter will be disassembled and moved from the site at closure of the mine
operation, The portable mills utilize a “closed-circuit” or “zero-discharge” water processing
method. The Hi-Tech Gravity Separation process uses only water; it does not use chemicals or
leaching agents. After raw ore is loaded into the mill, water is added and the material begins to
break down. A filtration process removes the water leaving behind “cake” which will be
extracted from the mill to be transported off-site for further processing. Being “zero-discharge”,
there are no water or air emissions. A small amount of water will be consumed by the mill as
residual moisture remains in the “cake”. The rate of production is designed for one ton/hour (10
tons per day), with the site operating eight hours, five days per week. There are three employees
expected to be on-site at any given time, inclusive of the mining and processing operation.

2.6  Water source. On March 7, 2013, the applicant submitted a request to the Nevada State
Engineer for the appropriation of 0.025 cubic-feet per second (CFS) of underground water at the
site. A similar request was granted to the applicant in 2001 for the same purpose as provide in
this request and at the same location. Because the water was not utilized since that time, 2 new
application for appropriation is required. The application states that well water will be used for
mining and milling purposes. The water may also be used for necessary fire prevention as
required by the Storey County Fire Protection District (“Fire District”).

2,7  History and existing conditions. The Sutro
Mine is an existing underground mine located at the
head of Seven Mile Canyon approximately one mile
north of Virginia City (Figures 2.2 and 2.3). It has
been worked intermittently by the applicant since the
early 1990s under Special Use Permit No. 1192-049.
In 1999 Special Use Permit No. 2000-218 was issued
allowing the applicant to proceed with further
development of the mine into areas of ore mining,
milling, and processing, as well exploratory drilling.
No work commenced under the latter permit; it thus
expired. The applicant wishes to resume mining
activities at the site and conduct on-site water-based | Figure 2.1: Sutro Mine adit from which ore
primary processing of extracted ore. will be extracted and processed

4/25/2013

3of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

2.8  Vebicles and equipment. Light-duty pickup trucks will be used to transport milled
“cake” placed into 5-gallon buckets to an off-site facility for further processing. Tools, materials,
and other goods will also be transported to and from the site via light-duty pickup. One or more
light tractors, such as backhoes or front-loaders, will manage ground surfaces around the mine
and mill site. A mucker (approximate size of a topless golf cart) will also be used to muck ore
inside the mine and around the portal.

2.9  Access. The site is relatively remote and can be difficult to fine. Its primary access is
from State Route 341 (Geiger Grade) and Seven Mile Canyon right-of-way (graded road).
Several other graded and unimproved roads lead there to the site. The roads are sufficient to
allow light vehicle access. Some grading improvements are necessary for emergency vehicle
access. The applicant will be directed by the Fire District to develop a plan for emergency
equipment and personnel access. This should occur prior to project commencement.

Nearest residence (+/-600'}

ool 7207 U

rtheast. Th

Figure 2.2: icinity aeril image. The site is appr ) mately 600’ from the resince to the no
site is not easily visible from State Route 341 and not visible from Virginia City.

4/25/2013

4 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

S e
IR S Gl s

: B
Figure 2.3: Photo of existing

IIl. KEY ISSUES

3.1 Site management. The site is remote and far from services. To assure safety of project
associates, a site supervisor should be present at all times during hours of operation to maintain a
safe and orderly environment. The supervisor should have knowledge of and access to site
facilities, access points, and fire and emergency equipment. Mine Safety and Health
Administration (MSHA) Certified for the level of management will also apply to all persons on-
site. The supervisor should also have a cellular telephone with sufficient signal strength to send
and receive calls to Storey County Emergency Services 775.847.0950.

3.2  Operations plan. The applicant will be required to submit a Plan of Operations to Storey
County prior to project commencement. The plan will be submitted to the Fire District,
Community Development, Emergency Management, and Public Works for review and approval.
At a minimum, the elements of the plan must include disaster management, Emergency Medical
Services (EMS) and Tirst-Aid response, transportation, reclamation, and environmental
protection. Specific items to be included in the plan are as follows. The list is not exhaustive.

s Basic company, ownet, site, and emergency contact information
o Plot plan (detailed sketch drawings) of each site and access road
e Site evacuation and emergency procedure

4/25/2013
50of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

e Emergency contact procedures, including for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and Storey
County Emergency Services Direct Connect (775.847.0950)

Wildland fire prevention and suppression

Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging

Documenting and reporting of emergency situations, including spills

Post disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal

Post-disaster damage reporting for treatment of historic structures and properties

Site reclamation plan with surety bond and estimated timeline for reclamation
(surface area reclaimed to conditions reasonably existing prior to SUP No. 2013-003)
¢ Documenting and reporting of NDEP and other environmental permits and notices

s Noxious weed abatement

e Stormwater drainage and detention

3.3  Best Management Practices. The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection
(“NDEP”) requires Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be implemented during each project
phase. BMPs are measures that are taken to protect air, water, and land quality at and
surrounding the project. Regulation and oversight will be managed by the NDEP. Stormwater
must be detained on-site. A summary of BMPs to be implemented in the project are as follows:

Erosion control during construction, including straw wattles, silt fencing, etc.
Stormwater drainage and detention

Instaliation of surfaces appropriate for equipment egress and circulation
Post-operation BMP removal

3.4  Reclamation and surety bond. As stated in this report, this SUP is applicable only to the
ore processing facility. It is not applicable to the Small Operations Mine. Nevertheless, the site
must be returned to a condition reasonably existing prior to the issuance of the Small Operations
Permit and this SUP. The reclamation plan, reclamation, and surety bonding will comply with
SCC Sections 17.92.135 and 17.92.160.

3.5 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site. The Carson River Basin, from New Empire to
Stillwater and the Carson Sink, was designated a National Priority Listed (NPL) site under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA or
Superfund) in August, 1990. Many areas in Virginia City and Gold Hill, particularly where
mining and milling activities historically took place, have been identified as potentially
containing heavy metal contaminants of concern (CoC’s), mercury, arsenic, and lead, and are
considered to be within the Superfund Site. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has
stated that delineating and mitigating the entire region would be prohibitively expensive and
impracticable. The NDEP Bureau of Corrective Actions (Bureau) — the local agency designated
to manage the Superfund Site — informed the SUP Applicant in 2011 that certain areas within the
proposed mineral exploration area may contain CoC’s and are applicable to the Superfund Site.

The Bureau has stated to county planning staff that the SUP Applicant will be held responsible
for properly managing disturbances of existing and former mine and mill sites, tailings, dumps,

4/25/2013

6of24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

and other areas that are found to contain CoC’s. To avoid potential risk of exposure issues, the
SUP Applicant has been advised to characterize potentially hazardous areas such as those listed
above by sampling and analyzing the material for mercury, arsenic, and lead contents as directed
by the Bureau. Afier the CoC levels are characterized and delineated, the SUP Applicant will
work cooperatively with the Bureau to mitigate the risk of exposure to human health and the
environment.

3.6 Cultural resources. There are cultural resources evident on or near the site. The site and
the plan for operation appear to include no disturbance or removal of such resources. Should any
prehistoric or historic remains/artifacts be discovered during development or excavation, work
must temporarily be halted at the specific site and the Community Development Department and
NDEP must be notified in order to evaluate the site and, if deemed necessary, to record and
photograph the site in question. The period of temporary delay will be limited to a minimum of
two working days from the date of notification, unless it is a significant find and it is deemed
necessary to provide more time to evaluate and protect historical remains or artifacts.

IV. LAND USE COMPATIBILITY

4.1  Vicinity description. The table below demonstrates existing land uses and zoning
designations in and around the proposed project site. The existing conditions shown are followed
by an analysis of key aspects of the operation that need to be mitigated in order to become
compatible with the surrounding environment.

%

LAND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION ZONING

SUBJECT |Vacant with existing Mining, processing, commercial, F Forestry
LAND - tunderground mine portal and |residential, tourism, and natural
staging area resources land uses
LANDTO |Vacant Mining, processing, commercial, F Forestry
NORTH Single-family residence residential, tourism, and natural
approximately 600’ resources land uses
LANDTO |Vacant Mining, processing, commercial, F Forestry
SOUTH residential, tourism, and natural
resources land uses
LANDTO |Vacant Mining, processing, commercial, F Forestry
EAST ' residential, tourism, and natural
resources land uses
LAND TO |Vacant Mining, processing, commercial, F Forestry
WEST residential, tourism, and natural

resources land uses

4/25/2013
7 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

4.2  General compatibility. The purpose and findings in SCC Sections 17.32.015 (Purpose
and Intent of the F Forestry Zone) is to “establish areas in the county from unnecessary
degradation and to provide areas for very low density residential development. A special use
permit pursuant to Section 17.32.202 may be granted for “milling related to mining” when the
use is found to be compatible with surrounding land uses and the purpose and intent of the
Forestry Zone. The conditions proposed under this special use permit request appear to provide
adequate protections to surrounding properties and the nearest existing residence (approximately
600’ lateral distance). Key issues addressed in this report to protect area uses, particularly the
nearest residence, include limitations on hours and days of operation, outdoor lighting, noise,
dust and stormwater, and transportation and use of local roads which serve both the subject
property and area residents.

V. PUBLIC SAFETY

5.1  Signage. Signage warning the public of dangerous conditions and rules of entry, e.g.,
“No Trespassing”, “Keep Out”, etc., and the owner/company name and contact information are
currently posted at the main entrance to the site. The applicant must maintain these signs and

update them as needed to maintain current information.

5.2  Potentially hazardous conditions. Appropriate barricades will be positioned with
warning signs at entrance points and temporary fencing around potential hazardous conditions to
prevent persons from accidentally exposing themselves to a potentially dangerous condition.
Cautionary signs positioned peripheral to the active area informing individuals entering into the
arca to be safety conscious and aware of potentially dangerous conditions.

VI. APPLICABLE CODES & REGULATIONS

SCC 17.92.090 states that processing related to mining may be allowed in the Forestry Zone with
approval of a special use permit. It restricts processing involving crushing and hazardous
substances from being placed within 1,000 feet of existing residences. The mining/processing
site is approximately 500 feet from an existing residence located in a Forestry Zone. Because the
proposal includes no crushing or hazardous materials, it may be located where proposed.

As stated in the foregoing, this SUP is applicable only to the proposed processing facility. The
adjacent underground mining operation will be regulated by the conditions of the Small
Operations Permit issued pursuant to SCC Chapter 17.92 (Exploration, Mining, and Extraction).
The Small Operations permit will be compliant with the applicable Nevada Revised Statutes and
Administrative Codes.

4/25/2013

8 of 24




Staif Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

VII. MASTER PLAN

The proposed special use permit conforms to the goals and objectives of the Storey County
Master Plan including: enhancing diversification of economic opportunities within the county
(Chapter 3, Goal 1) protecting the quality of present and future water resources (Chapter 5, Goal
2); regulating use of watershed areas to minimize fire danger and prevent degradation (Chapter
5, Goal 4); protection of historical resources and consultation with the Comstock Historic
District Commission on development (Chapter 8, Goal 1 and Objective 1.1); maintaining a
healthy environment for all residents of the county (Chapter 9, Goal 1), and ensure land use plans
are compatible with the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning decision (Chapter 9,
Objective 1.1); and reducing land use conflicts between mining operations and other private and
public fand users and preserving the historic heritage of the Comstock (Virginia City/Gold Hill,
Goal 1 and Goal 2).

VII1L. FINDINGS

8.1  Motion for approval. The following are found to be factual regarding the proposed
special use permit under the recommended conditions of approval shown in Section IX of this
report. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these findings and may include other
findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

A. SCC Section 17.32.020(N) (Uses subject to a special use permit) required a special use
permit for milling and processing related to mining in the F Forestry Zone, in which the
operation under this special use permit is located.

B. SUP No. 2013-003 does not regulate mining and extraction. Mining and extraction may take
place concurrently and at the same location as the milling and processing under this SUP.
SCC Section 17.32.020(M) provides that mining and extraction are an allowable use in the F
Forestry zone, but that they are regulated by the provisions of SCC Chapter 17.92, by which
a Small Operations Permit is required.

C. The conditions of SUP No. 2013-003 are not in conflict with the purpose, intent, and other
specific requirements of the F Forestry Zone in which the project is located.

D. The proposed project and the final conditions it creates will not conflict with or cause
substantial adverse impacts to surrounding existing land uses.

E. The conditions under SUP No. 2013-003 are at least as stringent as and not in conflict with
the applicable federal, state, and county regulations. The minimum requirements under SCC
Chapter 17.03 (Administrative Provisions) for special use permits are applied to the
conditions of this SUP.

F. The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2013-003 impose sufficient regulations on the
proposed project to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment
and closest land uses,

4/25/2013
9 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

8.2

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the special use permit, the

following findings of fact with explanation why should be included in that motion.

A. The proposed processing facility conflicts with one or more of the stated goals and objectives
of the county master plan.

B. The proposed processing facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the F Forestry
Zone.

C. The proposed processing facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will cause
substantial adverse impacts to surrounding existing land uses.

D. The motion to deny SUP No. 2013-003 will apply to the ore processing facility only and the
shelter in which it will be located. It will have no impact on mining operations which may
occur on the site pursuant to the regulations under SCC Chapter 17.92.

IX.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of Storey County Community
Development Department Director and staff, unless otherwise noted:

1.

Special uses. Special Use Permit (“SUP”) No. 2013-003 is for the purpose of conducting
on-site ore processing in accordance with the design and methods of use described in
submitted SUP Application No. 2013-003. It will also comply with the limitations set
forth in this SUP and any applicability under SCC Chapter 17.92 (Exploration, Mining,
and Extraction). This SUP does not apply to mining operations which may take place
concurrently and on the same site (“Subject Property™) as the ore processing operation
under this SUP and which are regulated under a Small Operations Permit, or another SUP
as required under SCC Chapter 17.92. This SUP will be used pursuant to the advisory
motion made by the planning commission and as approved by the Board of Storey
County Commissioners (“Board™) on property located at APN 004-301-06 [(located in
the SE% of the NE% of Section 20 T17N, R21E (MDB&M)]. The site (all disturbed
surface area) applicable to the uses in this SUP must remain less than 5 acres. The
operation will comply with all of the requirements under this SUP and federal (e.g., Mine
Safety and Health Administration, MSHA), state, and county regulations. Issuance of this
SUP does not convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does it
authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of other private property rights,
or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

Duplicate requirements and conflict. It is not the intent of this or any permit to impose
duplicate requirements on the Subject Property. Unless expressly stated otherwise in this
SUP or in another permit within the Subject Property boundary, the Permit Holder must
comply with the condition as stated in either permit (this includes, but is not limited to
insurance). In such event that a conflict is found between the requirements of this SUP
and that of another permit on the Subject Property, the more stringent will apply.

4/25/2013

10 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

3. Processing limitation. As stated in Condition No. I, the ore processing facility and
methods by which it is used will comply with the design and narrative statements in
submitted SUP Application No. 2013-003. The processing facility may consist of only
two portable processing mills. The mills must be “closed-circuit” or “zero-discharge”
water processing methods with no use of chemicals, solvents, or leaching agents. The
processing mills and the facility applicable to this SUP may only process ore which
originates from the adjacent Sutro Mine. No material may arrive from off-site to be
processed on the “Subject Property” or in connection with this SUP. The final product of
the on-site processing will be “cake” as described in said SUP Application. The “cake”
will be extracted from the on-site mill and be transported off-site for further processing as
permitted. The rate of production from on-site processing, as described in said SUP
Application, may not exceed one ton per hour or 10 tons per day.

4. Temporary structures. A temporary shelter (such as a Quonset hut or similar type
structure) may be erected on the site to house the processing mills and related apparatus
when a Building Permit is granted. The structure will be temporary and must be removed
immediately following closure of the mine site. Removal of the structure from the site
must be included in the reclamation plan (see Plan of Operations). A Certificate of
Historical and Architectural Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic District must
be submitted to Community Development prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

5. Permits and expiration. The Permit Holder must apply for all applicable building and
grading permits within 24 months from the date of SUP approval. This SUP will remain
valid as long as the Permit Holder and facility complies with the terms of this SUP and
federal, state, and county regulations. No construction or permitting for construction may
commence prior to issuance of this SUP and granting of required grading and other
permits.

6. Transfer of rights, This SUP will inure to the record owner of the Subject Property and
to the Permit Holder (Con-Virginia Mining Company/Hugh Roy Marshall) and will run
with the land. Any and all transfers of this SUP to other persons, agencies, or entities
must be advised in writing by Certified Mail to the Community Development Department
at least 90 days prior to assignee taking over the project. The new owners/managers must
sign and accept all conditions and requirements of this SUP.

7. Indemnification and insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land
will conform to federal, state, and county requirements; further, the Permit Holder
warrants that continued and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder
and property owner(s) agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives
harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and
any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this SUP. The Permit
Holder must maintain satisfactory liability insurance for all aspects of this operation
under this SUP for a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 (one million dollars) and
provide proof thereof to Storey County prior securing rights to this SUP.

4/25/2013

11 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4252013

8.

10.

11.

12.

Site supervision. A staff supervisor must be present on the premises at all times during
operations. That person must have knowledge of and immediate access to restrooms, fire
suppression devices, First-Aid kits, and locked gates. While on the premises, the on-site
manager must possess a cellular telephone with adequate signal to send and receive
signals to and from Storey County Emergency Services direct-connect 775-847-0950. All
staff using cellular phones must be directed by the Permit Holder or his designed to dial
Storey County Emergency Services Direct-Connect (775) 847-0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1)
in case of emergency. Emergency 9-1-1 still is appropriate from land-line telephones.

Signage. A legible sign must be placed at entry of the premises during project phases
stating the name of company/organization responsible for construction, street address (or
descriptive location), and contact phone number(s). This sign must be at least 2 feet by 3
feet in size. Appropriate signage must be installed on and around the premises stating
rules for entry and circulation (e.g., no trespassing, travel permitted only on designated
pathways, etc.).

Environmental controls. The Permit Holder must obtain applicable Nevada Division of
Environmental Protection (“NDEP”) Dust Control and Stormwater Permits and furnish
the Community Development Department copies of the permits for documentation. All
non-vegetated surfaces must be appropriately and consistently treated to mitigate fugitive
dust and sand. Best Management Practices (BMPs) must be implemented throughout the
entire project premises and egress points. Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground
surfaces must be preserved to the extent feasible. Trees with trunks of 6” or more must be
replaced with new trees of similar species. The site must comply with NRS 555.150 for
preventing non-native plant species declared and designated as noxious as provided
therein. Noxious weed species include but are not limited to Tall Whitetop (perennial
pepperweed), Hoary Cress, Russian Thistle, Dalmatian Toadflax, Scotch Thistle, etc.

Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (“CRMSS”). By accepting SUP No. 2013-003
the Permit Holder acknowledges that portions of the mineral exploration area may be
within or applicable to the CRMSS. Properly managing disturbances of existing and
former mine and mill sites, mill tailings, mine waste, mine material, and other areas that
are found to contain Contaminant of Concern (CoC’s) as applicable to the CRMSS will
be the sole responsibility of the Permit Holder as communicated thereto by the NDEP
Bureau of Corrective Actions. Handling, redistributing or reprocessing CoC impacted
materials by the Permit Holder shall be completed in accordance with the NDEP Bureau
of Corrective Actions.

Sales tax reporting. All material and equipment purchased for the project must as
possible be received in Storey County and the value reported as “County-of-Delivery” on
the Nevada Department of Taxation Form TPI-02.01 “Combined Sales and Use Tax
Return”. The Permit Holder must also report the value for all materials and equipment
(personal and rented) “used” on this project as “Use Tax™ on TP1-02.01 or TPI-02.02.

4/25/2013

12 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

13.

14.

15.

Operations plan. The Permit Holder must submit a Plan of Operations to the Storey
County Fire Protection District (“Fire District”) and the Community Development,
Emergency Management, and Public Works Departments for review and approval. At a
minimum, the elements of the plan must include disaster management, Emergency
Medical Services (EMS) and First-Aid response, transportation, reclamation, and
environmental protection. Specific items to be included in the plan are as follows. The
following list is not exhaustive; the Fire District may impose additional requirements as
deemed necessary. Requirements of State and federal agencies which fulfill the following
may suffice when documentation thereof is submitted to Fire District and Community
Development.

Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information
Plot plan (detailed sketch drawings) of each site and access road
Site evacuation and emergency procedure
Emergency contact procedures, including for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and Storey
County Emergency Services Direct Connect (775.847.0950)
Wildland fire prevention and suppression
“Hot work” permitting
On-site water for wildland fire prevention and suppression
Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging
Management or mitigation of roadway culvert hazards existing at site entrance
Documenting and reporting of emergency situations, including spills
Post disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal
Post-disaster damage reporting for treatment of historic structures and properties
Site reclamation plan with surety bond and estimated timeline for reclamation
(surface area to be reclaimed to conditions reasonably existing prior to 2013 permits)
" Documenting and reporting of NDEP and other environmental permits and notices
Noxious weed abatement
* Stormwater drainage and detention

. o & @

Fire suppression. The Permit Holder must maintain fire extinguishers throughout the
premises to the satisfaction of the Fire District. Each device must be identified by large
and brightly colored (i.e., red and white) identification which includes the words “FIRE
EXTINGUISHER”. Additionally, the Permit Holder will be held responsible for assuring
that all vehicles and heavy equipment (e.g., tractors and other mobile equipment) are
equipped with a 5 pound minimum ABC rated fire extinguisher. “Hot Work” may only
take place as permitted by the Fire District.

Egress and circulation. The Permit Holder must coordinate an emergency access plan
with the Fire District prior to project commencement. The access plan must include an
aerial image and/or topographic map and directions to the site. All access and circulation
routes must meet Fire District requirements for hard-surfacing, circulation, and egress.

4/25/2013

13 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Roadway approaches and drainage. Egress points abutting State Route 341 must
comply with the requirements of the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT).
Approaches to paved county right-of-way must be sufficient to prevent mud and debris
tracking from the site onto the public roadway. Any mud or debris tracked onto the
county roadway must be removed by the Permit Holder immediately as allowable by the
NDEP and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) regulations. Mud, sand, and
debris must not be allowed to adversely impact existing drainage systems.

Hazardous materials. The portable processing facility must comply with the design and
methods of processing submitted as part of the SUP Application. The processing mills
must use only water and be “closed circuit” or “zero-discharge”. No chemicals, leaching
agents, or hazardous materials may be used in the processing. Other potentially hazardous
materials, such as gasoline or diesel to operate the mill and other equipment, may exist
on-site when permitted through the Nevada State Fire Marshal’s Office and reviewed by
the Fire District for final approval in order to assure appropriate equipment to respond to
any incident exists.

Spill reporting. Any hydrocarbon or chemical spill of or exceeding 25 gallons or 3
cubic-yards shall be reported immediately to Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1 and Storey
County Emergency Services (775.847.0950). Additionally, the incident must be
immediately reported to the NDEP and the local jurisdiction, including Storey County
Fire District and the Emergency Management and Community Development
Departments. The Permit Holder must comply with NDEP clean-up requirements and
provide the Fire District and the Emergency Management and Community Development
a copy of NDEP completion of remediation immediately. All hazardous materials
incident clean-up and response costs will be borne by the Permit Holder as part of the
issuance of this SUP. Incidents exceeding a standard First-Alarm fire will be billed to the
Permit Holder. If mutual aid is warranted to suppress an incident, those costs will also be
funded by the Permit Holder.

Spillage. Any hydrocarbon or environmental spill incidents involving 25 gallons or more
of any petroleum product (e.g., gasoline, diesel, and hydraulic fluid) or 3 or more cyds of
contaminated material, or any presence of such material on or in ground/surface water
must be reported immediately to Storey County Emergency Services (775) 847-0950 (in
lieu of 9-1-1). Additionally, under Nevada State law, the incident must be immediately
reported to the Community Development Department and the NDEP. The Permit Holder
must comply with the NDEP’s clean-up requirements and provide the Emergency
Management and Community Development Departments a copy of NDEP’s completion
of remediation. All hazardous materials incident clean-up and response costs will be
borne by the applicant as part of this SUP.

Hours & days of operation. It is recognized that estimated existing ambient conditions
may range between 20 to 90 decibels (A-weighted). Ambient noise sources include wind,
rustling vegetation, domestic and wild animals, vehicular traffic from State Route 341
and other roads, etc. At a minimum, SCC Chapter 8.04 administrated by Storey County.

4/25/2013

14 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 47252013

21.

22.

23,

24,

The Code places an 84 decibel (octave range 500-1800) limitation on noise at the
property line, in the case applicable hereto the “property line” is defined as the
boundaries of the SUP. Additionally, when it is determined by Storey County that
additional noise abatement is needed to protect arca residences and land uses, it may
impose further requirements. Use of heavy equipment, generators, processing equipment,
and other machinery, except light-duty pickup trucks and passenger cars, will be limited
to Mondays through Fridays, except national and Nevada State holidays, from 7:00 a.m.

to 7:00 p.m. Underground mining activitics and surface activities not involving said
machinery may take place year-round, 24-hours per day, 7-days per week.

Waiver provision. The weekend and holiday restrictions set forth in the condition for
hours and days of operation may be waived when the affected property owner(s) in
Storey County (those located within 1,000 of said operations) submit to the Community
Development department a signed statement that the activities in accordance with this
SUP may take place on weekends and/or holidays. The waiver may not extend the hours
of operation limitations. The waiver will be non-transferrable and will become null and
void immediately at the affected property owner(s) written request to the Community
Development Department.

Lighting (non-exempt). SCC Chapter 8.02 (“Dark Skies™) limits outdoor lighting that
may impact adjacent land uses. Exemptions for “temporary lighting” in the Code (which
normally apply to such activities as road construction, and may appear to apply to mining
and processing operations) will not apply to operations under this SUP. All operations,
buildings, and equipment will be required to comply with the strictest regulations under
the Code (shield lighting) to ensure minimal impacts to neighbors.

Cultural resources discovery. Should any prehistoric or historic remains/artifacts be
discovered during development or excavation, work shall temporarily be halted at the
specific site and Storey County Community Development must be notified in order to
evaluate the site and, if deemed necessary, to record and photograph the site in question.
The period of temporary delay shall be limited to a minimum of two working days from
the date of notification, unless it is a significant find and it is deemed necessary to
provide more time to evaluate and protect historical remains or artifacts.

Restrooms. The Permit Holder must provide properly maintained restroom facilities
(porta-potties) and wash stations adequate to meet the sanitation needs of persons on the
premises during project construction phases. The number of restroom facilities provided
during this period is pursuant the projected number persons on the premises at any given
time, as recommended by the Portable Sanitation Association International (PSAI). Each
restroom must include a properly maintained alcohol-based gel hand sanitizer dispenser.

4/25/2013

15 of 24




Staff Report - 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 41252013

X. POWER OF THE BOARD AND PLANNING COMMISSION

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The planning commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The planning commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the planning commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the planning commission for further consideration.

XI. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains 2 motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by staff and the planning commission in accordance with Findings under Subsection 8.1. Those
Findings should be made part of that motion. Motion 2 for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the Findings shown in Subsection 8.2. Other Findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of their motion.

A, Recommended motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1,
conditions of approval shown in Section 9 (“IX™} of this report, compliance with federal,
State, and county regulations, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the
planning commission, I motion to approve SUP Application No. 2013-003 to allow
placement and operation of two portable (temporary) ore processing mills for the
processing of local ore from the subject property as described in the submitted application,
and for the temporary placement of a shelter to house the processing mills.

Summary: Approve 2 portable processing mills and tempovary shelter

B. Alternative motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.2 and
against the recommendation by staff and the planning commission, I motion to deny SUP
Application No. 2013-003 to allow placement and operation of two portable (temporary)
ore processing mills for the processing of local ore from the subject property as described
in the submitted application, and for the placement of a temporary shelter to house the
processing mill.

Summary: Deny the application for a portable processing mills and temporary
shelter

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner
Exhibit A: Narrative, flow chart, and plan drawings for portable processing mill
Exhibit B: Photo of mill similar to the proposal

4/25/2013
16 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co.
4/25/2013

Exhibit A: Narrative,. ﬂ_c:;:x_ychart, and plan drawings for portable processing mill

. EXTRACTIONFORMULAS & PROCEEDTRES

FOR SILVER/GOLDPLATINM EXTRACTION.

The Conselidated. Virginia Mining Compaty (CVMY) e the
Qpir; Nevada, and other Virginia Ciy it Works that
confin sivergoldlaingn viues i sffcen qunfifes 1
e dgound mineocess openton, CYAC s el
old Platimum ore body i the Suro Mine Tonnel
bl clays ar ideal for o mall (20 tpd) mine

Y / ? A i

Fob 1=tarw 0 s Cogapared T B oxs, Vyuczsua Srms; S

he Bxiacton Process or god and silver villbe i Tech Graviy
Sepuafonand the Pl mirl il be sent o the Refiery 28

ore; Analysis of the Dl cly 2016 has revealed a composiion of
- ssilverlgo sulfdes concentrated in the b cay: The major
aposition of te ore s made p of Precious, Nobe; and Rare: '
“Metals witn o boad midiae of base and industial
festing the. concentrate of precious metals confent: chay
indicated that Ghertion of presious et yalis s beet
determined to ocour between 3 and S mesh,

The fomus and proseuesfor eavionof e e gld vl "
4 g Gerined o e o e conptates fom e B
cy, Ths molbudofsepation s ecsay ot oy s vl

: i self fluxing and snaghe poured o dore” Sonall
o ill e eted at  fme i oder o make & hih reoovery of
An, Ag and Pt The Prcess P is being desigoed by, HL.R
Vot and Assoits. Theprocess wes 10 ch

o makep the coneenfrates, o |

4/25/201 3

17 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

Sutro Clav Proaessm Pla?tiP;'eixmmary

Engmmﬂ Progagsing Plant Pote & folew by AMA maniaciuiag

Dry Clay Ore From mﬁa_.'@-1ﬁf§T¢n_ Per Hour

Wasls To Tolingé PHA

>

¥
tnch Dy | W] o
/]
L}
b
mﬂuwwﬂﬂl
. Mhms ;
Gonoantrating Table

5ok Gons. Lo Rafnory’

LLX.Pg 14

Module # 1 is the feed hopper which g 8’ 'wide x 12" long x
8" high
# 2 is the trommel which is 8" wide x 16' long x &' high

# 3 is the concentrating table which is 8' wide x 17'-4" long
» 5' high

# 4 is the de wwatering screw, cyclone, filker which is 8' wide
x 16" long »x 5" high

# 5is water tank which is 10' wide x 10" lIong x 10" high
These modules are all skid mounted for eéase of movement.

The drawings show these modules
clustered as close as possible to reduce the foot print.

4/25/2013
18 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003

4/25/2013

Con-Virginia Mining Co.

1ol eBmsIq LB UL BV AGNEID Sy

(W00 0} Jie BujeseO PUE SUBlg [EULSBUHRIC) 3 BUBRUBUT(INY T BNISSZOON OHING 102 DAY

4/25/2013

19 of 24




Staff Report ~ 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

. CVMC 2018 SUTRO PROGESSING PLANT/cant. |

o Bl
R LT

4/25/2013
20 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003

4{25/2013

Con-Virginia Mining Co.

R 0

(309 LNV1d BNISS300H OH

118 8102 OWAO

4/25/2013

21 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co. 4/25/2013

B

‘GVMC 2013 SUTRO PROCESSING PLAN

4/25/2013

22 of 24




Staff Report — 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co.

4/25/2013

DEVIATERMG
SAHDSCREVY

4/25/2013

ROTARY TROMIEL

23 of 24




Staff Report - 2013-003
Con-Virginia Mining Co.

4/25/2013

4/25/2013

g i Sl : TABLE
L e :
b .

o

G

L%

QRE BIN
WITH GRIZZLY

24 of 24

e e e S PO




Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Storey County and the Dayton
Valley Conservation District (DVCD) doe noxious weed abatement in Six and
Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, Virginia City and American Flat,
Storey County.




Vanessa Dufresne

TR
From: Austin Osborne
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2013 8:37 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne
Cc Pat Whitten; Wilkinson, Richard - NRCS, Minden, NV; Dean Haymore; Mike Nevin
Subject: May 7 Commission Agenda
Attachments: 2013 MOU Storey and DVCD Weed Abatement.pdf; Staff Report Commission Weed

Project MOU 2013.pdf; Budget 2013 .pdf

Hello Vanessa,

t would like to add the following agenda item and attached correspondence to our May 7 Commission Agenda under
Community Development ltems:

Discussion/For Possible Action: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Storey County and the Dayton Valley
Conservation District {DVCD) for noxious weed abatement in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon,
Virginia City, and American Flat, Storey County.

Thanks,
Austin

Austin Osborne

Administrative Officer & Senior Planner
Storey County Courthouse

Box 176 Virginia City, NV 85440

Office: 775.847.0968

Cell: 775.291.4693

Fax: 775.847.0949
aosborne@storeycounty.org

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider.

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLAIMER:

This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for use by the addressee(s) named herein and may contain legally
privileged and/or confidential information. If you gre not the intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this e-mail and any attachments is strictly prohibited. If yvou have received this e-mail in error, please
immediately notify me and permanently delete the original and all copies and printouts of this e-mail and any
attachments.




INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEBT PUBLIC AGENCIES

An Agreement Between

Storey County
P.0O. Box 435, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: (775) 847-0958 - Fax: (775) 847-0935

And

Davton Valley Conservation District
P, O. Box 1807, Dayton NV, 89403
Phone: (775) 246-1999 — Fax: (775) 246-1998

WHEREAS, Storey County is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada and therefore a
public agency under NRS 277.100; and

WHEREAS, the Dayton Valley Conversation District is a governmental subdivision of the State

of Nevada, a public body corporate and politic, organized in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
548 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS); and

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to mutually enter
agreements with any one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or
undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the Agreement are authorized by law to perform;
and

WHEREAS, Storey County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District wish to cooperate in the
funding and performance of work for noxious weed management along Six and Seven Mile Canyons,
Gold Canyon, and Gold Hill, in Storey County, Nevada; and

WHEREAS, Storey County and the Dayton Valley Conversation District each possess common
objectives, responsibilities, and concerns in regard to the spread of noxious weeds in the Carson River
Watershed

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein

contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follow:

1. PARTIES. This Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between STOREY
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, and the DAYTON VALLEY
CONSERVATION DISTRICT (*DVCD”), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

2. AGREEMENT TERM. This Agreement becomes effective upon approval of each party’s
governing body.

Page 1 of 6




3, TERMINATION. This Agreement will terminate on December 31, 2013, at which time DVCD
will have one (1) month thereafier to submit its final request for payment related to work
performed under this Agreement.

4. PROJECT DUTIES.

a. Storey County shall provide funding assistance in an amount not to exceed
$16,097.40 to DVCD for herbicides and project management; seasonal contract
crews; safety materials, training, and supplies; fuel; and overall administration.

b. Storey County shall provide weed mapping and inventory services.

c. Storey County shall provide United States Postal Service mail notification to all
property owners within the scope of the project located within Storey County.

d. DVCD shall coordinate and manage seasonal coniract crews; provide equipment and
materials to treat noxious weeds, and provide seasonal persons to spray/apply
herbicides in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon, and Gold Hill in Storey
County, Nevada.

e. Upon approval of this Agreenient, all work may begin on or before July 1, 2013
5. MONETARY CONTRIBUTIONS.

a. Storey County shall provide $16,097.40 funding to DVCD to help cover the cost of
mapping and inventory of noxious weeds, project management, seasonal contract
“crews, safety materials, training, supplies, fuel, overall administration and the
purchase and application of herbicide in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon,
and Gold Hill.

b. Storey County shall provide $5,202.00 in-kind contribution to cover portions of the
cost of United States Postal Service mail notification to all property owners within
the scope of the project located within Storey County; mapping and inventory of
noxious weeds; highway sign management for vehicular traffic on Six Mile Canyon
Road and State Route 342; and United States Postal Service mail notification of said
project to property owners within the area of the project in Storey County.

c. DVCD shall provide a $4,000 in-kind contribution to cover the cost of mapping and

inventory of noxious weeds, project management, and the purchase of herbicide in
Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon, and Gold Hill.

6. FUNDING REQUESTS.

a. DVCD shall submit to Storey County requests for funding in an amount up to
$16,097.40 over the period of this Agreement but not before July 1, 2013, and in
accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement. The request for
funding must be accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for.

Page2 of 6




7.

8.

10.

11.

b.. Storey County shall pay the approved amount of the request to DVCD within four (4)
weeks of completion of the project, and in accordance with the applicable provisions
of this Agreement; provided, however, the request is not made before July 1, 2013.

C.: Storey County shall not have the responsibility to fund requests exceeding a total of
$16,097.40.

NOTICE. For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows:

STOREY COUNTY DVCD

Attn: Mike Nevin Attn: Richard Wilkinson
Public Works Director District Manager

P. O, Box 435 P. O. Box 1807
Virginia City, NV 89440 Dayton, NV 89403
(775) 847-0958 (775) 246-1999

LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS
chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to
punitive damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach should be
limited by NRS 353.260 and NRS 354.626.

INDEMNIFICATION.

a. The parties shall each assume liability for the negligent actions of or failure to act by
their respective Boards, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and contractors, which
may arise out of this Agreement. Further, in executing this Agreement and to the
extent permitted under Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 41, and without waiving any
provision thereof, the parties hereto agree to hold harmless, indemnify and defend each
other from all damages, costs or expenses which any of them shall become obligated to
pay by reason of liability imposed by law for property damage or personal injury to or
death of persons arising or resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of their
respective Boards, officers, agents, employees, volunteers, and contractors which may
arise under this Agreement.

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of
- written notice by the indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party’s
actual notice of any actual or pending claim or cause of action. The indemnifying party
shall not be liable to hold harmless any attorneys’ fees and costs for the indemnified

party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.

INSURANCE. FEach party shall provide for their financial responsibilities regarding their
respective obligations, rights, and liabilities hereunder through the purchase of insurance or the
provision of an adequate self-funded program pursuant to Nevada Law.

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES, The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Agreement and its incorporated docurnents. In respect to
performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, each party is and shall be a public agency
separate and distinct from the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Agreement. The
parties shall also have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance

Page3 of 6




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an
employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise creatc any liability for one agency
whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any
other party.

SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be unenforceable by a
court of law or equity, this Agreement shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the
non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of
this Agreement unenforceable.

ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION. Neither party shall assign, transfer, or delegate any rights,

obligations or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public

inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made

confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

CONFIDENTIALITY, Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,

produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confi-
dential by law or otherwise required by this Agreement.

PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Agrecment on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and
that the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in the Agreement.

GOVERNING LAW,; JURISDICTION. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the
parties herein shall be governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Nevada.
The parties agree that any proceedings with respect to the performance or enforcement of this
Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Nevada either in the
First Judicial District Court, the Third Judicial District Court, or the United States District Court in
Reno.

THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement shall not be construed as or be deemed to be an Agreement
for the benefit of any third party or parties not specifically named herein, and no third party or
parties shall have a right of action hereunder for any cause whatsoever.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. AND MODIFICATION.  This Agreement and its incorporated

document(s) constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and
exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agree-
ments that may have been made in connection with the subject maiter hereof. Unless an
incorporated document to this Agreement specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular
part of this Agreement, general conflicts in language between any such document and this
Agreement shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Agreement

COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterpart copies, and each

of which so executed, irrespective of the date of execution and delivery, shall be deemed to be an
original, and all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Page 4 of 6




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed and intend to be

legally bound thereby.

STOREY COUNTY

Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

ALLEY CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Chucle Roberts R v
DVCD Chairman

ATTEST:

Vanessa Dufresne, Clerk-Treasurer

Joséph Ricci, Secretary/Treasurer, DVCD

Page 5 of 6




3> Community BDevelopment
planning@storeycounty. org
(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935

Storey County
110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City, NV 88440

Storey County Planning
Staff Recommendation Summary

Commission Meeting Date: May 7, 2013

Agenda Item: Discussion/For Possible Action: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Storey
County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District (DVCD) for noxious weed abatement in Six and
Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, Virginia City, and American Flat, Storey County.

Summary Notes:

Storey County, in cooperation with the Dayton Valley Conservation District (DVCD), Carson-Truckee
Conservancy District, Carson Water Subconservancy District, and other regional conservation entities has
employed reoccurring comprehensive noxious weed treatment in Six and Seven Mile Canyons over the
past four years. The goal is to improve water quality and riparian habitats in Storey County and reduce
noxious weed seed sources to the lower portions of the Carson River Watershed management areas in the
Dayton and Lahontan Valleys. In 2011, the cooperating agencies expanded the operation te include 25
additional square miles in Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, and American Flat.

Each year we were successful in meeting our goals. More than 80 percent of noxious species, particularly
Perennial Pepperweed and Hoary Cress, were eradicated in treated areas. Treatment included initial
chemical application, including 2-4D and Telar, removal of dead materials, and several follow-up sprays
lasting from April through August of each year. The treated area in Six Mile and Seven Mile Canyons was
approximately 136 acres, including a fifteen mile stretch of varying widths from ten to seventy five feet.
The treatment area in Gold Canyon was similar and included approximately 40 acres of treatment area.

Funding:
In April of this year, the Carson-Truckee Conservancy District awarded Storey County $16,097.40

funding to complete the 2013 project. Storey County will use the funds to pay DVCD for project
management, fuel, equipment, herbicide, safety supplies, and contract crews under this MOU Agreement.
Additionally, Storey County will provide $5,202 in-kind match to the DVCD. In-kind match and services
will include administration, property notifications and postage, highway signage, vehicle use and fuel, and
mapping/inventory services.

Staff Recommendation:

Motion to approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Storey County and the Dayton Valley
Conservation District (DVCD) for noxious weed abatement in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill,
Gold Canyon, and American Flat, Storey County, utilizing funds provided by the Carson-Truckee
Conservancy District and in-kind match services.

Sincerely,

Austin Osborne
Senior Planner




00°005'E ) 06 2 1Spe30]
00°000°T S i T JaAeads 1s3uey SUERI0d B00T
00001 S 174 T Sd9 ounf 2qui] TT0Z
00°00F S 114 T Jopiedy JaAeids paam 8007
000097 S 0z T Jakeids/m v/€28pog vooT
00'00F g (174 ¥ uo||es ¢ yoediyeg 0|os

m_muoug:m m>mu I w SHUM JO #

anqEitod pub-uj dog sores pie ,_ﬂ_uma. , iE

0F'662°52 00°000't § | or'L60°9T $ 139an4d WioL

0¥ 2062t - s | 0062t S M3IYD SLOVHLINOD
00°569°T - s | 00'569°T S | $31ddns AL34vS/3a0IgyaH
Q0°ZI0'T 00°'00T s - g SNIddVIA
00'818't 00'00r'E s - $ AINFNDINTGI

00°06E S $ 13n4

00°TET'Y $ $ NOILYYISININGY
0005Z'T $ $ p2u§uw<z<_2 ._.um:o%_

€107 ABN m>zumtm
£T/TTAd JUSWIEAA] PROAA SNCIXON LOAUEY PlOD) ‘UoAUR) B)IIN £1R9
AunoD As103S-QDAQ |B2021u] Jof 188phg Yeld
121351 UOIIBAIRS5UOD AJ|[BA UDIABQ




BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor

STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

1263 S. Stewart Street
Carson City, Nevada 89712

In Reply Refer to:”

Aprit 15, 2013

The Honorable William (Bill} Sjovangen
Chairman, Storey County Commission
PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Attention: Pat Whitten, County Manager
Dear Chairman Sjovangen;

The Nevada Department of Transportation will once again be cenducting County Consultations
to discuss the proposed 2014 Work Program for the state.

We request to be placed on your August 20, 2013 agenda, time certain at 2:00 pm to discuss
Storey County’s Work Program. We will electronically transmit the Story FY 2014 to 2023 Work Program
document to you by August 5, 2013 so it may be included in the Commissioner’s packets.

We are asking that this be an ACTION ITEM. Following our presentation, a question/answer
period will be conducted to address any Issues raised hy the Commission, After that, we will be asking
the Commission for acceptance of the Work Program.

We welcome advance questions on topics affecting the state and federal highways within and
outside Lincoin County. Please submit written questions at least two weeks before the scheduled
consultation so we might adequately research the topic and provide an answer.

Please confirm the meeting date/time, and direct any questions or information requests to
Jennifer Cooper, Transportation Multimodal Planning (775) 888-7123 or email at

jcooper@® .dot.state.n_v.us.

Thank you for your assistance in scheduling this important Consultation,
Sincerely,

=/

Jason Van Havel, Assistant Chief
Transportation Multimodal Planning

RUDY MALFABON, P.E, Director




SHERIFF'S OFFICE LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS




04/24/2013 WED 10:04 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business Office [floc1/001

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissionets has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all tequests must be made in wtiting, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

~ The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Meonday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Ttems received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting. )

Date of Meeting:05-07-13 Date Request Submitted: 04-24-13

Agenda Ttem Requested: _ Cabaret license for, The Roasting House, located at 55 North C. st

| This item is intended for: [ _] Discussion Only Discussion and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

[ ] Supporting documentation is attached [ No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by:  Melissa Field @
SCSO

(please print name clearly)

Address: 205 S. Cst
Phone: 775-847-0959 Email (optional):

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

& .. Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in 2 Window Envelope - - - - - —

Date Request Received: -3 - 1D | Received: [ ] In Person mia FAX By@
['] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages /O~ | Meeting date of this item: £ [

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org




